PHA 5-Year and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban OMB No. 2577-0226

Development Expires 4/30/2011
Annual Plan Office of Public and Indian Housing

1.0 PHA Information
PHA Name: Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority PHA Code: _NYO002
PHA Type: [ Small [ High Performing X standard X HCV (Section 8)

PHA Fiscal Year Beginning: (MM/YYYY): __07/2012

20 Inventory (based on ACC units at time of FY beginning in 1.0 above)

Number of PH units; _4213 Number of HCV units; __ 1372

3.0 Submission Type
X 5-Year and Annual Plan [ Annual Plan Only [ 5-Year Plan Only

40 PHA Consortia [J PHA Consortia: (Check box if submitting ajoint Plan and complete table below.)

PHA Program(s) Included in the Programs Not in the No. of Unitsin Each
Participating PHAS Code Consortia Consortia 2oram
PH HCV
PHA 1:
PHA 2:
PHA 3:

50 5-Year Plan. Completeitems 5.1 and 5.2 only at 5-Y ear Plan update.

5.1 Mission. Statethe PHA’'s Mission for serving the needs of low-income, very low-income, and extremely low income familiesin the PHA's
jurisdiction for the next five years:

The mission of the BMHA isto promote adequate and affordable housing, economic opportunity and a suitable living environment free from
discrimination.

52 Goalsand Objectives. Identify the PHA’s quantifiable goals and objectives that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low-income and very
low-income, and extremely low-income families for the next five years. Include areport on the progress the PHA has made in meeting the goals
and objectives described in the previous 5-Y ear Plan.

See Attached
PHA Plan Update

6.0
(a) Identify all PHA Plan elements that have been revised by the PHA sinceits last Annual Plan submission: ACOP, PIH FSS Action Plan,
Section 8 Administrative Plan See Attached
(b) Identify the specific location(s) where the public may obtain copies of the 5-Y ear and Annual PHA Plan. For a complete list of PHA Plan

elements, see Section 6.0 of the instructions. 476 L ouisiana Street, Buffalo, New York 14204
70 Hope VI, Mixed Finance Modernization or Development, Demolition and/or Disposition, Conversion of Public Housing, Homeownership
’ Programs, and Project-based Vouchers. The addition of Walden Park (NY002000045) and Hertel Park (TBD) will expand the number of
ACC unitsthat the Authority maintains while staying under its Faircloth limit. See Attached
8.0 Capital Improvements. Please complete Parts 8.1 through 8.3, as gpplicable.
81 Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Per formance and Evaluation Report. As part of the PHA 5-Year and Annual Plan, annually
: complete and submit the Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report, form HUD-50075.1, for each current and
open CFP grant and CFFP financing. See Attached

8.2 Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan. As part of the submission of the Annual Plan, PHAs must complete and submit the Capital Fund

’ Program Five-Year Action Plan, form HUD-50075.2, and subsequent annual updates (on arolling basis, e.g., drop current year, and add latest year
for afive year period). Large capital items must be included in the Five-Y ear Action Plan. See Attached

83 Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP).

) [ Check if the PHA proposes to use any portion of its Capital Fund Program (CFP)/Replacement Housing Factor (RHF) to repay debt incurred to
finance capital improvements.

9.0 Housing Needs. Based on information provided by the applicable Consolidated Plan, information provided by HUD, and other generally available
data, make a reasonable effort to identify the housing needs of the low-income, very low-income, and extremely low-income families who residein
the jurisdiction served by the PHA, including elderly families, families with disabilities, and households of various races and ethnic groups, and
other families who are on the public housing and Section 8 tenant-based assi stance waiting lists. The identification of housing needs must address
issues of affordability, supply, quality, accessibility, size of units, and location. See Attached
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9.1

Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs. Provide a brief description of the PHA's strategy for addressing the housing needs of familiesin the
jurisdiction and on the waiting list in the upcoming year. Note: Small, Section 8 only, and High Performing PHAs complete only for Annual
Plan submission with the 5-Year Plan. The Authority isactively expanding its ACC unit portfolio throughout the City of Buffalo with the
acquisition of the Walden Park Senior Apartment Complex and the Hertel Park Senior Apartments. Thiswill put the Authority closer to
its Faircloth limit. See Attached

10.0

Additional Information. Describe the following, aswell as any additiona information HUD has requested.

(a) Progressin Meeting Mission and Goals. Provide a brief statement of the PHA’s progress in meeting the mission and goals described in the 5-
Year Plan. See Attached

(b) Significant Amendment and Substantial Deviation/Modification. Provide the PHA’s definition of “significant anendment” and “substantial
deviation/modification” See Attached

110

Required Submission for HUD Field Office Review. In addition to the PHA Plan template (HUD-50075), PHAs must submit the following
documents. Items (a) through (g) may be submitted with signature by mail or electronically with scanned signatures, but electronic submission is
encouraged. Items (h) through (i) must be attached electronically with the PHA Plan. Note: Faxed copies of these documentswill not be accepted
by the Field Office.

(a) Form HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations (which includes all certifications relating
to Civil Rights)

(b) Form HUD-50070, Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace (PHAS receiving CFP grants only)

(c) Form HUD-50071, Certification of Paymentsto Influence Federal Transactions (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(d) Form SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(e) Form SF-LLL-A, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Continuation Sheet (PHAS receiving CFP grants only)

(f) Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments. Comments received from the RAB must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA
Plan. PHAs must also include a narrative describing their analysis of the recommendations and the decisions made on these recommendations.

(g) Challenged Elements

(h) Form HUD-50075.1, Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(i) Form HUD-50075.2, Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)
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Thisinformation collection is authorized by Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act, which added a new section 5A to the U.S. Housing Act
of 1937, as amended, which introduced 5-Y ear and Annual PHA Plans. The 5-Y ear and Annual PHA plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic
PHA policies, rules, and requirements concerning the PHA’ s operations, programs, and services, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the
public of the PHA’s mission and strategies for serving the needs of low-income and very low-income families. Thisform isto be used by all PHA types for submission
of the 5-Year and Annual Plansto HUD. Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 12.68 hours per response, including the time for
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD
may not collect thisinformation, and respondents are not required to complete this form, unlessit displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

Privacy Act Notice. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Devel opment is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title
12, U.S. Code, Section 1701 et seg., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations. Responses to the collection of information are
required to obtain a benefit or to retain abenefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality

I nstructions form HUD-50075

Applicability. Thisformisto be used by all Public Housing Agencies
(PHAs) with Fiscal Year beginning April 1, 2008 for the submission of their
5-Year and Annual Plan in accordance with 24 CFR Part 903. The previous
version may be used only through April 30, 2008.

1.0 PHA Information
Include the full PHA name, PHA code, PHA type, and PHA Fiscal Y ear
Beginning (MM/YYYY).

2.0 Inventory
Under each program, enter the number of Annual Contributions Contract
(ACC) Public Housing (PH) and Section 8 units (HCV).

3.0 Submission Type
Indicate whether this submission is for an Annual and Five Y ear Plan, Annual
Plan only, or 5-Year Plan only.

4.0 PHA Consortia
Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complete the table.

5.0 Five-Year Plan
Identify the PHA’ s Mission, Goals and/or Objectives (24 CFR 903.6).
Complete only at 5-Y ear update.

5.1 Mission. A statement of the mission of the public housing agency
for serving the needs of low-income, very low-income, and extremely
low-income families in the jurisdiction of the PHA during the years
covered under the plan.

5.2 Goalsand Objectives. Identify quantifiable goals and objectives
that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low income, very low-
income, and extremely low-income families.

6.0 PHA Plan Update. In addition to the items captured in the Plan
template, PHAs must have the elements listed below readily available to
thepublic. Additionally, a PHA must:

(@) Identify specifically which plan elements have been revised
since the PHA’ s prior plan submission.

(b) Identify wherethe 5-Year and Annual Plan may be obtained by
the public. At aminimum, PHAs must post PHA Plans,
including updates, at each Asset Management Project (AMP)
and main office or central off ice of the PHA. PHAsare
strongly encouraged to post complete PHA Plans on its official
website. PHAs are also encouraged to provide each resident
council a copy of its 5-Y ear and Annual Plan.

PHA Plan Elements. (24 CFR 903.7)

1.  Eligibility, Selection and Admissions Palicies, including
Deconcentration and Wait List Procedures. Describe
the PHA's policies that govern resident or tenant
digibility, selection and admission including admission
preferences for both public housing and HCV and unit
assignment policies for public housing; and procedures for
maintaining waiting lists for admission to public housing
and address any site-based waiting lists.

Financial Resources. A statement of financial resources,
including a listing by general categories, of the PHA's
anticipated resources, such as PHA Operating, Capital and
other anticipated Federal resources available to the PHA,
as well as tenant rents and other income available to
support public housing or tenant-based assistance. The
statement also should include the non-Federal sources of
funds supporting each Federal program, and state the
planned use for the resources.

Rent Determination. A statement of the policies of the
PHA governing rents charged for public housing and HCV
dwelling units.

Operation and Management. A statement of therules,
standards, and policies of the PHA governing maintenance
management of housing owned, assisted, or operated by
the public housing agency (which shall include measures
necessary for the prevention or eradication of pest
infestation, including cockroaches), and management of
the PHA and programs of the PHA.

Grievance Procedures. A description of the grievance
and informal hearing and review procedures that the PHA
makes available to its residents and applicants.

Designated Housing for Elderly and Disabled Families.
With respect to public housing projects owned, assisted, or
operated by the PHA, describe any projects (or portions
thereof), in the upcoming fiscal year, that the PHA has
designated or will apply for designation for occupancy by
elderly and disabled families. The description shall

include the following information: 1) development name
and number; 2) designation type; 3) application status; 4)
date the designation was approved, submitted, or planned
for submission, and; 5) the number of units affected.

Community Service and Self-Sufficiency. A description
of: (1) Any programs relating to services and amenities
provided or offered to assisted families; (2) Any policies
or programs of the PHA for the enhancement of the
economic and social self-sufficiency of assisted families,
including programs under Section 3 and FSS; (3) How the
PHA will comply with the requirements of community
service and treatment of income changes resulting from
welfare program requirements. (Note: appliesto only
public housing).

Safety and Crime Prevention. For public housing only,
describe the PHA' s plan for safety and crime prevention to
ensure the safety of the public housing residents. The
statement must include: (i) A description of the need for
measures to ensure the safety of public housing residents;
(i) A description of any crime prevention activities
conducted or to be conducted by the PHA; and (iii) A
description of the coordination between the PHA and the
appropriate police precincts for carrying out crime
prevention measures and activities.
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9.  Pets. A statement describing the PHAs policies and
requirements pertaining to the ownership of petsin public
housing.

10. Civil Rights Certification. A PHA will be considered in
compliance with the Civil Rights and AFFH Certification
if: it can document that it examinesiits programs and
proposed programs to identify any impedimentsto fair
housing choice within those programs; addresses those
impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the
resources available; works with the local jurisdiction to
implement any of the jurisdiction’sinitiatives to
affirmatively further fair housing; and assures that the
annual plan is consistent with any applicable Consolidated
Plan for itsjurisdiction.

11. Fiscal Year Audit. The results of the most recent fiscal
year audit for the PHA.

12.  Asset Management. A statement of how the agency will
carry out its asset management functions with respect to
the public housing inventory of the agency, including how
the agency will plan for the long-term operating, capital
investment, rehabilitation, modernization, disposition, and
other needs for such inventory.

13. Violence Against Women Act (VAWA). A description
of: 1) Any activities, services, or programs provided or
offered by an agency, either directly or in partnership with
other service providers, to child or adult victims of
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking; 2) Any activities, services, or programs provided
or offered by a PHA that helps child and adult victims of
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, to obtain or maintain housing; and 3) Any
activities, services, or programs provided or offered by a
public housing agency to prevent domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, or to enhance
victim safety in assisted families.

7.0 HopeVI, Mixed Finance Moder nization or Development,
Demoalition and/or Disposition, Conversion of Public Housing,
Homeowner ship Programs, and Project-based Vouchers

(8 HopeVI or Mixed Finance Moder nization or Development.
1) A description of any housing (including project number (if
known) and unit count) for which the PHA will apply for HOPE
V1 or Mixed Finance Modernization or Development; and 2) A
timetable for the submission of applications or proposals. The
application and approval process for Hope V1, Mixed Finance
Modernization or Development, is a separate process. See
guidance on HUD' s website at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/programs/ph/hope6/index.cfm

(b) Demolition and/or Disposition. With respect to public housing
projects owned by the PHA and subject to ACCs under the Act:
(2) A description of any housing (including project number and
unit numbers [or addresses]), and the number of affected units
along with their sizes and accessibility features) for which the
PHA will apply or is currently pending for demolition or
disposition; and (2) A timetable for the demolition or
disposition. The application and approval process for demolition
and/or disposition is a separate process. See guidance on HUD's
website at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/centers/sac/demo_dispol/index.c
fm
Note: This statement must be submitted to the extent that
approved and/or pending demolition and/or disposition has
changed.

(c) Conversion of Public Housing. With respect to public
housing owned by a PHA: 1) A description of any building
or buildings (including project number and unit count) that
the PHA is required to convert to tenant-based assistance or

that the public housing agency plansto voluntarily convert;
2) An analysis of the projects or buildings required to be
converted; and 3) A statement of the amount of assistance
received under this chapter to be used for rental assistance or
other housing assistance in connection with such conversion.
See guidance on HUD’ s website at:

http://www.hud.gov/offi ces/pih/centers/sac/conversion.cfm

(d) Homeownership. A description of any homeownership
(including project number and unit count) administered by
the agency or for which the PHA has applied or will apply
for approval.

(e) Project-based Vouchers. If the PHA wishesto usethe
project-based voucher program, a statement of the projected
number of project-based units and general locations and how
project basing would be consistent with its PHA Plan.

8.0 Capital Improvements. This section providesinformation on aPHA’s
Capital Fund Program. With respect to public housing projects owned,
assisted, or operated by the public housing agency, a plan describing the
capital improvements necessary to ensure long-term physical and social
viahility of the projects must be completed along with the required
forms. Itemsidentified in 8.1 through 8.3, must be signed where
directed and transmitted electronically along with the PHA’s Annual
Plan submission.

8.1

8.2

83

Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Perfor mance and
Evaluation Report. PHAs must complete the Capital Fund
Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
(form HUD-50075.1), for each Capital Fund Program (CFP) to be
undertaken with the current year’s CFP funds or with CFFP
proceeds. Additionally, the form shall be used for the following
purposes:

(@) Tosubmit theinitial budget for anew grant or CFFP;

(b) To report on the Performance and Evaluation Report progress
on any open grants previously funded or CFFP; and

() Torecord abudget revision on apreviously approved open
grant or CFFP, e.g., additions or deletions of work items,
modification of budgeted amounts that have been undertaken
since the submission of thelast Annual Plan. The Capital
Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and
Evaluation Report must be submitted annually.

Additionally, PHAs shall complete the Performance and
Evaluation Report section (see footnote 2) of the Capital Fund
Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation (form
HUD-50075.1), at the following times:

1.  Attheend of the program year; until the programis
completed or all funds are expended;

2. When revisionsto the Annual Statement are made,
which do not require prior HUD approval, (e.g.,
expenditures for emergency work, revisions resulting
from the PHAs application of fungibility); and

3. Upon completion or termination of the activities funded
in a specific capital fund program yesr.

Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan

PHAs must submit the Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action
Plan (form HUD-50075.2) for the entire PHA portfolio for the first
year of participation in the CFP and annual update thereafter to
eliminate the previous year and to add a new fifth year (rolling
basis) so that the form always covers the present five-year period
beginning with the current year.

Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP). Separate, written
HUD approval isrequired if the PHA proposes to pledge any
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portion of its CFP/RHF funds to repay debt incurred to finance
capital improvements. The PHA must identify in its Annual and 5-
year capital plans the amount of the annual payments required to
service the debt. The PHA must also submit an annual statement
detailing the use of the CFFP proceeds. See guidance on HUD's
website at:

http://www.hud.gov/offi ces/pi h/programs/ph/capfund/cffp.cfm

9.0 Housing Needs. Provide astatement of the housing needs of families
residing in the jurisdiction served by the PHA and the means by which
the PHA intends, to the maximum extent practicable, to address those
needs. (Note: Standard and Troubled PHASs complete annually; Small
and High Performers complete only for Annual Plan submitted with the
5-Year Plan).

9.1 Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs. Provide a description of
the PHA'’s strategy for addressing the housing needs of familiesin
the jurisdiction and on the waiting list in the upcoming year.

(Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete annually; Small
and High Performers complete only for Annual Plan submitted
with the 5-Y ear Plan).

10.0 Additional Information. Describe the following, as well as any
additional information requested by HUD:

(@) Progressin Meeting Mission and Goals. PHAs must
include (i) a statement of the PHAS progress in meeting the
mission and goals described in the 5-Y ear Plan; (ii) the basic
criteriathe PHA will use for determining a significant
amendment from its 5-year Plan; and a significant
amendment or modification to its 5-Y ear Plan and Annual
Plan. (Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete
annually; Small and High Performers complete only for
Annual Plan submitted with the 5-Year Plan).

(b) Significant Amendment and Substantial
Deviation/Modification. PHA must provide the definition
of “significant amendment” and “substantial
deviation/modification”. (Note: Standard and Troubled
PHAs complete annually; Small and High Performers
complete only for Annual Plan submitted with the 5-Year
Plan.)

©

PHAs must include or reference any applicable memorandum
of agreement with HUD or any plan to improve performance.
(Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete annually).

11.0 Required Submission for HUD Field Office Review. In order to bea
complete package, PHAs must submit items (a) through (g), with
signature by mail or electronically with scanned signatures. Items (h)
and (i) shall be submitted electronically as an attachment to the PHA

Plan.

@

(b)

©

(d)

C

()
(9

(h)

Form HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with
the PHA Plans and Related Regulations

Form HUD-50070, Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace
(PHAsreceiving CFP grantsonly)

Form HUD-50071, Certification of Payments to Influence
Federal Transactions (PHAsreceiving CFP grantsonly)

Form SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (PHAS
receiving CFP grants only)

Form SF-LLL-A, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
Continuation Sheet (PHASs receiving CFP grantsonly)

Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments.

Challenged Elements. Include any element(s) of the PHA
Plan that is challenged.

Form HUD-50075.1, Capital Fund Program Annual
Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report (Must be
attached electronically for PHAsreceiving CFP grants
only). Seeinstructionsin 8.1.

Form HUD-50075.2, Capital Fund Program Five-Year
Action Plan (Must be attached electronically for PHAs
receiving CFP grantsonly). Seeingructionsin 8.2.
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Admissions & Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) h??goqﬁo
Amendments and Revisions 3
Fiscal Year 2013
Section 8 Administrative Plan pageb
2. Eligihifity

Application for Assistance

in 2012, completed applications will be date and time stamped and mainéaineg in the order in

hich they are taken j references. The A rity has begun investigating a lottery based

system to facilitate a more efficient Section 8 application intake process. [Beginning July 1, 2012,

Section 8 applications will be accepted utflizing this method]-struck from proposed amendment]
Public Housing Family Seif Sufficiency Action Plan

«  Saction 2 Estimate of Participating Families page1
Originak

The BMHA proposes a program size of 25 to be serviced by a Family Self Sufficiency Coordinator and
two {2) case managers

Revised:

The BMHA proposes a program size of 25 to be serviced by a Family Self Sufficlency Coordinator _[and

two (2) case managers)-struck from original

« Section S Incentives to Encourage Participation pagel

Interim withdrawals may be considered f funds are reguired to assist the FSS participant in

achieving one or more of th Is contained in the ITSP. Interim goals consist of (1

school tuition or other school costs, (2) job training expenses, {3} husiness start-up expenses and
{4} car when public transportation is unavailable or inaccessible to the family. In addition, there

must be a m 500 in the FSS escrow a more thai f otal
escrow funds may be requested. The FSS participant may only request escrow funds fwice a
ear except u reme circumstances. Once an interim withdrawal is disbursed, it is the

responsihility of the FSS Coordinator to monitor the use of escrow funds for the purpose
approved in the request. Should funds be used for purposes other than reguest, the FSS
participant would be considered in noncompliance with the Contract of Participation and the

FSS participant wilt be terminated from 5SS ram

)



A??RQVBD

Admissions & Continued Occupancy Palicy (ACOP) Pls 0.&
Amendments and Revisions =)
e
Fiscal Year 2013
* Section 8.2 Contacting the Prospective Tenant for Leasing ACOP page 42

Letters wili be sent to all prospective tenants advising them of the location and size of
the unit for which their move in |s anticipated, amount of rent and securTty deposit

+  [Section 8.2 Contacting the Prospective Tenant for Leasing]-struck from proposed amendment
Section9.1 A b.) Contacting the Prospective Tenant for Leasing ACOP page 45

Flat Rent Hardship: If the BMHA determines that a family had a financial hardship and cannot
pay the flat rent, the family may switch to an income based rent. Financial hardships include: reduction
of income from changed circumstances, loss of employment, loss of earnings or other assistance, etc.

1at rent will be offered gnee per vear, Jnterim rent changes will not be eligible for flat

«  10.1 Annual Re-Examinations and Subsequent Requirements ACOP page 54

Original:

Those resident household on a Flat Rent system will be reexamined at least once [every three (3) years.]

Revised:

Those resident households on a Flat Rent system will ba reexamined at least once every twelve (12)
manths.

+« 10.5 B. Termination of Tenancy ACOP page 61

Collection efforts of all sums due to the Authority under any leasehold shall occur immediately
following eviction, and those efforts shall include disclosure of these efforts to the EIV reporting system
as bad debt, and also to any third-party collection efforts until payment in full, along with any
chargeable costs of collection, have been recgived

« Dwelling Lease Section | _ ACOP Appendix 8 BHMA Lease

|. Household Composition & Income

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates the use of Enierprise income
Verification (EIV) to verify all income sources for all federally funded housing developments

{2}



f)

g)

Sources
Federal grants ( FYE 2012 grants)
Public housing operating fund
Public housing capital grant (CFP2011)
Replacement housing factor (2011)

Annual contribution Sect 8 - tenant based
assistance

Resident opportunity and self sufficiency
grants

Financial Resources

Planned Sources and Uses

Amount

20,712,182
8,261,833
1,121,619

6,159,166

789,000

Prior year federal grants (unobligated funds

only)

Capital fund grant 2010

Replacement housing grants 2008
Replacement housing grant 2010
Public housing dwelling rental income

Interest and other miscellaneous income

TOTAL RESOURCES

5,232,942
1,334,020
1,156,306
9,444,356

1,043,463

55,254,887

Uses

Operating expenses
Capital improvements
New housing units

Housing assistance payments and
administrative fees for BMHA and the
City of Buffalo voucher programs

Family self sufficiency and neighborhood
network services

Capital improvements
New housing units
New housing units

Operating expenses

Operating expenses



f)

g)

Sources
Federal grants ( FYE 2012 grants)
Public housing operating fund
Public housing capital grant (CFP2011)
Replacement housing factor (2011)

Annual contribution Sect 8 - tenant based
assistance

Resident opportunity and self sufficiency
grants

Prior year federal grants (unobligated funds
only)

Capital fund grant 2010

Replacement housing grants 2008
Replacement housing grant 2010
Public housing dwelling rental income

Interest and other miscellaneous income

TOTAL RESOURCES

Financial Resources
Planned Sources and Uses

Amount
budget or op sub

current cfp grant
current RHF grant

current audit

grant portfolio

obligations worksheet
obligations worksheet
obligations worksheet

current audit

current audit



Uses

Operating expenses
Capital improvements
New housing units

Housing assistance payments and
administrative fees for BMHA and the
City of Buffalo voucher programs

Family self sufficiency and neighborhood
network services

Capital improvements
New housing units
New housing units

Operating expenses

Operating expenses
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““ENTO&, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
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‘ & % Buffalo Office

4 % 465 Main Street

> * 5 Buffalo, New York 14203-1780

% “ \;« (716) 551-5755

e‘W DE\I\‘-"
June 8, 2011
\r J ?

Ms. Dawn Sanders _ ) BUH‘!‘LOF#UNIC'FALHO[HIHGRUTHO?IT\’ (
Executive Director - _ ‘ :
Buffalo Municipal Housing Authorlty : JUN 18 2011
300 Perry Street ' ROl DErRTHENT
Buffalo, NY 14204-2270 e DEPARTHEA

Dear Ms. Sanders:

This is in response to the Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority’s request to renew the
Designated Housing Plan (DHP) originally approved on July 17, 1998, with a subsequent two-
year extension on August 6, 2003. The Buffalo Office received a request to further extend the
Plan on June 1, 2011.

The. designated units and developments included in the DHP are contained in the
enclosed document.

' The Plan was reviewed in accordance with the requirements of Section 7 of the United |
States Housing Act of 1937 and Notice PIH 2006-1 (HA).

Based on the information available to us, the Plan is approved. The Plan will be in effect

for two years from the day following the expiration of the current Plan (July 17, 2011). Upon the
expiration of the two-year period, the BMHA may submit a written request for an additional two-

year extension.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Jan Galena on 3 51 57:535
ext, 5413.

v

o
!r

US_

The Department wishes the BMHA continued success in implementing its Deﬁgnatef

Housing Plan. > 2 w
Iz 3
Sincerely, Qe
S -
e ..
TN
=

Sheila J. Daniel
Acting Director
Office of Public Housing, 2CPH

t/ b gn S/ég//m/x/

Enclosure

www.hud.gov espanol.hud.gov



Allocation Plan Unit Designataions as approved through July 17, 2011

Units Approved for Units Approved for
Elderly Only Disabled Only Total |Percentage of
Designation by Designation by units | development
Development Dev # Bedroom Size Bedroom Size affected affected
OBR | 1BR | 2BR JOBR | 1BR | 2BR
C. Perry Ext. 2005 1 112 ' 112 27 .1
Shaffer Village 2008 5 13 18 7.7
Kenfield Homes 2010 [ 24 24 3.7
LaSalle Courts 2011 e 18 B L D Y
Kelly Gardens 2013 24 4 1. 2 30 100.0
Schwab Terrace 2014 0 | 2 2 34 | 1000
F. A. Sedita Apts 2016 9 83 9 101 100.0
Holling Homes 2018 125 7 132 100.0
Kowal Apartments 2019 24 24 100.0
Eimhurst Apartments | 2020 23 1 24 100.0
Siater Courts 2021 23 1 24 100.0° |
L. B. Johnson Apts 2022 205 1 208 100.0
Camden Apartments | 2026 11 1 12 100.0
Stuyvesant Apts 2027 | 60 88 148 100.0 ]
Msgr Geary Apts 2031 84 16 100 100.0
Mullen Manor 2034 33 5 2 40 100.0
F. Douglass Tower | 2046 44 B 44 748
Totals 69 | 874 | 48 0 86 14 1091
Total Elderly Only 991 Total Disabled Only 100




BUFFALO MUNICIPAL HOUSING AUTHORITY
Buffalo, New York

REPORT ON AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010



Independent Auditor’s Report on Basic Financial Statements and
Other Supplemental Informatlon ..........c.c..coivninni 1

Management®s Discussion and Analysis ..........oveninens Cerenere e eshe e e baes G\

Basic Financial Statemenits

Statement of Net ASSELS ...ovvivvurversienrrerriemesieiinine, beraeae PO PSPPI 2
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets ....c.oooviiviiinin rererrrereraian 3
Statement oF Casti FLOWS ..eucvrneieurureerinimistsetiisiinmisnesrrmrcsistiasieimettiassianesisse 4-5
Notes to Basic Financial Statements .....c...ovviines T P AT 6-15

Supplemental Information

Combining Schedule of Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets ...c...occiiviiriiinn i 16
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net ASsetS ...cooverirriiiinnicnniiinim 17
Financial Data Schedule (FDS) Electronic Submission Schedule .....o.ovicinininiies TR 18-22
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awasds. .............................................................. 23 |

Sﬁngle Audit Information

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other
Matters Based On An Audit of Basic Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With

Governmont Auditing Standards ............ D PPN e rre e er e e sasae 24
Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and

Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 ..o 25-26
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .........cooooveens i air i res e reeireeeesrar i e st 27-28
Summary Schedule of Prior Auditor Findings ............... e rErrreeree ey heans 29

Corrective ACtOn PIan ......ccccveeranmmiasimmensienes o raEesibEr T e e T Tae edren )RR R R AR EEP R AR 30



CEKTIBIEL? PUBLIU AVLUUUNILIAINLID
P.O. Box 530848
210 N, Highway 17-92
DeBary, Florida 32753-0848

Phone (386) 668-6464 Fax (386) 668-6463
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Cominissioners HUD, Buffale Field Office

Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority Lafayotte Court
Buffalo, New York 465 Main Street, 2" Floor

Buffalo, New York 14203-1780

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority (“"the Authority") as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2010, as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the regponsibility of the
Authority's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standatds applicablo to financial audits confained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and peiform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basio financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates mado by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement
presentation. We belicve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Authority as of June 30, 2010, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 8, 2011, on our
consideration of the Authority's internal conirol over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and should be considered in assessing the results of

our audit,

The Management's Discussion and Analysis as detailed in this Report, is not a required patt of the baslc financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquities made of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplomentary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the Authority. The
Financial Data Schedule required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and state financial assistance, and the other supplemental information as listed in the table
of contents ate presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements,
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinton, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

TIon :ﬂeﬁﬂ:’bﬁn&
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2010

This Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) has been prepared in compliance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34, The purpose of this analysis is to provide information
which is relevant for measuting the financial strength of Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority (BMHA). This
analysis covers our most recently completed fiscal year in comparison with the prior fiscal year (June 30, 2010
and June 30, 2009, respectively). It is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues;
provide an overview of BMHA’s financial activity; and identifies changes in BMHA’s financial position (its
ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges).

Since the MDA. is designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently known
facts, please read it in conjunction with the separate BMHA financial statements,

Organization:

BMHA is a public body corporate and politic pursuant to the laws of the State of New York (the State), It was
State created in 1937 to provide low rent housing for qualified persons in accordance with the rules and
regulations prescribed by the 1.8, Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and other Federal

and State agencies.

The Low Rent Public Housing major funding sources are operating subsidies, rental income and, for capital
expenditures, the Capital Fund Program and the Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing Program

(HOPE VI).
Basis of Presentation and Accounting:

The entexptise fund is used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business, or where the Board has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred,
and/or net income is necessary for management accountability. The intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services to the general public on & continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Financial Statement Analysis:

BMHA’s financial statements consist of three statements — a Balance Sheet; a Statement of Revenue, Expenses
and Changes in Net Assets; and a Statement of Cash Flows. These financial statements and related notes

provide information about the activities of BMHA.
The Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Our analysis of BMHA’s finances begins below. One of the most important questions asked about BMHA’s
finances is, “Is BMHA, as a whole, bettet or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Balance Sheet
and the Statement of Revenue, BExpenses and Changes in Net Assets repont information about BMHA’s
resources and its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all restricted and
unrestricted assets and all liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. 'All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2010

The Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets (Cont’d)

These two statements report BMIA’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of BMHA's net assets —
the difference between assets and liabilitics — as one way to measure BMHA’s financial health, or financial
position, Over time, increases ot decreases in BMHA’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as
changes in tenant base as well as local economic factors to assess the overall health of BMHA.

The Statement of Cash Flows

The final required statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments,
and net changes resulting from opetations, capital and related, financing activities, and investing activities. It
provides answers to such questions as “Where did cash come from?” “What was cash used for?” and “What
was the change in cash balance during the reporting period?”

Highlights of BMHA 2010 financial statements are as follows:

- Net assets increased by $1,480,000 in 2010 and $1,062,000 in 2009.
- BMHA reported operating losses in 2010 ($6,545,000) and 2009 ($5,083,000).
- Net non-operating revenues decreased by $570,000 in 2010 compared to 2009.

Balance S itt
2010 2009
Assets
Gurent assets $ 39,680 $ 34263
Capital assets and escrowcash 117411 118,094
Oiher 15,789 16,442
Total assets $172,880 $168,799
Liabilities;
Cutent liabilities $ 16275 $ 12204
Noncuitent liabilities 24,196 25,667
Total liabilities 40471 37871
Net Assets:
Tnvested in capital assets, net 93,226 93,230
Restticted 197 10
Unrestticted 38,986 37,688 ?
Net asscts 132,409 130,928

Total Yiabilities and Net Assets ~ $172,880 $168,799
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2010

Net assets increased in 2010 due primarily due to net operaling income before depreciation, Capital asset
additions for 2010 fell short of depreciation expense by about a million dollars, Depreciation expense includes
the cost of $26,000,000 in energy performance improvements amortized over a 20 year period. Energy
performance improvements are being depreciated over the same time as HUD subsidies for the program. The
energy program covers new equipment such as boilers, lighting systems and plumbing systems. The
replacement of BMHA infrastructure affects the quality of life for BMHA residents, More effective heating
systems and better lighting are investments that contribute to the health and safety of BMHA residents, From a
financial perspective, these investments aro expected to enhance the long-term efficiency of the otganization and

reduce future funding needs.

Net working capital increased $1,346,000 in 2010 to $23,405,000 from the prior year’s $22,059,000 and the
curtent ratio decreased from 2.8 to 1 to 2.4 to 1. The working capital increase resulted primarily from the
income from operations before depreciation, The current ratio has gone down due to the 1.3 to 1.0 increase in
current assets to liabilities 2010 to 2009,

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets ($000s omitted)

2010 2009
Opetating Revenues; '
Rental sevenue $ 12,216 $ 11,958
Governmental revenue 33,203 31,302
Other revenue 337 185
- ‘Total operating revefiues 45,756 43,445
Operating espenges:
Administrative o 8,711 8,483
Tenant sekvices 757 575
Utilities 8,619 9,767
Ordinary maintenance and operation 15,968 14,142
Protective services 290 146
General expenses 8,255 57152
Housing assistance payrnents 1,461 1,657
Depreciation 8,240 8,006
Total gperating expenses 52,301 : 48,528
~ Operating loss {6,545) {5.083)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): .
Interest revenug : ' 517 785
Interest expense (1,245) (1,246
Casualty losses and other 1,511 ‘ 1,814
T'otal nonoperating revenues 783 1,353
' (5,762) (3,730
Capital contributions 7,242 4,792
Increase in net assets 1480 1,062
Net assets - beginning of year 130,928 129,866

Net assets - end of yeat $ 132408 $ 130,928
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 34, 2010

BMHA's change in net assets before capital contributions decreased from a loss ($3,730,000) in 2009 to a loss
of ($5,762,000) in 2010 primarily due to the following:

s Operating revenues increased by $2,311,000 (5. %) due to some additional government subsidies for

developments, additional energy performance grants and service fee revenues, and increases in rental

revenues.
o Operating expenses increased by $3,773,000 (7.8%) due primarily to additional costs for the

redevelopment of the AD Price location and an increase in compensated absence expense.
 Non-operating revenues decreased $570,000 due to lower interest rates and lower development fees for
new mixed finance projects.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Depreciable Capital Asscts ($000's omitted) :
2010 2009

Land § 11,634 $ 11,934
Buildings 336,097 340,129
Equipment 9,103 8,776
356,834 360,839
Less accumulated depseciation (239,423) (242,745)

$ 1741 $ 118,094

Depreciable capital assets at June 30, 2010 reflect 2010 property additions of $8,144,000 improvements
discussed earlier herein) offset primarily by scheduled depreciation expense of $8,240,000.

At June 30, 2010, BMHA had three outstanding Energy Performance Contract Municipal Lease Purchaso
Agreement borrowings totaling $25,254,000 (amounts due in one year total $711,000). Thesc loans were used
for enetgy, conservation improvements, and equipment, and have been subsidized in part as to principal and
interest by grants from the New York State Energy Rescarch & Development Authority, Other loans
outstanding at June 30, 2010 total $141,000 for dwelling equipment purchases financed in prior years,

Economic Factors:

Congressional approval of funding levels for HUD for all aspects of the Low Income Public Housing
Program along with all aspects of the Assisted Housing Payments Prograts.
. Local rate increases in health benefits plans, utility costs and retirement system costs.
- Local inflationary, recessionary and unemployment trends that affect resident incomes and the amount
of rental income. Buffalo is below the national averages for rental income.
- PFuture funding reductions is a possibility for all HUD funded programs.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management:

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of BMHA’s finances for all with an interest.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information
‘should be addressed to Dawn Sander, Executive Director, Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority, 300 Perry



STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNF, 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents, restticted
Investments, unrestricted
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Due from other governments
Inventories, net of obsolescence
Prepaid itemns
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Other assets
Notes and mortgages receivable
Capital asscls
Not being depreciatod
Depreciable, net
Total eapital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Vendors and contractors payable
Accrued wages/taxes payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue
Notes and bonds payable
Other current liabilities
Other accrued liabilities

Total current lfabilities
Current liabilities payabie from restricted assets
Resident security deposits

Noncurrent liabilities
Notes and bonds payable
Acerued compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liahilitles

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

30,056,985
476,323
3,572,566
1,047,775
1,225,349
2,025,783
751,675
523,083

39,679,539

15,788,678

11,633,801
105,777,692

117,411,493

133,200,171

172,879,710

7,720,963
703,250
1,133,728
135,502
233,920
1,371,625
745,386
816,477
3,134,434

15,995,285

279,744

23,435,999
755,817

24,195,816

40,470,845

93,226,108
196,579
38,936,178




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Operating revenues
Rental reveitue
Fee revenus
Other governmental grants
Qther revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Administrative
Tenant services
Utilities
Ordinary maintenance & operation
Protective setvices
Insurance
General expenses
Housing agsistance payments
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest revenue, unrestricted
Mortgage interest revenue
Interest expense
Fraud rocovery
Other revenue
Other expense

Total nonoperating revenues
Loss hefore contributions
Capital contributions
Increase in net nssets
Net assets, beginning of year
Net assets, end of year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

12,216,097
336,614
33,202,922
314

45,755,947

8,710,901
756,788
8,618,722
15,967,840
290,014
2,212,527
6,043,557
1,461,095
8,239,945

52,301,389

(6,545,442)

122,951
394,411

(1,244,744)
702
1,542,334

(31,942)

783,712

(5,761,730)
7,241,988

1,480,258
130,928,607

3

132,408,865




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from dwelling rentals

Receipts from feos

Receipts from other govertiments

Other receipts

Payments to employees and suppliers
Payments to landlords and residents
Interprogram transfers

WMet cash used by operating activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital conttibutions

Purchases of capital assets

Principal paid on capital delt

Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used by capital and related financing activitles

Cash Flows From Invesiing Activities
Purchase/sale of investments

Increase in notes receivable

Interest

Net cash provided by investing activities

‘Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Balanee - beginning of the year
Balance - end of the year

Reconciliation of Cash Flows to Statement of Net Assets
Cash and cash equivalents, untestricted
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted

$ 10,138,337
336,614
33,772,090
2,780,176
(38,472,354)
(1,461,005)

)

7,093,767

7,241,988
(7,557,216)
(679,019)
(1,246,067)

(2,240,314)

2,570,625
653,664

' (530,412)

2,693,877

7,547,330
22,985,978
~§ 30,533,308

$ 30,056,985
476,323

$ 30!533g308



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(Continued)

Reconciliation of Net Operating Loss to

Net Cash Used By Operating Activities

Operating loss $ (6,545,442)

Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to

net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation elimination 8,239,945
Increase in accounts receivable (2,173,480)
Decrease in due to/from other governments 569,168
Increase in inventory (65,016)
Tncrease in prepaid expenses (36,882)
Decrease in security deposits 05,720
Decrease in accounts payable 1,513,911
Decrease in accrued wages {1,289,497)
Decrease in compensated absences 822,871
Decrease in accrued liabilities 3,214,550
Decrease in deferred credits 1,236,826
Fraud recovery, other revenue, othet expense and fransfers to other entities reported as nonoperating 1,511,093

$ 7,093,767

Net cash used by operating actlvities : X
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Organization:

1

3.

Reporting Entlty: Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority (the Authority) is a public body ¢orporate and
politic pursuant to the Laws of the State of New York which was organized by the State Housing Act of
1937 to provide low rent housing in Buffalo, New Youk for qualified individuals in accordance with the
rules and regulations prescribed by the U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development (HUD),
the New York State Division of Housing and Community Renewal (DHCR), and other federal agencies.
Funding for the Authority’s progtams are primarily through contracts with HUD and DHCR, and rental
tevenue on tmits which are owned by the Authority. The Authority’s reporting entity does not contain
any component units as defined in Govetnmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14.

Basis of Presentation: The financial statements of the Authority are prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Authority
applies all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncetnents as well as applicable
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issucd on or after November 30, 1989,
unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Measurement Focus: The Authority reports as a special purpose government engaged in business-type
activities, as defined by GASB Statement No. 34. Business-type activities are those that are financed in
whole ot in patt by fees charged to external patties for goods or services. The Authority’s financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when & liability is incurred.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been satisfied.

The Authority’s policy for defining operating activities in the statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net assets are those that generally result from exchange transactions such as payments
received for services and payments made to purchase those goods or services. Certain other transactions
ate reported as non-operating activities and include capital contributions and investment income,

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents may include demand deposits, U.S. Treasury
Funds, and Certificates of Deposit with original maturities of three months or less,

Cash deposits maintained in banks ave covered by U.S. Federal Deposit Insurance and by collateral held
by custodial banks in the Authority’s name based upon the average daily funds available as determined

by the banks,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)

A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Organization: (Continued)

AS'

7

10

11

Cash and Cash Equivalents: (Continued)

Collateral is required for demand and time deposits and certificates of deposit not covered by Federal
Deposit Insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States and
its agencies and obligations of the state and its municipalities.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the Authority’s deposits may not be
returned to it. At June 30, 2010, the Authority’s bank deposits were fully collateralized by FDIC
coverage and securities held by a third party arrangement in the Authority’s name,

Short-Term Investments: Shott-term invesiments represent collateralized bank certificates of deposit
with original maturities of less than ong year sepregated from operating cash and cash equivalents to
generate more favorable interest earnings on otherwise idle cash balances.

Inventory: Inventory (materials and supplies) is valued at the lower of weighted average cost or
matket.

" Capltal Assefs: Capital assets are reported at actual historical cost. For assets being depreciated,

expense is calculated over estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Maintenance and
repairs are expensed as inourred; significant improvements are capitalized.

The Authority’s capitalization threshold is generally $1,000. The estimated useful lives of capital assets
ate:

‘Bulldings 7 40 yeafs
;Bullding moderatzation | 30years
Office and ofher equipment  3-7 yeats

Long-Lived Assets: Long lived assets to be held and used or disposed of other than by sale are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may-not be recoverable. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are reported at the lower of its
catrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

Compensated Absences: The Authority provides for vacation, sick and cormpensatory time that is
atiributable to services already rendered. The liabilities are recorded based on employees’ rates of pay
as of the end of the fiscal yeat, and include all paytoll related liabilities. Payments of these liabilities
are dependent upon many factors (including time of leave, retitement, or tetmination). At June 30, 2010
managetment has estimated that $755,818 is payable after the next fiscal year.

Annual Contribution Contracts: Annual Contribution Contracts provide that HUD shall have the
right to audit and examine the records of public housing authorities. Accordingly, final determination of
the Authority’s financing and contribution status for the Annual Contribution Contracts is the
etk lie af ETED haged unon financial reports submitted by the Authority.



ey W S e —— ¢ w7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)

A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Organization: (Continued)

12. Risk Management: The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
Authority catries commercial Insurance for all risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and
employee health and accident insurance, general liability, fire and extended coverage, fidelity bond,
automobile, and Director and Officers’ Hability, Settled ¢laims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Additionally, there have
been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year, :

13. Net Assets: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of net capital assets reduced by
outstanding balances of any related debt obligations atiribuiable to the acquisition, consttuction, or
improvement of the assets. : '

Resiricted net assets — consists of net assets subject to external restrictions imposed.by creditors (such as
through debt covenants), federal or state laws or enabling legislation.

Unresivicted — consists of all other net assefs that do not meet the definition of the above restrictions and
are available for general use of the Authority.

B - Accounts Recelvables:

Current receivables at June 30, 2010, consisted of the following:

Accounts receivable HUD $1,843,907
Accounts due from other goverhments 181,876
Accounts due from mixed finance & other programs 1,137,341
Accounts receivable tenants net of allowances of $431,767 88,008

$3,251,132

C. Prepaid Expenses:

Prepaid expenses at June 30, 2010, consisted of the following:

Prepaid worker compensation $ 415,897
prepaid liability insurance 89,621
prepaid taxes 13,308
prepaid miscellaneous cost 4,257

$ 523,083
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)

D - Notes Receivable - Affiltates and Other: The Authority has recorded outstanding mortgage notes
receivable due from Lakeview Associates 98, L.L.C., a limited liability company established in 1998, and
Lower West Side Homes, L.P, a parinetship established in 2006, with assistance by the Authority for the
purpose of acquiring and operating rental housing projects in Buffalo, New York, The Lakeview Associates
98, L.L.C. Toan is secured by related project property, and acotues interest annually at 4.5% until maturity
(Februaty 2042), at which time all unpaid principal and interest is due. The Lower West Side Homes, L.P.
loan is secuted by related project property, and accrues interest annually at 5.3% until maturity (January

_2057), at which time all unpaid principal and interest is due. At June 30, 2010, amounts owed and
recoghized in these financial statements on the loans totaled $15,788,678 ($12,264,690 principal and

accrued interest).

Lakeview Associates 98 L.L.C. Owned and managed by a private company and is ndt considered a
component unit in these financial statements. Lower West Side Homes L.P is affiliated with BMHA
through a 1% interest held by a BMHA controlled General Pariner. Lower West Side Homes is also not
included as a component unit due to the 99% controlling interest of the investor partnet.

The Authority has outstanding mortgage notes receivable not recorded on the books from the following
BMHA managed affiliates: Prederick Douglass Associates, L.P, Frederick Douglass Associates II, L.P.,
Fredetick Douglass Associates II1, L.P., Lower West Side Homes, L.P., and AD Price I LLC, The authority
also has notes receivable from the privately owned and managed Lakeview Family Homes 2000. All entities
established with assistance by the Authority for the purpose of acquiring and operating rental housing

" projects in Buffalo, New York. None of thesc entities are considered component units in these financial
statements due to investor partner controlling interest. The loans are generally secured by first or second
mortgages on related project property, and accrue interest annually at 1% until maturity (2035 through
2044), at which time all unpaid principal and interest is due. At June 30, 2010, principal and interest owed to
the Authority on the loans total approximately $37,000,000. :

Since collectability of all receivables under current circumstances is uncertain, management has
conservatively only recorded as teceivable amounts associated with the Lakeview Associates 98, L.L.C.
property, and the Lower West Side Homes, L.P. property (except that accrued interest is not recognized on
the receivable from Lower West Side Homes, L.P. property). There is at least a reasonablo possibility,
however, that these recorded amounts may be reduced by a material amount in the near term should

circumstances change.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)

E - Capital Assets:

A summary of changes in capital asscts were as follows:

Balance Balance

July 1, Retirements/ June 30,

2009 Additions Reclassifications 2010
Land $ 11,934,290 $ - $( 300,489) $ 11,633,801
Buildings 340,128,740 7,063,127 ( 11,094,415) 336,097,452
Equipment - dwellings 1,179,983 51,733 ( 62,557 1,169,159
Equipment - administration 7,596,407 1,029,214 { 691,100 7,934,521

360,839,420 8,144,074 ( 12,148,561) 156,834,933

Less accumulated deprecation (242,745,198) (8,239,952) 11,561,710 (239,423,440)

$118,094222  $( 95878) §(  S586,851) 117,411,493

F ~ Other Current Liabilifies:

Other cutrent liabilities at June 30, 2010, consisted of the following:

‘Accounts payable tax credit advances , $ 337,150
New York State Retirement 128,845
Other Governments /projects : 350,482

$ 816477

' G - Deferred Revenues:

Deferied revenues at June 30, 2010, consisted of the following:

LIPH operating subsidy $ 1317641
New York State program prepaid rent 32,697
Prepaid development grant funds 21,286

3 1,371,624

H - Accrued Liabilities — Other:

Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2010, consisted of the following:

OPEB - Employee Retitement $ 2,068,000
Accrue utilities 771,762

Payment in Lieu of Taxes 294,672
‘ $ 3,134,434
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)

‘Retivement Plan: The Authority participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement

System (ERS), which s a cost-sharing multiple employer, public employeo retirement system. ERS offers a
wide range of plans and benefits which are related to years of service and final average salary, vesting of
retirement benefits, death and disability.

ERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits, New York State Retirement and
Social Security Law govern obligations of employers and employees to contribute and provide benefits to
employees. FRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and requited
supplementary information. This report may bo obtained by writing to the New York State and Local
Retirement System, 110 State Strect, Albany, New York 12244-0001,

ERS requires employee contributions of 3% of salary except for those who joined ERS before July 1976 or
have greater than 10 yeats of service. For ERS, the Comptroller annually cetlifies the rates expressed as a
percentage of the wages of participants used to compute the contributions requited to be made by the

- Authority to the pension accumulation fund.

The required contributions and rates over the past three years wore:

Amount Rate
2010 } 615923 7.0% - 9.3%
2009 869,661 ; 18.1%-10.8%

2008 | 1136725 | 19.0%:121%

The Authority’s contributions made to ERS were equal to 100 percent of the contributions required for each
year, -

Postemployment Healtheare Benefits: The Authority maintains a single-employer defined benefit
healthcare plan (the Plan) providing for medical benefits to eligible retirees and spouses.

For the fiscal yoar ended Jure 30, 2010, the Authority adopted GASB 45 - Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.. This pronouncement
establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) expenses and related liabilities, note disclosures, and required supplementary information. The
Authority has chosen to implement this requirement on a prospsctive basis.

Benefit provisions are based on individual contracts with the Authority, as negotiated from time to time. The
Plan does not issue a publicly available financial roport. Eligibility is based on covered employees who
retire from the Authority over age 55 with five or more years of service. Retirees are eligible to continue the
same coverage as immodiately before retirement, for their lifetime. The required contribution is based on
projecied pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with no current funding of actuarially determined
liabilities. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the Authority contributed $2,245,983 for plan benefits.

Boginning in fiscal 2009, the Authority’s annual OPEB expense is calculated based on the annual required

contribution of the Authority (ARC). The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and to amortize unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)

J- Postempldyment Healthcare Benefits: (Continued)

The following tablo summarizes the Authority’s annual OPEB, the amount actually contributed to the Plan,
and changes in the Authority’s OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Annual required contribution

Normal cost $ 804,494
Amotiization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 2436914
Subtotal 3,241,408
Year one contributions | (2,167.345)
Tncrease in net OPEB obligations 1,073,563
Net OPEB 6 30, 2009 ' 1,073.563
Normal cost yeat two . 804,494
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability year two 2,436,914
Subtotal 3,241,408
Year two contributions (2.245.983)
Increase in net OPEB obligations 995,425
Net OPEB 6 30, 2010 $ 2,068,988

As indicated above, the Authority’s annual OPEB cost amounted to $3,241,408, the percentage of atmual
OPEB cost contributed to the Plan was 66.9%, and the net OPEB obligation for 2010 was $2,795,344. In
subsequent periods, these indicators will be disclosed for three fiscal years.

As of June 30, 2010, the actuarial acerued liability for benefits was $53,415,513, all of which is unfunded.
The annual payroll of employees covered by the Plan was $11,194,844, and the ratio of the unfunded

actuarial accrued Hability to the covered payroll was 477%.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involvos estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events info the future. Examples include
assumptions sbout future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts deterthined
regarding the funded status of the Plan and ARC of the Authority are subject to continual revision as actual
results compared with past expectations and new estimates are mads about the foture. A schedule of

" funding progress will be presented in future years as requited supplementary information. This schedule
will display multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of Plan assets (if any) is
inorensing or decreasing over time relative to actuarial accrued Habilities for benefits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)

J - Postemployment Healthcare Benefits: (Continued)

Projections of benefits for financial repotting purposes are based on the Plan as understood by the Authority
and Plan members and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing benefit costs between the Authotity and Plan members, The methods and assumptions
used included techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial acerued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term pexrspective of the calculations. The

following assumptions were made:

Retirement age for active emplayees — based on historical tetirement ages blended with typical rates.
Marital statas — Assumed 70% of future retirees will be married, with male spouses assumed to be three

years older than female spouses.
Mortality — Life cxpectancies based on mortality tables from the RP-2000 Projected to 2010, 45% Blue

Collat; 55% White Collar. -
Turnover — The 2003 Sooiety of Actuaries small plan withdrawal, unscaled was used as the basis for

assigning active members a probability of remaining employed until the assumed retirement age and for
developing an expected future working lifetime assumption for purposes of allocating to periods the present

value of total benefits to be paid.
Heulthcare cost trend rate — The expected rate of increase in healthcare premiums was 10.0% initially,

reduced to an ultimate rate of 5.0% after ten years.
Health insurance preminms — 2007 health insurance premiums wete used as the basis for calculation of the

present value of total benefits to be paid.
Based on the historical and expected returns of the Authority’s general assets, a discount rate of 5.0% was
used, In addition, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used, The unfunded actuarial accrued

liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis over a 30 year period.

For years ended prior to June 30, 2009, the Authority expensed the cost of providing health care benefits to
retired employees as premium payments were made. The cost of such benefits totaled $2,168,000 on behalf
of 207 eligible retirees for the year ended June 30, 2009, For the year ended June 30, 2010, benefit payments

totaled $2,245,000 on behalf of 209 eligible retirecs.

K - Economic Dependency: The Authority receives a substantial portion of its revenues from HUD, If the
amount of revenues received from HUD falls below critical lavels, the Authority’s financial status could be

adversely affected.

L - Contingencies: The Authority is subject to possible examinations made by Federal and State authorities
who determine compliance with terms, conditions, laws and regulations governing grants given fo the

Authority in the current and prior years.

The Autherity is a defendant in lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of the Authority that resolution of these mattets will not have a material

adverse effect on the financial condition of the Authority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)

M -Long-Term Debt:

Current receivables at June 30, 2010, consisted of the following:

- 2000
{Bank Rnexgy Performance Contract ' o
" Municipal Lease Purchage :
Agreoment for eneigy, consetyation
improvements, and equipment,
:  manthly installments of
© $50,993 including interest at the
estitnated subsidized tate of
4.9%% from Tune 2007
thiough March 2026 secored by
telated equipment. Loan amounts )
due in one year total $306,622, $ 6,596,930
‘Bank Energy Performance Contract :
i Municlpal Lease Purchase .
i Agteement for enetgy, conscrvation

improvements, and equipment,
varying quarterly installments ranglng
from $159,500 to $313,225 lncluding
interest at the estimated subsidized
rate of 4.97% from October 2007
through July 2027 secuved Ly
. telated equipment, Loan amounts ]
. duein one yeat total $162,124, 10,523,194
iBank Bnetgy Performance Conteact :
| Municipal Igase Purchase ' L o :
. Agteement for energy, conservation : :
| imptovements, and equipment, - '
!_ monthly installments of
! §48,054 Including interest at the
estimated subsidized rate of
4,99% from September 2008
through August 2028 secured by
related equipment. Loan amounts

due.in.one year total $242,320. 6,924,297 . . i
"Other loans (334,320 is due in o :
oneyea) . 140,964 :

Z 24,188,385 |
"Less cureent postion : 748,386 |

.5 25,439,999
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010
(Continued)
-Long-Term Debt: (Continued)
Estimated debt service requirements:
_ Prinelpsl Interest

2011 $ 745386 $ 1,116,216
2012 819,533 1,082,191
2013 885,048 1,045,278
2014 915,151 1,005,317
2015 981,584 957,817
2016-2020 6,193,682 . 3,336,613
2021-2025 8,900,719 2,696,448
2026-2029 4,744,282 629,107

824,185,385 $11,868,987

At June 30, 2010, the Authority also has outstanding loans payable due to the State of New York totaling
approximately $523,000. The final annual principal of $523,000 is due February 2011 plus interest at
approximately 3.8%, secured by all rents and related revenues from the related projects. Principal and
interest payments due have been subsidized by annual allocations fiom the State of New York, and it is
management’s opinion that future cash outlay requirements from the Authority for these loans is remote. As
a result, the loans have not been recognized in the Authority’s financial statements as a Liability.

Other debt related to the original acquisition and early modernization of public housing developments is
funded, guaranteed and serviced by HUD, There is no debt or pledge of faith and credit on part of the
Authority, Accordingly, this debt has not been recorded in the financial statements of the Authority.

Lensing Activities (as Lessor): The Authority leases dwelling units mainly to low-income residents. The
rents under the leases are determined generally by the resident’s income as adjusted for eligible deductions
regulated by HUD, although the resident may opt for a flat rent. Leases may be cancelled by the lessee at
any time. The Authority may cancel the lease only for cause.

Revenues associated with these leases are recorded in the financial statements as “Rental Revenue.” Rental
Revenue per dwelling unit generally remains consistent from year to year, but is affected by general
economic conditions, which impact personal income and local job availability.
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14871 14.888 14.870 14.683
Houtlg Revilalzation of Rosident Formta :
Pralact Tols Chulce Severely 2 Eintedocsl [Opportuntty and| Gapital Fund coce Gubtotet ELIM Tolal
. Vauehsie Distraszed Public Suppritive Stimulug
Housiag Sevicay Grant
141 Gush- Unresircted £70,005.858 | $305,185 §3,071,054 $5,020,209 § $30,050,004 $30,056.084
142 Cash+ Reslrlctod - Modemleslon aad Developmant ’ 80 50 0
113 Covh - Olher Reslrcted” $1068,679 $188.570 106,876
114 Cash - Tenan Seculty Deposils 360,804 $169,004 $270,745 $27D,745
115 Cash- Resicted (or Fayment of Cierent Liabifties
100 Tolal Cash 620,147,300 | $504,704 0 £4,171,035 §0 §0 $5,620200 { 530833308 $0 $30,593,300
$21 Accounts Rogelvable « PHA Projacts
122 Accounts Recelvable - HUD Other Projecis §1,500,703 8243 $68,002 204018 §1,643,908 $4,8643,008
124 Accounts Rocoivable - Other Govemment 0 $20 $161,818 $164,078 161,878
125 Avcounts Receivablo - Miscesansous £123,274 $315,408 $2770450 | $3.278.200 | 52440850 | 1,107,341
128 Accounts Recelvable - Tanans 120,302 $398.871 $519,253 $510,253
1261 Adowancs for Doubliut Ascounls -Tenanis 76,673 $352,004 4481,787 $i34,707
1282 Alawancs for Doubliul Abcounte - Other $0 0 $0 £0 0 2 $0 0 50
127 Notss, Losns, & Mortgaphs Recsivabls - Curent .
128 Freud Recovery 52 §$52 522
128.1 Aownnce for Doublid Accounts « Fraud 50 $0 3
120 Aceived nferest Recelvable $1,047,778 | $1,042,775 S5
mol Tracetvablan, Mol of Aowancasfor Doublidl 1,703,848 $582 4,243 $361,485 466,062 §204.318 | $4.009,085 | 60430755 | -52,140,880 | £4208,900
131 Invaslments - Unrestiicted £2,753,380 819,176 3,672,569 £3,572508
132 Investmants - Resticled
135 (nvestrionis - Resiricled for Payment of Currant Liabity
142 Prepald Expenses end Olhsr Astels s4{3.807 $1.068 5105530 $523,003 $523,083
143 Inventores §844,204 $11411 §760,435 $758,435
143.4 Atownnée for Obsotels Inventorlos 45,750 -$1,010 $8,760 $6,700
144 [nlsr Progrem Due From 50,070 922,924 $2,010304 | §2,162304 | -$2.48230 $0
45 Assets Held for Sale
150 Tolal Cument Aesetd $25007,72% § $507002 21,167 $4,638,030 £60.082 204,816 | W12,030600 | S45.002,701 | 54203903 | 890,070,608
161 Lend 63,748,708 $4,064,508 $2.670497 | 811,933.800 411,633,801
162 Buiidngs $305,950,381 §13,716,960 $19,428,141 | §026,097,452 $30,007 452
183 Fumiture, Equipment & Machingry - Dwilings 1,187,667 51,602 $1,169,159 £1,169,150
184 Fumihxs, Equipment & Machinery « Administralion $3,745471 | #7402 $24,000 4,140,558 | $7.004,52¢ $7,034,62
165 Lomsahokt inpiovemants
168 Accunilated Depraciation -3216,000,442] 52679 ' ~$12650,707 | 34,660 -$10,707,050 |-¥230,423440 $209423,440
187 Consinidlonin Progress .
166 Infrasinciure
180 Tolsl Gapllal Asasts, Nl of Accirulaled Dapracialion | $101,601,083 | 514613 0 6,123,701 19,434 50 $9,601,872 | $17.411,402 3] $117.411.453
171 Nelos, Loans and Muitgages Recelvable - Nonr Cument $10,200,678 $5,600.,000 | $15,788,670 $15.780,678
172 Notes, Loany, & Modgapes Rocelvablo - Nen Cument -
Past Duo
173 Grenls Recetvabla - Non Current
174 Othor Assefs
178 Invesimaniu ln Joint Venlures
180 Total HorvCutent Assels $101,601,883] $14,813 $10,200.,078 | ¢8,123.701 $10.434 1) §i6,101,672 | $133,200,171 % $133.200474
160 Totel Assols 127,300,708 ] $619,615 | S105,045 | §iozeten FLLE A $204,818 | $27.023.581 | $4¥7,472,002 § $4.203.990 | 3172070700




33 Accounis Payable - HUB PHA Proprams $167,905 §167,008 _ H187.085
352 Atgound Payablo - PHA Projacls
333 Accounis Paysbia - Other Govemment 78,035 $75,635 $76.045
341 Tenant Bacurily Deposits $30,66) $109,081 $270,M4 270,744
342 Delerred Roveivsy $4.07.841 $32607 $21,264 $AT1.624 $1,371,624
243 Cureal Porllon of Leng-temm Drobt - Crpllad
ProjsctaMorigags Revenus Bonds 74073 $4310 $745,308 748,388
344 Cumenl Pertion of hongtemy Debt- Openliag Borowings
346 Other Cument LlabKtlas §6,657 1,040,870 $1.056.,417 -$240,000 816477
340 Acceued Uabilies - Olher $2457,022 { $40,200 $20765610 | $4,552040 § SLAM8,406 | 53194434
347 Inker Progeam - e To $1,133,120 | K101 $53,78) $46,026 $847,858 $2,162505 | -52,162,304 ]
348 Loan Liabity - Cument
340 Yolal Curenl Lisbikiioy $6,506,013 | $220.510 $ar.167 $4,625,708 £00,0802 $204,818 | §0,030,802 | $20888,220 | -$4,203,183 | $18.275007
351 Lonpem Bedd, Net of Current . Capltel
projecisMortgags Revenue E23477,377 $202822 | $23.450,000 $23,430,000
352 Longterm Debt, Ne! of Cumend - Operating Bomowings
353 Nonrcorent Liabiles - Other
384 Asorund Conpansated Absenoes - Non Cumrend $533,600 563 §221,055 $785,818 316,818
355 Loan Liablity - NonCurant
356 FASB 6 Lisbililes
387 Accrued Pension pnd OPEE Liabiilley
350 Tetal Non-Curerd Liabifiley B20,710,017 §563 $0 0] i 0 BIa2TY  § $29,105.847 0 $24,195817
400 Total Lisblites $32.205,800 | $227173 $27.187 $4,623,700 $68,002 $204,618 | $A415,100 | S44764,007 | -$4,203,108 | 840,470,644
£08. ivested [n Caplial Assais, Nelof Rohled Debt $77.843.653 | $14.803 80,423,701 $19,434 $0424.737 | foamedos £93,228,108
500.2 Fund Batance Rosdived
£11.2 Untsserved, Deslpnated Fund Belance
511.1 Rasircted Nel Assels £166,570 $168,578 $198,678
5124 Unsasiricted Net Aosals $17.426,283 | $475.23%0 | 10,208,078 $114,232 &0 $0 $10.803,738 § $20,996,178 $34,008,178
5122 Unveasived, thwdesipnaled Fund Batanco
543 Tolel EquityMel Assels $05.060,619 { $asd442 $10,200,67¢ $5,238,023 $104M 0 $A0A0BAT2 | $132,400,085 0 $132400,855
600 FolalLlabiilies and EquityiNet Asasls $127,360,706 1 toiie15 | $10.315545 | 10,701,624 $85,610 $204,818 | $2r820581 | $1TRA72.002 | 4205403 | $172.970.000
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wan 14.888 14.870
Projoct Tolal Hauslng R"g:m;" o 2 Silicd.ocaf 0;’:;2::3‘ ty 1:!::;:;:"# coce Sublotal ELIM Tolal
Chelca
Vouthets Bistressed Publio and Supporitva | Siimukis Grant
Housing Hervicey

70300 Net Tenent Rented Revenue $9,244,306 fapn, 701 $i2.218.007 $i2,216,087
70400 Tenant Revens - Olher $itd . {1 [T
70500 Yotal'Terant Revanue $0,244,620 0 $0 $2,074,191 ) £ $0 $12.21841 &0 §12,218.411
70600 HUD PHA Operating Granls $28.970,755 | §1,067,050 $710,685 $214,058 §392,304 $302308 § §31,740,044 $31,248,000
70810 Caphisl Granty $3,655.609 $22,008 $1,640,125 $17.340 $7.241,688 §1,241,088
70710 Managemenl Fea 43,220,118 $3,520,119 | -$3.820,419 $0
70720 Assof Manapamont Fas $485,900 $405,800 -$465,000 $0
70730 Book Kesping Fea 376,097 §375,007 -§375,007 §0
70740 Front Line Sendeo Fes §334,043 $334.842 <$334,043 $0
0750 Otiver Fada $485,260 $365,250 ~$28,042 $328,614
70700 TolatFeo Ravanus $4,000.445 $4,860,416 | 54632401 $338,614
76800 Ciher Govemmant Grants $1,409,088 45,623 1,454,878 $1,464,078
71100 Invasiment insoms - Uk d $90,248 $1,14 $rés $24.606 §122,081 Sia3.051
71200 Moigags erest Income $306.414 $90,000 $294,411 $304 441
71300 Proceeds from Disposkion of Atsels Held foi Balo
T4310 Cos\ of Galo of Assels
71400 Fraud Recovery $702 §702 $702
71600 Olher Rovonue §3.062,018 $101,858 $4,002,158 | $4,200030 | -$2,743808 | $1,542,334
71600 Galnor Loss ot Bale af Cepliel Assels
72000 Ynwastmvent Incoms - Restideted
70000 Totel Revorus $46,289,083 | $1,806,009 $1,010,076 4073480 | $237.00% | $1,930426 | €6441,745 | 362334230 | 57276497 | $55,058,303
01100 Administrative Salariew $2,123,020 | $98,070 $187,166 sdo827 $2,895,006 | 8544207 $5,442,257
912060 Auditing Fees $4473 $1,412 $12,000 $3,000 $47,685 $47.583
$1300 Management Fee §2,340,388 £63,619 $2,380,002 | -$2,280,002 §0
01310 DBook-kaeping Fea 309,742 $30,160 §339,022 -$330,022 £0
1400 Advaitishp and Marketing $13,088 $1,438 $54,602 73,018 . §73,018
S1500 Employes Behenl contibitlont - Administralive $1,197.221 $40,82¢ $60,613 $16,183 043,088 $2, 186,172 $2,184,222
1600 Olfice Expenses $33.861 $3,028 §2,002 $45,418 $64,605 $84,8485
170G Legel Expanse $119,780 $03,600 $35,648 $240,328 ~$15,840 $105,388
21800 Travel §56,650 3027 ¥72,528 $130,00% $130,005
$1810 Alacated Overhead
84900 Other $3,624,130 $7,016 $88.421 628,708 24,347 412,737 §4,303,217 | 53,457,028 $928,109
91000 Taols! Onsraling = Adannlsirative §9,948,687 $184,626 0 §436,160 $04,600 $24,347 $4,000,034 | $15204322 | 56,206,792 $9,057,530
2000 Assel Mansgamant Fas $484,000 $465,000 §465,500 $0
92100 Tenari Serdicen - Salatles $208,534 $35.000 $1.840 $264,283 $264,263
92200 Relocation Coste $io3e 29,310 $32318
92300 Erployas Benafll C - Tenant Gor $80,055 $28.303 $500 #2858 12,058
92400 Temant §orvicos - Olher $302,218 §362,218 52,218
92500 Tolal Tenant Barvices $as7.128 $0 §0 1) 79,204 $0 $2,48 76672 §0 $778,670
9300 Water $724,045 $215,933 $4,504 4051, 404 951,484
983200 Elociriohy $2,402,000 $202,681 $20,734 $2.983,580 $2,683,568
23300 Gy $2622.620 £416,105 $8,218 $3,045,007 2,043,007
9300 Fuel 0 $0 $0
£3560 Labor §692,397 $213,088 $305,483 £905,483
93600 Sewe $5726,018 $61,084 $1,268 5006,404 $E08401




4800 Benefil ContdAbutions - Ordnal
oktony T 2 $1,576.20 147,680 s420,308 | $2,04533¢ 82,1456
24000 Tolbl Maktetance $12,202,270 $847 $Ho808 $2540632 $48,159 $367,054 §030,162 | $10,800,488 | 8807405 | $167283098
BS100 Prolociive Servicas « Labor 28 $2071 $237
#5200 Proleciiva Services - Other Conlract Cosls $80,675 51,985 $5,300 $67,800 $37,869
45300 Piolaciive Sevices - Other $71,034 $128,240 $500 $193,174 $190.774
95500 Employse Bensit Contribudtons - Prolsstive
Services
85000 Tolal Protoctive Senvices $182.980 $0 &0 $128,740 $1.085 50 $5,800 $200,014 0 $200,014
85140 Property Insununte $304,633 §32,300 $16,360 848,410 #io4e
86120 Lishily lnswance $465,007 $45¢ $140,63 §33,350 030,875 £83p,675
5130 Workman's Gompensation $024,869 §2.012 14,815 $38,200 $708,706 108,785
95140 A1 Ottwr Insurancs $389,301 4] 41,025 14,232 $614.887 414,937
98100 Yol Insuranes Premivms $1,807,840 $3,44% 0 $168,072 &0 §0 $132,170 s2,212507 §0 $2,212,627
86200 Olhei Genaral Expiniss 048,197 MIB $54,702 $5,607 $3,020018 -506,402 $2,524,647
96210 Compenssled Absoncss 740,208 45304 8,097 §$622,000 622,048
96300 Payrealn Llst of Taxes §343,596 LR $244,768 344,789
26400 Bad dobl - Tenant Reats 347,109 $27.059 $374,006 $974,988
96500 Bad debl- Mortgapes
26800 Bad dobt- Olher $226,360 §226,380 $220,280
BBE00 Baverancs Bxpenss 87,706 . $7,785 §7.705
5000 Tolsh Othor Geneial Exponses £4,003,082 $8.010 80 $311,0M 2] $0 £80,704 $5.300,008 -$98,402 $5.303,204
000 Intarest of Mortgage {or Bonds) Payable $3,439 §3439 $3.459
05720 Interest on Noles Payablo (Bhort end Long Yemn) $1,234,881 $0,784 §1,241,905 $1,241,308
6130 Amortization o Bond lasus Cotly $0 50 $0
$6700 Tofel kerésl Expense end Amailization Gosl $1,234,551 £0 $0 $3,430 $0 §0 $6,754 1,204,744 $0 $1,244,744
86600 Yolal Opanalng Expansas $30,023,382 | $184,737 $710,665 $4,610.007 $214,086 502,301 $5,768,910 | $51,121,580 | -$P2v8407 | $42,845008
gg‘m;"“" of Opseting Revenuls ovar persing $r2350T § Siavaaez | ss00410 gunags | ezzens | stadeizs | Serasis | sH200240 | 40 $12,21,240
9Y100 BExracrdinary Maliensnce
07240 Cawuaky Lossss - Non-capHabized $34,942 3,042 $3,042
B7300 Housing Assinlencs Payments £4,461,008 $1,461085 $1,464,095
67350 HAPR Porteblitin
97400 Deprecistion Expense $7,597,235 $1.58 $88,700 $4,007 $621,302 $8,230.915 $6,230,045
97500 Fraud Losses
B7300 Caollal Gutlsys « GovemmentalFunds
97700 Debt Prineipat Peyment - Govemmenlel Funds
97800 Dweling Unils Ronl Bxpenss
ap000 Tolal Expences $46,572.553 | $1,857413 £710,685 $HOH4 427 $210,995 $392,301 $0,369,212 | 560,884,572 | -$7.276407 | $53,570,078
10010 Operating Transfer In $24,051 $84,00 $64,681
10020 Oporating transter Cuk <$04,601 564,881 -$64,651

10030 Operating Yramfors fromito Primasy Governmeat

10040 Oparaling Yranfers fromAe Component Uni

10050 Procosds from Nolas, Loans and Bonds

10060 Pracesds from Propsity Safas

10070 Extrsordinary llems, Nat Galnfl.oss

10080 SpeclatKams (Nat 3alVLos)

10081 Inter Project Bucess Cash Transfer In




11020 Requirad Anusi Dot Principal Payments §660,307 $0 &0 ] §0 $0 4407 $703.444 $703.444
11030 Boginning Equily $O4052,H5 § $172.8%6 9,084,207 §6,576.002 4508 $0 520,139,021 | $130,928,807 $130.528, 607
300 Pior Parod Adgustmente, EadyTianslarnend | 41 ss0.07 Sta06125 | sais3te ) 0
#1059 Changoain Compenseled Absenca Dalance

11080 Changes In Condingend LIrbiRty Balence

11070 Changas in Unrecopnized Pansion Tramfllon

Linb¥Wty

11050 Chenges In Spocial TemuSeversnce Bensils

Eiabiity

11080 Changas In Akowance for Doubifil Acoowls -

Drweling Rands

11100 Changos In Atowanes for Doublfuf Accounts - Other

1170 Adminlalrative Fas Equity $187,603 $167,800 $187,669
1180 Houting Assistando Paymente Equily $198,679 $106,570 $196,670
11180 Ut Months Avalisble A916p 4800 7302 0 8138t 81341
15210 tomber of Uit Months Leased 40072 4015 7017 ] 51704 51704
1270 Exvess Cash §13.448,186 $13.445,160 $13,445,188
$1840 Land Purchares 0 0 0 %0
11020 Buitiding Purchases $8,840,275 $2i6,853. | $7.005,428 $7,083,128
11830 Fumkuro & Exulpment - Dweling Puchasss $51,793 £0 $51,733 $81,723
$4640 Fumilure & Equipment - Admiplstrative Puichasses STAB754 $30,050 785,743 785,743
11850 L hokd Imp is Purch £0 12 2] $0
11860 infrastructive Puichases 1] 2] §0 50
£3540 OFFP DA Boevice Paymants 0 0 $0 $0
13801 Replacerent Housing Faclor Funds 5t 80 $0 30




SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Federal Grantor:
i Pass

CFDA Through Federal

Number Program Title Entity Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
14.850 Low Rent Public Housing NA $ 22,184,176
 Capital Fund Cluster
14.872 Capital Fund Program ' NA 12,051,846
14.885 Capital Fund Recovery Grant - Formula NA 1,938,426
Total Capital Fund Cluster ' 13,990,272
14,871 Housing Choice Vouchers NA 1,867,056
14.866 Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing NA © 710,665
14.870 Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services NA 237,863
Total U.S. Department of HUD 38,990,032
Total Federal Awards Eﬁpenditures : $ 38,990,032
‘State Awards:

NA State / Local NA 1,409,055
Total State Awards Expenditures $ 1,409,055
Total Federal and State Awards ‘ $ 40,399,087

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Al

Basis of Accounting
‘This schedule is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
"Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations”.

Reconciliation of Total Federal Awards Expenditures to Financial Data Schedule

FDS line 706 HUD PHA Grants $ 31,748,044

FDS line 706.1  Capital Grants 7,241,988

FDS line 708 Other government grants 1,454,878
Less: nonfederal portion (45,823)

§ 40,399,087
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN'TS
P.O. Box 530848
210 N. Highway 17-92
DeBary, Florida 32753-0848

Phone (386) 668-6464 Fax (386) 668-6463

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners HUD, Buffalo Field Office

Buffelo Municipal Housing Authority Lafayette Court
Buffalo, New York 465 Main Street, 2" Floor

Buffalo, New York 14203-1780

We have audited the financial statements of the Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority ("the Authority") as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated March 8, 2011, We ¢onducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
confained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting,
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employces,
in the normal course of perfomlmg their assigned functions, to prevent, or deteot and correct misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s finanoial statements will not be prevented, or detected

and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragvaph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reagonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts and grant
agresments, noncompliance with which could have a direct and matorial effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accotdingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed ne instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Authority’s Board of Commissioners, others
within the entity, and the U.S. Depattment of HUD and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.
g Woes cfecse i,



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANLS
P.0O. Box 530848
210 N. Highway 17-92
DeBary, Florida 32753-0848

Phone (386) 668-6464 Fax (386) 668-6463

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO ITS MAJOR PROGRAMS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

HUD, Buffalo Field Office

Board of Commissioners

Buffalo Municipal Housing Authovity Lafayette Court

Buffalo, New York 465 Main Street, 2" Floor
Buffalo, New York 14203-1780

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority (“the Authority”) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ¢nded June 30, 2010. The Authority’s
major federal programs ate identified in the summary of auditor's resulis section of the acoompanying Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Authority’s compliance based on our audit, '

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptrolley General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Citcular A-I33 requite that we plan and perform the sudit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occutred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as wo considered
necessary in (he circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. QOur audit does not
provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

In our bpinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable
to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
‘performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, and to test and report on internal controf over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal conirol over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funotions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, ot combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
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significant deficiencies, or matetial weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
{hat we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we identified a certain deficlency In internal
control over compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency as desoribed in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2010-1. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in intetnal confrol over compliance, yet important enough to mexit
attention by those charged with governance.

The Authority’s response to the finding identified in our audit is desoribed in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. We did not audit the Authority’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Commissioners, others within the
enlity, the U.S. Department of HUD, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Malcolm Johnson & Company, P.A,
Certified Public Accountants

DeBary, Florida
March 8, 2011




Bultale, New York

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Basic Financial Statetnents
Type of auditors' report issued: , Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

~  Material weakness(es) identified? . No
~  Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered to be material
wenknesses? S None reported
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs;

~  Material weakness(es) identified? No
~  Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered to be material
weakness(es)? Yes
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337 Yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program
14.850a — Low Rent Public Housing
14.871 ' Housing Choice Vouchers
14.872 Capital Fund Program
14.885 American Recovery and Reinvestient Act (ARRA)
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $1,169,701

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes



IDULTALU, 116GYY AULn

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Theore were no Financial Statement Findings:

SECTION IIf - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2010-1 Condition:

CFDA Number:
Questioned Costs:
Criteria:

Cause/Effect:

Recommendation:

Reply:

Deficlencies in Maintenance of Section 8 Tenant File Documentation

NY 002 Voucher Program
In a sample of 10 randomly selected files from Section 8 participants, the
following exceptions were noted:

5 files were not récertified by the receértification date

1 file lacked 30 day notice of rent increase
FSS participant files review showed that the PHA was not appropriately
monitoring the program or monthly escrow payments during the fiscal year
2010.

14.871
None
Requirements for file documentation contained in 24 CFR.

Loss of internal controls over the tenant annual certification process causes
errors in timeliness of these certifications.

We recommend that the Authority establish internal control policies and
procedures sufficient to achieve program compliance with regard to tenant
eligibility. ' ’ o

We concur with the auditor’s recommendation. Since the review, we have
continued to implement periodic full staff review of folders. This activity
enables the Authority to ensure that internal controls are improved and to
ensure that the proper documentation is included in all folders. We intend
to resolve all of these findings by fiscal year end.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

There were no Prior Audit Findings.



Dawn . Sanders
Exeswdive Divector
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Corrective Action Plan — June 30, 2010 Audit Findings

_ 2010-1 Condition:  Deficiencios in Maintenance of Section 8 Tenant File

Documentation

Stops to Resolve: C. ~ o

’ The recertification process starts three months before the anniversary date.
All recertification packages must be mailed out prior to the end of the
month. Deadlines have been established for mailings, returns, and
reappointments, to guarantee a 30- day notice for increased tenant

. payment, Ifthefile reinains incomplete, a 30-day notice will be sent to
the tenant and landlord. A monthly calendar has been established to
identify all dus dates. " S

. We have developed a caseworker repott to track monthly progress. All
incomplete files will be reported 45 days before the anniversary dafe,
Implement checklists for file documentation to maintain consistent files,
Establish bi-weekly mestings with casewotkers for a caseload update and
to expedite any problems or concerns they may have. Continue to train
staff on updated procedures.’ ‘ ..

» The supervigor is to pull a monthly recertification report and track those
ttiat are falling behind to ensuré completeness. .

¢ Monitor recettification and HQS teports in the PIC website.

. Teansmit 50058’s at least twice monthly and review and correct all PIC

errors,” . o
. Audit a sample of monthily files for each caseworker.
. One additional caseworker has been added to the staff to reduce caseloads

and expedite recertification process.

Timefiame:. Weintend to x_'esollve all findings before the end of the next fiscal
year endl. e

_Individual Responsible for Correction: | Susan Trillizio : :

Administrator of Housing Assistance
Section 8 '

S

1. 1 DAwn B. Salders

4



Violence Against Women Act

Statement of the goals, objectives, policies or programs that will enable the
housing authority to serve the needs of child and adult victims of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault or stalking.

(A) List of activities, services or programs provided or offered by an agency
either directly or in partnership with other service providers, to child or
adult victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or
stalking:

BMHA provides a list of service providers who specialize in working with
victims of domestic violence with the initial move-in packet as well as making
it available to all residents through the Tenant Councils and Management
Offices.

1. Family Justice Center of Erie County
237 Main Street, 14™ Floor
Buffalo, NY 14203
(716) 558-SAFE

2. Child & Family Services
Crisis Hotline: (716) 884-6000

3. Shelter for Abused Women & Children - Haven House
(716) 884-6002

(B) List any activities, services or programs provided or offered by the
Housing Authority that helps child and adult victims of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to obtain or
maintain housing:

In accordance with the Violence Against Women And Justice Department
Reauthorization Act of 2005, Public Law 109-162 (“V.A.W.A”"), any criminal
activity directly relating to domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking,
engaged in by a member of tenant’s household or any guest or other person
under tenant’s control, shall not be cause for termination of assistance, tenancy,
or occupancy rights if the Tenant or immediate member of Tenant’s family is the
victim or threatened victim of that abuse. Tenant shall be notified of the need to
file with Landlord a certification form or similar document, and Landlord shall act
in accordance with guidelines necessary to protect the victim from further abuse,
including terminating the tenancy of any person abusing said victim. The victim's
confidentiality shall be protected in any reasonable manner, and Landlord shall
discuss with the victims and any law enforcement authority the appropriateness
of possible transfer if such is deemed necessary.




The Housing Authority will provide Notice to all residents in Public Housing and
Section 8 a notice outlining the law, how the law protect them, what they should
do to get an abuser out of the household and what they need to provide to the
Housing Authority for protection under VAWA. Notices will be given to each
tenant at time of annual certification with the tenant providing signature as proof
of receipt.

The Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority has a working relationship with the Erie
County District Attorney’s Domestic Violence Section. Per the ACOP, victims of
domestic violence are considered an emergency and are provided priority status
in terms of obtaining BMHA housing.

(C) List any activities, services, or programs provided or offered by the
Housing Authority to prevent domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault and stalking or to enhance victim safety in assisted families:

The Boys & Girls Clubs of Buffalo offers prevention/education programs to
youth ages 8-17 years old that are designed to promote self-esteem, healthy
attitudes/ lifestyles and relationships — dating, date violence and date rape.



BUFFALO MUNICIPAL HOUSING AUTHORITY

5.2 GOALSAND OBJECTIVES

HUD Strategic Goal: Increasetheavailability of decent, safe, and affor dable housing.

X

PHA Goal: Expand the supply of assisted housing

Objectives:

X Apply for additional rental vouchers:

X  Reduce public housing vacancies:

X Leverage private or other public funds to create additional housing opportunities:
X]  Acquireor build units or developments

PHA Goal: Improve the quality of assisted housing

©)
Ke)
3
<
R

Improve public housing management: (PHAS score)

Improve voucher management: (SEMAP score)

Increase customer satisfaction:

Concentrate on efforts to improve specific management functions: (list; e.g.,
public housing finance; voucher unit inspections)

Renovate or modernize public housing units:

Demolish or dispose of obsolete public housing:

Provide replacement public housing:

Provide replacement vouchers:

DA DA

PHA Godl: Increase assisted housing choices

Objectives:

Provide voucher mobility counseling:

Conduct outreach efforts to potential voucher landlords
Increase voucher payment standards

Implement voucher homeownership program:

Implement public housing or other homeownership programs:
Implement public housing site-based waiting lists:

XX

DA

HUD Strategic Goal: Improve community quality of life and economic vitality

X PHA Goal: Provide animproved living environment
Objectives:



XX X X

Implement measures to deconcentrate poverty by bringing higher income public
housing households into lower income devel opments:

Implement measures to promote income mixing in public housing by assuring
access for lower income families into higher income devel opments:

Implement public housing security improvements:

Designate devel opments or buildings for particular resident groups (elderly,
persons with disabilities)

HUD Strategic Goal: Promote self-sufficiency and asset development of families and

individuals

4 PHA Goa: Promote self-sufficiency and asset devel opment of assisted households

Objectives:

4 Increase the number and percentage of employed persons in assisted families:

X Provide or attract supportive services to improve assistance recipients
employability:

X Provide or attract supportive services to increase independence for the elderly or

families with disabilities.

HUD Strategic Goal: Ensure Equal Opportunity in Housing for all Americans

X PHA Goal: Ensure equa opportunity and affirmatively further fair housing

Objectives:

X Undertake affirmative measures to ensure access to assisted housing regardless of
race, color, religion national origin, sex, familial status, and disability:

X Undertake affirmative measures to provide a suitable living environment for
familiesliving in assisted housing, regardless of race, color, religion national
origin, sex, familia status, and disability:

=4 Undertake affirmative measures to ensure accessible housing to persons with all

varieties of disabilities regardless of unit size required:



HOPE VI

The Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority has completed all phases of demoalition and
construction associated with HOPE VI. The Community Self Sufficiency portion is 100%
complete through a contract with Erie Regional Development Corporation. Final closeout
documents were submitted to the Department of Housing & Urban Development in April 2011.



Mixed Finance Modernization or Development

Phase Il of the A.D. Price Courts is presently under an historical preservation review.



BUFFALO MUNICIPAL HOUSING AUTHORITY

2012 AGENCY PLAN

DEMOLITION/DISPOSITION

DEVELOPMENT DEVELOPMENT # JACTIVITY TYPE APPLICATION STATUS # OF UNITS |ACTION TIMELINE

AD Price Courts NY002002 Demolition/Disposition Planning 170|Total Development TBD
Woodsoon Gardens |NY0020032 Disposition Under Review 30(Total Development TBD
Commodore Perry NY002003 Demolition/Disposition Planning 300{Walk-up Units TBD




HOMEOWNERSHIP PROGRAM

The BMHA does not operate an homeownership program through public housing.

The BMHA Section 8 program presently has thirteen (13) clients utilizing Section 8 funds for
homeownership.



(200Z/¥) 1'52005-00H Wio)

LLOZ/LLIZD L4940 - UOISSILANG 1| LING

“a1ai] papniset 3 JEUS SPUTY JHH ,

5 [EnuNy PRSI © Jo Loday PUR SOURILIA3IS]

o) pajpqduics aq o] ,
Uoday] UONRN|EAT] PUY SDURILIONS,

“sienexado Jof SIURID 447 10 94007 osn Lewr wrasBeimus :3“&3.« I8pUn Yia SYHd

séﬁ.ﬁe&%ﬁ\

3 r

e 1010211(] Buisnol afqud Jo amensig uﬁn— 10305 PANN0SXH JO a))eugy
SamERaly UoHEAtasu0)) AB131 0 Pajtiey O Jurl g0 ubowy| o
SIS0 PIBH - Aan0og 01 poReay Gz Sl Jo Jumomy| g
S150)) YO§ - AN 0] pAHRSY (O sur] Jo unouy|  £g
SOTHALIDY )5 L0308 0) PAjelay (7 AUI'T JO UnowY| 77
SaMAlNY JdT 09 BARY OF W Jo junomy| g
- - - 886°0L¥°L (61-7 SUILJ0 WS} JURLD [ENVNUY JO JUnGWY| g
- 6L EL1 (0Z 911 J° %4 posaws 3ou Aemi} ASUISUNIUO)) Z0SI| 61
- " Z - NIOWABE|
WAL JO WNSAS u1A plad 231A18G 1qac] Jo WOLRZIRISEI0D 0006 481
- - - - VHd 2ui Aq pied 201A135 30a(] 1o UOPEIEDIRN0) [0ST| 81
- - - - o SIIANOY Jusmdoppasc gori| L1
- - - - 51800 suoneooy [°g6F1] 91
UOHEGSUSWS( 0N, 0F JUIACIY Z6F1| SL
- - - - uomowRyg ekl bl
- - - - Juswdmby uEmuBﬁ.m.nZ SLvll €I
- - - $O8'COT [ sasmionng dujjpmap-woN oLFi] €I
- - - 000°¢ET AjqRPUAXI-UON - Jusumlinby Tunjesd §'oorl] 11
- - - 618166 ¢ salTgonilg SUMA 09F1| 01
- - - 000°cH Juaasoxdua] NS oskI| &
- - - - ucsinboy o1ig Opp1] 8
- - - ¥09°TH9 SIS0 pue 539 0Lk L
SFeUIB(] PABPIDY] S1F1| 9
PRy I1FY| €
- - - GBLS9L (12 5130 %01 Pasao WG A8T) TONERSTERUPY ([ §] ¥
- - - 28E°LSh SIOURACIUN] NOURDEae 80K1| €
N " - 9L9°eST’l ¢ (123U J0 %07 pesos tou Gt} SUOLBISGD O0F1] €
Spu JID-UoU B0l
I mm..,.ﬂn.nll..wbﬂ“@\ e T
- umcu ooy _Eo.r 150 paBIGES 0L junoasoy juewdajaaeq £gq Aewwng eur|
Modoy wonenjes] pue ssuBMLCY [BU]L [ :Gugpug pousd soy podey uopgenieag pue nu:n:...otun_ —l
{ "ON U0JSIOY) JaWeNRE [eRuLY pestren [ sejauafiagymiajansi( o) satssoy] | iii) T i
:ddD 30 g
‘reacsddy Jueip 3o Add 10N TUERID 10308.] SuStol uamsordey ALMOH.LNY ONISNOH TVAIDINNI O TVAINYg
(4114 Zi-10S200dS0AN 10N uesp wesdosd pung [endes :
SUBID 3O A4 Jsaquny pue ad4 | Jusax) BWeN viHd
: Alemomg ] Jaed
FI07/0€/ sajdxy
9TTO-LLST "oN HINO AdOD TYNIA Z10Z waFory Juroweny,y puny [Ede)

SUFSROFY welpuy pue dYqng Jo WO
Jusurdofasag weqn % Swsnof Jo jusunmdacg '§n

pize Jo)oBy{ Buisnor] Eququum wesdorg prg [ende;y ‘weaSory puny [eyde

podsy toljen{eag PUE JOUBUMOLIDJ/IUSUINE)G [ENUTY




{B0OZ/7) |'$L00S-AMNH W0y z Woday uoHenEAg oNEUIGLAY By) 4] paadios 29 O,
USUISNELG pasiaey B J0 poday] uolen|BAT S0WRII0 ] 21l 10f poraydmics aq of .

- 000'sEZ 39945 kueIsino 92 'SIVIOL

000'6eZ

SN.LY ’¢ Joou aogjday | mohe-ame 40

BTSSR B

- jJaang Adad 00¢ ‘STV.LOL

3

‘ moom-am@ Zl-40

- , 1046 Weqg] sjuswaosdwy jeyides igTviol

Jc_c_mt moa-ame gl-4

(e e !

08469,

e0Ly1L-(666)-¢1-40

SRV

owm.mmm ) ‘ onO _EEwu 10} mmn_

£ ,.. & #3133y B fe . nd SeRIAIOY
MIOMN JO SN)EIS <R Bueny| =, sanobejen YIoAA 10Jely JO uonduasa(] [elauany SPIM-YHAweN
uuoo _w5u< _Eo.r 1800 papewnsy oy AeQ soquiny Juswdojeaag
L _ (0N JuBIL) 10708] FSTOF wawaae day]
41114 — oNFoAT dA 10 FLED0T00 9 DAN B D Taion Fing T ALRIOHL(V ONISNOH TVLIDINOKW OTVAANg
JURL) Jo XA7 [BRpo] Jdqumy pue 3diy, jugron BWEN YHd

. sasu g suproddng Iy Jaud

TIGZ/0E/Y Sardxy - - _
9T20-LLST ON SO AdOD IVNIA 71007 weadorg Fmpouenr] puny ende)
SUISNOH uEIpL] P DIjqng JO SN0 . _:_q J0yau Buisnop] uswaaejday] wesdos puny pde) weidoug pung [ende)
wawido]243(T Ueqip] 79 FuISneH] J0 wewledad 'S ooy CONENJEAT Pite SOUBWLICHSJAUDWIRIBIS [EUUY|




{g00Z/¥) 1'92005-ONH W0}

nodayy vonEn[Esg sousuIGHa A 10] pejajdines ag o,
"TRUWALRIS PISIARY & 40 HodDY uONENTEAT 2ouRuLIOjRg S J0f parsiduroo sq o, |

. ‘. i SPARIY
: e KRS /o e, d B -
HOM 10 STEIS 1500 [emay [2101 150D PAJRLINST (610 Rapuenty " aq |  SeMoBeeo yiom tolei jo uonduasaq [eieusp s doiona.
_ DN a._wm_\cwmu%m Bushop] JuowooB)doy
. z1o0Z T IiD FFoSTTBaAN o iy oo T | . ALMOHLAV ONISNOH TVAIDINW OTvaANg
33U JO A 4.1 [E19P9 JOqWNN pue odAL JUBIS BUEN VHid

X

sogeg aunioddng :If o]

FI6z/0E/y oy

9ZTYLLST "ON HNO

B wiesdosd Juroueu) J puny e3deD

BUISNOZT UvIpUT PUB A[qNd Jo 931430

puB 101984 SUISnO} Jsasupdey weigerd pung eide)) ‘weidosg puny jeldes

1udoraaadg wequn) i Sugsioy Jo wenpedsT g0

>$ou TN ZL0Z
i

HO05] UCSIBNJEAT PUR J0UBKIINLIS JAUAU;E)S [Bnuny




(800Z1¥) 1°52008-GNH uMoL

yoday] uonen|EAT} AuRLLOYIeF o) Joj pajeduios ag o, :
HOUIBIG PASIATY € IO 1oday] uoNEnjEAT 0UBULIOLIS] JU) 10y pateduicd 3G of .

= 5{e)01 j0al0id
P3INPAYDS MOAA ON
000°04Z S|Ej0. Jo010id
- 000047 0¥l Buippng d5uBuS)UIEK MON JNISUCD |
9/Z'18 2051 T Thousbuiued | BzogL-(04L )2 L0 |
£65'0.1 0EVL S80IMIaE g 51500 ‘5984 Jv| eogvL-(01)21-40
RS 80F) sjuswieaaidw) Juawabeve| egorL-(0L)-21-30
0ZZ'91% 90vL suenesadg| zgopL-(01)-21-40
JOM JO S : #103y B Il o ey
Nop Jo smegs 1900 PEICWRST [£10L fyguenp) 7 -+ | seucBeieg yiop Jofey jo uopduoseq |eseuag E,ﬂ_ﬂ__”_nuuhﬁ_ﬂuaa
~ | JON 1UBJLY I0108,] BujsnoH Nenmoeday
ZLoz o) 3355 T T05T00AB0/.N o e WS Pty i ALINOHLAY ONISNOH TVAIDINAIW OTVAiINg
QUL Jo A 40 [eLapag i JqumN puE IdA ], JuerD ‘SWEN YHd
. saseq cundoddng :y 338g
TT0Z/08/p s31ydxq i

9TTO-LLET "ON FNO

weaBorg Buroukury pung fende)

Fuisnop ueipu) pus migng Jo aogo

AdOD TYNIA ZL0Z

PpuE Jojoe uIsnoH wawaou|doy wyosd puny Jeide) ‘uerfor g pang jEnde)

Hoday uoiPn|eaz] PUE B0UBNULIOID{AUSIUMEG [ENUWY

woudoganagy uequp) 2p Suisuol jo wawmpedad s




(8602/¥) 1'52005-QNH Wioy

Wody wolEnAY IvueMuopIRg 3yl 1oy pajstdwes aq o), ,
AW PASIADY © 10 Hoday] uanen{eAd SJUBULC]Ia] S Jof pjejdwed ag o], .

FTEG-LLSE "ON ENO

s
HOM j0 Smigs 3803 [enioy [0l 150D poselsS o) fguent AHW sauoBayes suopm sofep jo uonduoasaq [eieuen s._“u“mmmwﬂmsus
zZ10Z - o I :s_k.us o T ALIHOHLAV ONISNOH TVAIDINNI O'TvA4Na
: SJUBAD) JO X4 JeA8p9, JIquInn pus 99'& eIy T :E.-c.mE_.__.wM an_u o
TT0Z/E/Y Saaydxy .EDU.uKEFN.EN _ - muen_ N

pue .B_csm Suwisnoy Juawoaejdoy wesBosd pon g ide) “werdord pung fende

[FUISNOH uEIpu] PUE MGNT JO SO

Mooy UOBENILATT PUR SOUBILEOMJ/AUSLIIE]S [HILAIY|

[wowdopsasg weqar 7 Fwsrorr yo weunedsg 'S0



(800z#%) }"S2006-QNH W0 9 Moday votiuneAy JoueusC R ) J0f PAaTdReD 9q 01,
‘JUSWINEIE PasiAayl B 10 Hoday UCHEN[BAT SIHBULIOTIS] a1} 10 pajaidurcd aq o, L
089°Z2 S[€)o Joslolg
08522 oSkl sseooe Jocop ouoag| egz-(Li)-zl-20
- sie101 100loid
I S M PSINPSU3S YIOM ON| B0Z-(L1)-21-40
P Mwmw :
- SIEJ0). 1o00ig
" peInpauos op ON| egl-(11)} 214D
o 69€'92 zZosh Aouabunuod| ezog1-(11)-21-40
v.8'8¥1 2] S30IBG g 81800 "se8d ry| egerL-(1L)TL-4D
LiG'2E 80¥1 syuswanodw| Juswebeuen| egorL-{11)21-20
1.9'09Z g0vl suogesadq| egowl-(1L 1)-Z1-4D
80 ooml 0 o S3AANOY
NIOAA JO SMY)S - u.mmrmuf ot mn. 150D PARANST 1110 Ayuenp %“ e”_< seuobajen yiop Jofe Jo vopdussaqg ieueg SPIM-YH/BUEN
Jaquany yuswdojsasg
_ 0 Wie1D) 1opeg Smsnol] wawzogday
zLoe TP FL308T0090/H K U5 mamlg g T ALTHOHLOY DNISOOH TVARDINIIN OTvVAdNg
Hugin) yo Jetopag , Jqum jy pie>dAT, Jueis U ) e viHd
_ , sased sunoddng I Jred
LI0Z/0E/p saatdny |

TEO-LLET OM HINO

EEmE.a Buraueur pung jesde

SuISneT UBIPUI Blk S7Iqnd JO IOIID

PUE J010¥g Suisnoy eureaeidey weidorg pung jende]) ‘werdoig pung [ende)

Juswidojasagy urqI) 3 Swisnog Jo Juawedag S

LL_DU JYNIH 2102
_ ,

ooy UOREN[EAF PUE 20UEUII0)IJ/USLEARIG [ENETY




poday Woen|BAY SIUBULIOMD] St Jy pasajduiod 9g o z

(8002/¥) 1'54008-ONH wuoy L
E»:B.Ew PIFIADY € IO WOGIY UONLNVAL FouBLLIO s alfy 16] pajaldines aq o L,
. B ]
#1390y SFRIAIY
0 o 8N =
NAOMA § e 1505 |8 3 o< vy 3560 POYRINET [B10) fguenyy -a8Q sauobojesn yion Jolew Jo uopduasaq elouan , ””__z_ Muh.ﬂuﬂ .
_ ‘O JUBIE) 0J08] SUBNOE] JHeNeoeley - :
zLoz — onrsep) d110 __ Vh10SZ00JSDAN ON WD weidaig pung widey ALYHOILLV ONISNOH TVADINON O'1V4ANg
HUBLD JO XA [BIIpR) JaqiuiiN pus un}k JueL) :alUeN YHd
sagied sujodang <y Meg
1107/8e/p sondxg n l
9TTOLLST "ON HINOD A I ZL0Z R weidoig Suoueu] pung jende))
duSnoR] UBIPUT puB SN J6 SO Ea .aucum mEm:n: jusuraoe|dayy wedorg pung jende) ‘weidosd punyg jepded
|mewdoranac wenin) % Supsnog Jo Juewpedas 5 HOGSY UOHEN[EAT PUB SOUBLLIONS JANRIIEG [BIUWY




{8002/¥) 1'5L005-QNH Wioy

Moday uoljEn|eAZ soupuLIopad 21 20f pesidwiod sq oL,
"RISWSIBIS PASIANY © 30 |00 WOHEN[EAR FoUBULIIIR] Ayl 50) Pala)dilion aq o |

000'ZEL s{eje 30ajoid
. . .ommmh - osyl 107 Bupied "9j0 YWBl sbueua| agp-(z1)-Z1-40
000"t ogrl ('sBp1q v2) shun Bulomp 2um-34| e90-(z1)zi-d40
gze'el 2051 fousbuyuoy| egog|-(ZL)-21-40
Lag'al 0EFlL SO0JMAS B $180D ‘004 Iy| eoevL-(21)-21-40
Li9'ge q0v1 spualuanoidu) yuawabeuep| egoyL-(21)1-21-490
] Po0'LEL a0FL egovL-(Z1)-2L-40
e #309y 0 s8RIAROY
MO JO BNIEIS 1800 [BNIOY [E10L 1500 PajRLIRST [210) fAuuenp ‘Asg saoBajen o Joleyy jo uopduoasaq jelsusn Bn”_ﬂnﬂﬂﬁwﬂuﬂ”&a
_ O JUBIny 10508, Fulsnof] powaos[day
zZioe - o) 33 11} 0SZ00dS0AN SR TUED Weoid pang [Hide ALTEOHLNV DNISNOH TVADINNA OTvA40d L
UBID) JO E.m _Eaeau.— 5 JUNN pue adA JUEIH BWEN YHd
T SogEq sunoddns | J1ed
TI07/0%/p s2aulxy {

STTO-LLET ON HINO

|fursnor uwpuy poe o31qnd 36 20030

weBol4 Furonduig pung [epde])

-Em Jotos,] Sursnof Jwawaosjday werdold puny [ejide]) ‘weidosd puny fprdesy

|suausdoaaacy weqary 29 Fusnop Jo wawnedag 50

>n_—0.uluﬁz_n_|~rrmw
[

Loday UOREN]EA] PUD SUBULIOLSJ/UBUIRIEIS JENUY




(2002/¥) L'SL008-ANH W0 6 Uoday uonEN[BAT SOUBLLIGKISJ Y1 Joj patajduios aq o], .
JUBUIDING PasiAdy B o poday uonERiRAT SOUBLIOIS sy} Jof pajaldurod ag of '
- 92L'e2¢ s|e30l J0alosd
) 008'2¢ 09¥1L $OXOq [lew ¥ swoosa soelded| ake-{02)-21-40
- - 9/68'G8l 08kl | slem lousur lieder ‘somIe 8)EINSUl ‘51004 eoejdey
- p S{EJ0] J99l04d
- PaINPeYOS HOA, ON
- 000°5¢g) SjEj0 1 350l04d
) - 000'GE1 Govl £10j0BdWOD Ysey soe|dey|
B 5188 | zosi 7T KdeBupuog| ezos)-(02)-21-49 |
N Z0L'05 oeyl SS0ISG '§ 5i80D "seed I/ eoerL-(02)-21-40
- i129'2¢ 8o¥L . Siuswanoidul uswabeusi| eg0rL-(02)-2L-40
- v11'06 90v L suonetedo| egop|-(0z)-l-40
o SH ﬁfm._«., . S TS P . . | soliAnoY
O [t SRR TRl o ; . -
NIOp JO SRS ﬁou B (5101 1509 PAYBLINST (EOL Apueny -8 saNoBayen yuop dofep Jo uondusssq [eisuss ) Hﬂiﬂuu_ﬂﬁm“ \
& 10N JURI) 20)08,1 TuIsnof] Juawadday
Zhoz ] HonrsaA) 4240 LLLOSZO0S0AN N ueID waidard pung juidas) ALHONLAY DNISNOH TVIIDINAIW O..—Sibn |
Ul Jo jelapa ) Pqun N pug ddA g, JueIs) “WEN YHA
o Sapeg sunioadns :Ij xed
TH0ZAE/p sondxg . . _ _
9CUrLLET ON WO AdOD 1YNIH ZL0Z wieidol Supoireard pung fendey
BUISIOH UBIPIE PUB Dlyqng JO SARIC n__D ; pue .35.& Burstop] uewsotjdoy witiSorg pung jende)) ‘weidoaf pung eudsy
sundojeaa] ueqin) % Fusnoy jo juswnsedad SN | - U049y UOYER{BAT PUE S0UBULIOLIAJAUAUISIBIS [EAUDY




{8002/ 1°5L006-GNH wio} 0l podoy uogEn[eAg RouRULIONRd 31} 10 PaIS[dinad ag o], .
JUIUISIRG PASIASY U 10 Lodoy UCHENEAZ] SIUGHIIOLIA 24} 303 PHaIim0s 99 0L |,

|
M‘ ; , ‘ So[jlANSY
i Niopp Jo smeyg S S s fnueny| T salzoBajes yiop Jofeyy Jo uongduosaq [eiduan SpIA-VH/OWEN
uwoo _u=«u< _30._. 350D pajyelunsy jejol ABQJ Joquiny juswdojaasg
. _ ON JUBID) 10)98] BUISnol] luawaoejday
¢ _._.WN —— {oN/saA) 40 b1 OSTOOJIDAN (0N Juelg wesSold pung [eiidas wbmo:m.mm.uw_wmmwm n{EUHZDE o.,_im:m
EAD JO KL [BIepad A3qUINN pue 3d4 ], JueD ‘OWEN YHd
: sadey suploddung 1 3Ted
TY0z/0c]Y soardxa = _ 1
9TEO-LLET ON HNO A we1d0;q Sulourui] _.EE— lendt))
SISO Hepuy pue Nqnd ¢ 930 pue ._23"- Fusnop] Juswdaridoay wesdorg pung [eide) “Wedorg pung jende
Juswdojassg ueqrn) 5 Smsnol jo uswpedag ‘ST | " {roday UOLENjRAT PUE F0UBUNOLID]AUSLUNEYY [BIULY




(8002/¥) 1 'SL00G-QNH Wic}

paday] HonENgEAZ SAURIIGNA] ) 10y patarduioa s o,

“JAURGENS PASTADY 8 10 noday WONENBAZ] SOUBMLIRIIS] 3} 10) vauuun—Eau aqal |

s[e}o 1 15601

PaINPayYds HOM ON

sfejo] joaloid

PaNPSLOS HioM ON

| - ZrL 0l 205} Fousbunuod | ezga6 (12} 21-49
- 69¢'LG cer) S80IBS B 51507 'sesd | eockl-(1L2)-2L-4D
o - 12928 80FL sjuawanoidw) wawabeuep| egori-(12)-Z1-40
- 808'201 aopl suonesadg| egovL-(L2)-2L-40
MOM Jo SMEYS Y TN Amueng| #3%%Y | - gani0Baen yaom 1ofew o uondusseq (essues ooy
1500 poy _ ns3 11301 Aeg ) Jagquingy Juswdojaaec]
‘ON TURIL) 10j08] BUISNOH Waurorjday]
el {ON/SOR) dadd| L1 09Z00dB0AN 0N 51D Weidond pang [0 ALIYOHLAY ONISNIOH TVIJINAN 0TV~ |
IJEEE) JO X T (B3PI Joquiny pus onmrh Juein T emeN WHA
saoeq sunoddng :I13ied
TT0z/08/p soandxg a il .
SCLO-LLST ON ENO AdOD YNNI ZLOZ weigorg Guousung puny Bide);
BUISTIOH UIPU] Pt DEGN JO 200JO puB 30)o8,] Fumsnoy WaLe]day weifold pung jende) ‘weidoig puny jeide))
Juaudojaascy wegin) 2 Susnoy o Juaunedsd ‘§n yedey] vonEnEAY PUB OUBULIONIDIAUSULIEL [ENUNY




Haday uojen[BAT douBwI0ia Sy} Joj parepdiues aq 01 .

(8002/%) 1'$2008-QNH U0} z
TUINRIE)S PesinaY B So Woday] uonun[uAz ssusuLIofiag ay) fof pajejdutos aq o, .
. 000°09Y S|€}0, J06104g
L - 000'0S¥ 0o¥L 5dnosj. 9g-08 9iErouSY| BOZE-(22)-z1-40
= . 51501 10910id
- pPeINpayos YoM oN
- - 8[e)0] 393]04d
- PAINPALSS JIOM ON
T e T zogy . T fousbunuod| BZogL-(ZZ)2 4D
- - . OERL SeJABG § 550] 398d Y| e0crl<(Za)ZL-4D
- 1L9'ZE g0¥1 sjuswisnoldw awabeuely| egoyy-2g)-z1-40
- - 0¥l suonesado] egdrl-(Z2)-Z1-40
MOM J0 sSMmElS fpueng| ¥V 6 soM Jofei 40 ond EOIIANDY
guenp| sspofisyes ¥ f nduoseq [eleusn APIM-VH/OUIEN
1800 pajetues |0l AsQ 100NN Juewdojaasg
0 | _ 0N JuBIDy 103087 Hushof Juawaonidag :
ez e {ON/Eo3) 9305 1105200 d90AN R Win wedorq pur D ALNMOHLAY ONISNOH TVAIDINNW OTv440d
3UBID JO X 4 [BI2P3, 1 AIqUNN puE IUAT, JUEID BweN YHd
saded aunaoddng [ )3ieg
THZ/0E saidxa B |
9ZZ0-LL5E 'ON ENO AdO2 VNI 2102 urerdosg dupsusul] pury [midusy
SuISR0}] UBlpY] pUR DY[GNJ JO SO ] PUt JOJIB] mz_macm yeauoppdoy wasdold punyg |eyide) “wedord puny julde))
puowdojoasq ueqin 3 Fupsnop jo wowiedaq ‘g uoday uonktes PUk S3URULICHS IUDUIAES [IuuY,




(800ZfF) |'52005-QNH UMO}

£l

Hoday Uoilen|EAy aotielirojIag iy JoJ pajopdwos aq o], 2
WHWRIRLG PASIASY ¥ 10 Uodoy] UDIBN|SAY souewioniad syt 10y pareldwos ag of, |

3

e
ExfsAhbath

00002 5[ej0 | 190lodd
000'0L2 0i¥l Buipjing adueuajUIEW MBU JONAISUGD
3OpA JO SIS 1850 PEIBWIRST 930) Anueny uw.uu& sauofisjen yiop Jolety jo uopdisosag (Rreuon %ﬂﬁmﬂumz
- d Jequiny juswidojersd
zZL0zZ R “ 10N JueIs) 10401, Fnisnopy justuson[day] -
{ONse Y a0 FLHOSTODBOAN ON Walty WeiSoi piin g [7H303 ALMOHINY ONISNOH TY4IJINOIN O TY¥AINH
uesrs Jo Ad4d [e19payg I3quinN pue SdAT jueIn cm N vHd
sased sunaoddng :I1 318
T10Zi0g/y Pondxgy - _

wesfold Surouenyy piny jede)

'E.Em N g0

Jussnops weipu[ pus oygng Jo WO

>n__DDI._HZ._n_|NE.w

pum soion,] Butsaol] Jusiasatday weifos] puny penden weiSorg puon [endeny

|vstdejsasg ueqn 77 Smsnop Jo wowpedag g1y

Joday UONBNEAT PUE SIUBNLIOLA JAUSNE]S [ENLUY




10day UOHEN[BAT SOUBIHIOFIS] 34} 10] pajojdutos ag o ,

(@0021¥) 1'SL00G-QNH Wuo} ‘ v
UBWSIBG pasiaay] B 10 Hoday uonunRAg SOURULIYES] aYl 10} palidiued 9q 01, '

- - §|e10) Ja8lo/d

| L - - T T T el SeyINOY uawdolans

N 2051 ‘ Aausbunuog| ez0gL-{€2)-2L-40
- - oevl sediueg g SIS0 se8d 3/v| B0cr|-(€2)-¢l-4D
- 1492¢ 80v1 sjuatanoldul) Juawabeuep | egoyL-(€2)-2L-40
o - - g0¥1 e00vi(€2)-21-40
; ; : : #1300V SaAnoyY
o i k2 .
YoM Jo smEeg 1807 [ENISY 1301 i 1609 PAeWINsT (301 Hpuenp aaq sauofajen yaop sofey Jo uondusseg |essusD ‘_aa“.ﬂghwﬁﬁuu%
i ‘ _ 0N JIEID) I0)OR] FUISROE] Nroutroe]day
clLoe ToN58R) 940 V105200 90AN O WEID Wi pur o | ALTHOHLAY ONISAOH TYJIJINNA OTVAING B
HUEID) JO A4 Jea9paq JBOunN pue 3dA ] weis[
‘ T - sageg gunioddns I Jed
110Z/0¢/y saaidxg - _
9ZTOLLST "ON HINO AdOD TN ZL0Z - wiexdoid Fugoueur pung jeydes)
duishor UBpuL pue Mg 10 30130 - . pue fopseg Sursnor] woueoeday werdorg pun, [ende)y ‘uriBol g pung jende)
Jwidoppaag ueqip] % Amsney yo nmwedag] mD HOCy] UORENJRAT PUR SOURULIDIISJAUBIIIG JEnuiy,




§1 vodoy uoneEnjeAl JTURIIONS] 2} J0f pajajduos g o], z

(80021} 1 '52005-0NH uugy
‘UalIING PAsIASY 10 Moday ONEN[RAT #outuNOLIRd S JOF pale)dios 2q o] .

- - S|ejn ] joafolg

B SR EA— A - FoppotEs Yo

- 2051 Aousbunuo| ezogL-(r2)-21-40

- - 0Ek) seniAles g S180Q ‘seed 3/v| eogvl-(re)-zl-40

. 129°2E g0¥L sjuewanosdw| Juswsabeuep| egor1{pz)-2L-30

- - 0¥l | o suoesado| egoyl-(rg)-zi-40

T BARIAIDY
Mo Jo smeg gy - Ayuenp a.-8< sauoBayen yiops Jofel jo uoydussaq jeisuan SPIA-VH/SuIEN
180D PEIEUINET |EJ0), AeQ Jogquinp Juswdoljsaag
, _ 0N JURED) JOJOB,] SupsnoH Justeaau|day]
Lz N orseR) aaao| - VL 1OSZ00dB0AN “ON Ywe1p iniforg pune (1% .:.Eo_ﬂﬂ.ﬁ DONISNOH TVJIOINAIW OTVAdNd
TR JO A4 JBI3pIY T iaquIny pue adi], JueIn ‘slieN YHd
saavg sunaoddng {yiaeg
1 IOTIOER sondxq I

9ZZ0-LLET "ON €O AdOD VNI ZL0Z ' wiesBo1J Bursueny, punj jsigde))
[Snstiops weipny pus o1jqng 3o eomI0 pue Jojor.] Suisnol uswedejdoy weSolg pung fejde)) ‘wiesdol ] pung [nide))|
[susuidoroang uequn) % Fuisnop jo wemiiedag ‘g . , , poday UCHEn{EAT PUB SIURIIONDZINUIING [2y




(8002t) 1'9L006-ANH w0}

91

voday vonenjesz] oUBMLOZIA] 241 10§ paa[di0o aq o], .
“{USTIBIEIS PasIASY © 10 Hioday NojEn[EAT SoURWIGIInd SU} 10f pajojduton ag o] |

- S{E}0) J08[0Id
PANPBYIS JIOoM ON
Sti'0gl SIEI0] 109]0id
. 10t 0ZplL 9)Q "B Jona s, 1Y B jooi sveidey
i BIFFL 2051 e houebuguod] ezogl-{0€)-21-4D
¥or'ig ogvl sad|Aleg @ §1S0D 6984 | Sy (0€)-2-4D
1i9'¢e | 80P sjuswanoldil) Juswabieuvep| egop~(0€)-gl-40
L90'Op] 9obL suogesedQ| eoobi-(0€)-21-40
OAA JO SH #1930y 6 4 SAMAIDY
HOAN § Je)g 3807 POIEWNST 301 Auend -ang] sanoBajen yiopa Jofeyy jo uoduose(] |eieuBy . ”_ﬂg.uw__.ﬁﬁsw_%
L h 0N JUeID) JojoB,] BuISNOY owIorday]
44114 oNEeR Gd5 LLT09200490 AN 0N EiD weiarg pund e ALTMOHLAY DNISNOH TYJIDINNW OTVAANY
3UBAD) JO X P [BIIPA IFQUIMN pue ddA ], jueis) ‘BlWeN VHG
T sadeg sunioddng Gy yied
TToz/08/p saudxy _

SELO-LLET ON HNO

weaforg Buousulg pung jende

BuSHOY MBI put Sijqhd 30 IO

_Es I0jou.] uSnof] JEawasrida)] wwmdold pung [epdey ‘weiBory puny repde)y

uawdojaasg uegin 2 Fujsnoy jo uampedag g

.r.n__ouhEz_FnEm_ll
|

Hod9Y HOfen[eAT PUR SOUBLINOLS JIUSILAJG [Bruuy




100y UONEN[BAT SMEUHONIG 341 20f PAS|diios aq o,

{BO0ZMY) L'52005-QNH Wio) i
“JEININNEIS PISIATY B 1D 10053 UoTlen[BAT 2uLWIa Iag 1 103 pojajduos aq o), '

" " Sejo | 100lold
|\_| AR R — .
- . PRINpayIs Jlom ON
B ZOSL Aousbupuon| ezoGL-(1e)-z1-40 |
- . OErl s90IUSg B §1500 's894 Iy | BoEki-(1E)g1-d0
- 1492€ 80v1 sjuswianoiduy juawsbeuely| egoyL-(1£)-21-40
- - . 9071 suonesado| egovL-(1€)-2L-40
e b X
oA 16 S 2 SHONAHX | € 40 #3109y 5 i d Semy
e e =
HOM 40 SMulS Ta0s janyors 16301 150D PALEINGS [EIOL faguenp| %0 " | sauoBayeg yiom sofe jo uogdisasaq |eleusy g N
- | ON w0 a0jouy Buisnoy usumsridoy
zLoz | onpen) dado 71 FDSZ00EROAN ON okity o P [ ALRIOHLOY ONISNOH TVIDINOW OTVAINE
JUERD JO XA44 —ﬂh@E Jaqunp pug adA ] Jueiln ' BWEN YHd
saseg sunJoddansg :JI yed
TI0Z/0%/p Sadxg - - i
92Z0"LLST ON TNO - AdOD TVNIH Z1L0Z wneAos Fapoueut pund (e
BUINOH werpu[ pue g J jo 230 : . pue 10joe Sursnol Ewzoe[day weisold puny jeinle]) ‘weidorg puny [eyde)
1uswidofeangy usgqin) 7 Susnol fo Juawpuedag g Horkay] GOTIER[BAT PUR S0UBKLOJISAUDUISIES jBhLy




(8002/v) 1'52005-0NH Wic}

81

uadsy] UoHEN|BAT S0WEWID]Ia] Y J0J pejajdiues 2q o, .

JUMIL)E)S POSIATY ¥ J0 10U} UDLRIUASY S0UBWI0NS] 9y} 10§ pajardwco 2q o, |

poo‘osl SIE}01 Jo9l0.d
. ‘ 000081 oLvL . _Juowdybo Jeab yoyms aoedey|
) o R 2051 Aousbuyuo)| ezogL-(ze) gl 40
- otvl S90S %} SIS00 'sea4 Av| oSkl -(28)-2L-40
1L9'2¢E g80kL sjuawaacidu) wawsbeuepy| esor|-(Ze)-2L-40
- o0vL suogesadg| egoy|-(ZE)-ZL-40
s ﬁ ’.
#3133y B ey o uondudsaq eseus o
1JA. L = JL]-
YIOM 40 SIS 180D POLWINST |EJOL AUEND) " pgq [ SeMOBEIED Mo sofew jo uondyoseq eieuso oy, pewsolareg
. _ 0] JueIp Jo3aeg Sursnoyy .5...533&.&. _ :
| FANr A —- ONEIA) 1410 L1 09Z003B0AN N sy weson pung pisde ALRIOH.LOY ONISNOH TVAIDINIIN OTVAINd
UEAD JO XA _n..ovuk Tequn) pie 3dLf juern BWEN YHd
i saoed sunloddng (I 1ied
TI0Z/0E/p Sy 1

GLL0-LLET "ON HNQ

AdOD TN Z1.0Z

wiedord fugoueayg pung peude

SuEsnoH urIpul pus Hqod Jo WO

pue 1030¢] FwisnoH wewaardoy wedoig pung fende) ‘wedord pung mﬁ.&mm

|pmeusdopasay ueqn ¢ Swsnop Jo wewnedag ‘s’

L2y UONENEAT PUE SOUBNEOJIDJAUIINEL [BAUNY |




uoday] wonen|EAg sauBLUOLig ol 1o} pajodmoa ag o,

(8002/¥) 1 'S2008-QNH W20} 61
ARG PAsTASY € Lo Hodey uONENTeAT] SoUBUIGHIa Sy K0 pA1jdwes aq O, 1
00681 S[Ej0 Joeloid
008'8l 0L lojeisuab AousbBiawa aoeday
- 8[2j0 ) J99loid
Painpayos yiom oN|
881982’ SIE)0 1 199]0ig
| _ 88)'gez’L 0¥l SIOUSIUI HU [j SjBACUSY
1 S N I i
o8 | 205} Kausbunued| ezogL-{£e)-gl-40
GED'L (154 $80IBS ¥ S]S07 'send Y| eocti-(eg)-2L-dD
1L9'2e 80¥1 spuswanosdw| Juswabieuei! egor-(€€)-Z1-20
£02'vl m:o_«_w._mno egovL-(€0)-21-42
OMR 10 5 : X #1907 o SRy
IO jO smyE)S 1500 [BNJOY 1601 i 1500 POJEWNST [BJ0) Anuent| ©, A2 sauobote) yrop Jofep Jo uopdusssq |elsuasy E_Hﬂa.uﬁﬁﬁnua
- Wnpy judwdojarag |
o _ ‘O] JUELL) J0J3B,] BUISNOY justusapday S
F41ir4 L} 05Z00dS0AN ot 1D WiBoid pond onden ALNOHLNY ONISNOH TVAIDINNIN OTVAANA

H{ON/SOA) d24D

Jaquitiy pue adA ], jieln

BWEN YHd

JUBID JO A A4 [Haapag

soded suijioddng iJf Ja8d

110z/0/p soaplxg -
ano.k.nﬂ ON NG AdOD 1YNIH ZLOZ L weidas Jurousulg pung [epde])
SUISNOY weipu] pUB AgNJ JO N0 put e Fuisnoy weusoejdoy ueidold puny [sde ‘wetfor ] pung jpdes

jpustidopanay weqin) % Smsnof jo wsipeds S

10ty UONEN[EBA] PUB SOUBLLIOJIIJ/US WOIHIS [ENULY




" (BO0EY) | 9L005-GRH W0 o Modayj UCHEIBAT] aUBII0]I9g AU 10) pajeidutea o o,
TUSLIILIS PasIASY B 10 SIS UOTINJBAT SOWEAUONS] S} 203 pjapdmed aq o, |

NAOAK JO BN F.s #300v B fi d oo
1O sNE)g nuenp| . seloBajen wops solel Jo uonduasag |eieuaty IPIA-YHPWEN
J809 pajewyisy |epoL AoQ Jequiny Juswdoaaag
I ] “0[ JIeIE 10)38,] SUISNOE IWankaoR|doy
cloz RS dido] T 3510SZ00d90AN oD weoiqpradsy | ALIMOHLLAY ONISIOH TYIDINAW OTVANS
ueID Jo A4 [elepay _ T BN YHd

) . saned sunsoddng G ped
FTOT/05/p Soandxg i - |
9TCO-LLEE "ON HNOQ . AdOD TYNIA ZL0Z . unerdoi] Jupgusi ] pung [eider)
[Bursno}] werpuy pus s1gnJ 3o 22310 ' pue 10508, Sursnogf Juswweagydey wedory pung Teyde) warfosd punyg pide)y
[ramdoraangg weqin 3¢ Suisnol Jo Jwownedsq ‘' wodayy UOEN|NAR PUE SOUBUMOLDA/USWISIES [enuuty




(800211} L'GLO0S-CINH Wo)

Uoday] uoNEn[BAY SOUBULIONSJ Syt 203 peyoldoe aq of, .
JUSWSIBLS PASIASY © 10 Hodoy HOLN|RAT J0URUSIO IO 2N} Joy paiajdutos oq of, |

£50'F8L S[50], 190l04d
~ ozg 0l T I oTeloudb Aousbiowd soejdey| qZz-pErEl-d0
gggzie 0971 sjeued J1909}@ Jjun Sjeaolal @ soeldoy | BZZ-(PE)-TI-4O
— bt o) )
= sjejo] Joaload
..... . ] PoaINpayDs YoM ON vmv-m. 1-30
. e - Igi, .MN i o
~|ors 1T Tzosy {0 Kausbunuog| ezos L-(Fe)-ZL-4D
ZLLY [ S80S 'p 8180D “s884 T/v| BOEYL-(#E€)-ZL-40
11978 a0 | sjuewsAc.du] juswabeuey| egorL-(vE)-zL-40 |
5806 o0¥L suoesadol egoy-(bE)-2l-40
o o ]
HiOpA JO SMYEY, d ! -&, : H #329¢ B I d sa[AnaY
S : ki npuenp| . sapoBajes Niops Jofeyy Jo uoyduasaq [eiuag BRIV H/OWEN
150D 1BMAY | 150D _unau“.__.g—nm 1eyol ‘Ad(] saquiny Juswdoeasg
TON] JHBIT) 10)3%,] Asnol] puswasedayy
41114 ToNEB) 4330 13109200450 AN ON 1110 GB0ig pung [0 ALTIOHLAY DNISIIOH TYJIDINNIA OTVAANS
$JUBED JO XA [€13pa] g DU Pue 50AT, JUEID) aWweN VHd
sasegd sunioddng Iy )aed
T10z/06sp FoIWxe |
9LE0-LLET ON HNO- >n_m.uD IYNIH ZLOZ H wiesFoad Fupoueur] pung Jende)
pue 1030e] Buisno juamiasejday weidoig puny [exde)) “weiFoid pung jeide)

Bysmon weypur pue a1jqn4 30 590

juswdojaaa(] Ueqly) % Sursnop] Jo mwewnedar] SN

1005y UOHBNEAT PUE SEUNOLIS JAUINEIING [ETUY




(e00z1p) | 52005-GNH WO}

[A4

1iodsy uolienfeAZ] SOUBLLIGHIS ST} J0j papajdiutes ag o],

JUSINEG PASIATY § 10 10day HONBN|RAR SOHBULIOLIR] i) J0] Pojaieo 3q o, |

me_m".ﬁpﬁr
i

) g
. 5{ejoL Jo2[0id
paInpayos Yiom oN| ejg-(ge)-g}-40
- 5[E)0. J9ejoid
—_— e - Panpayos Yiom oN

166'9 Z0s} e ags o iieunsnpe)Adlieiiilies) 22061 ()21 40
- q0g'6¢ OEFL SeiAlag g 81809 'sasy 3/v| eoerl-(G€)-21-40
129'2¢ Q0% ) sjusiuaaodw) JuswsbBeuel| egorL-(5E)-ZL-40
pge'LL 20F1 wco_am._m.mo eo0¥L-(9g)-gL-40
ko
seRIAIIY
NIOM JO SNjES Apuenyy n.«uu< sanoBeeg) yiop 1cfepy jo uonduasa(] jessusgy BPIM-YH/SWEN
AeQ agqwny juswdojarag
‘0N MBI} 10J08y] BusnoH justsosiday
| FAR ) ONEOR) dadd m o_.ﬁs G90AN 0N Woeip Wedeig pung [FHEED ALPIOHLOY ONISNOH TYJIDJINN OTVAAINS
Juerrs) jo 2P Jaquunp pue 3dA ] yuein :SWEN VHd
N 5384 suntoddng :1] Ja8g
TInT/0EH saapdey |

SLLO-LLST 'ON NG

3ufSNOK UBIDUE PUE 071qN JO 0O

AdQD YNNI 2107

wesdorg Suioueut,y puny [EndeD)

pur 10508 Hursnoy juaniaoe|doy Weidosg pung [eyde) ‘weiforg pung repnde)

wsndopaag ueqin) % Bursnoy Jo wamuedad ‘s

poday] Uoljenjuas] pue 20UBLUOHDJ/USWSIE]S [BAULY|




(g002/k) | 62005-AnNH wio} £ ueday uonen|eagy 3:«::&._& oY1 203 pataydmo? aq o], :
' JUAUREG PASIA0Y B 10 Uadd} UONETBAT DUBHHGJID] W) 10f pajajdios 8 o] |

- - S|E}0 | 3961014
o ) T - - pP2INPaLDs YoM ON
- 09} FousBuuog| ezog1-(0¥)-gl-40 |
- - 0EYL saoMeg ¥ S)S0D 'sead Ifv| eoerL-(Ov)-el-42
- - 80| sjusuiarcidw Juswiebeuen| egoprL-(0r)-2i-40
- - o0F! ep0FL-(0F)-21-2D
[ ‘ #1395y 5 N | SAAROY
SRS o iR ut
NIopA JO SNYEYS 3805 |ERIOV (B30 1800 DasewlIga3 (B30 .a_ucu_..a A8 saloBe)en yiopp Joley) jo uonduaseq (eisuagy ‘_mn_.u_.__"..._g «Mwﬁ___wuw_\, .
. I JUBUCOIAI() |
_ DN uelD) Joped Smsno wewseasjdey
e _ | Honmen) aii0 11 105Z00d90AN 0N WeIp wasBolg pung [ende) ALMOHLAY DNISNOH TYIIJINAIW 0TV
UL JO XA [B43pad J3quinN pue adA] JRETD BWEN YiHd
T : S9g9€g sunIoddns :1f jaeq
1107/0e/ eaudxy i
9ZLO-LLST "ON HNO . AdQD TYNid 2102 , weiZoly Fupururg puny eide)|
BWsnog] weIpu[ pue oljgng 30 KOG i plw 103ae,] Bupsnop] wawadeiday wwBor] pun.t (ende) “mndory pang miiden

wwdopaaagg veqin) % Tusnogy jo wamnedsc] 'S ooy uoIEN[eAT Pul SHUBRUGHSIOIISIIG [BIUUY




1aday] nonEn{EAZ anEHOTE ] sty 0f paajdmessq el

(€002 1'52005-aNH Wuo) ¥
UAMRNELG PASIAY B I0 L0daY] UoHRAIRAY J0URULOHA] Syl dof paaidurcoag o] |

- s|ejo L Joalosd
T | - I PaINPayos yom oN|  Bev-(15)-21-40
- 2054 _ - FoueBuijuod| ez0gh-(Li)-gi-40
- - et 880lMeg ¥ 8Js0) 'seed I/v| eoerL-(Lk)-21-4D
- - 80¥1 sjuswanolduw uswabeue | eg0FL-(LF)-ZL-4D
- - _Sovk suanesedo| egoy L-(11)-21-40
RIoM Jo smeg o #1300y B i ) d 23ANOY
puenp| 7 sauoBajesn Yo Jofep Jo uondriosag |eseusn SPIM-VHOWEN
3803 Bguﬂt_uww jejoL Aag Jaguny Juawdojanar]
0N JUELE) 10)0t) TUISno it (day -
41174 N NN 315 L E09700d8OAN N JEiD WTFoig ping [FidEn ALTHOHLAY ONISOOH TVAININ OTvaANg
$JUBE) JO X1 [219P9) Jaquimy pug adAL Ea.._.w.v T DWeN YHd
, Saoed sunoddng Jf)ied
TT0z0/p solxg . |
9TTO-LLST "ON HND AdOD TYNId ZL0Z we:Fory Fujsueurg punyg fende))|
Jursnoy usIp] pue oiqng Jo sMyo . pu E«onu_ mEm:am wizaraon|day] wesdosg pun pepde)) ‘weidord pun [zude
Juatidojanag] ueqiry % Suisnoy jo waunredad ') ’ Hoday UOLIEN|BAZ] Put FOUBLIIOTIJ/UATUNEIG [ENULTY|




(B00Z/Y) | 'SL005~0NH WD) T 110ty UGREN[EAZ SoUEILIOHO ) 10y patelduina aq a] ,
WSS PASIARY ¥ 10 LOASY UONENEAT 20WRULGII 2] J0f pajaiduiod 3q 01

- E - £86'0Lp') . el d49 102

= - S[e}01 J00l04d
R R T R N PaINPaYas IOM ON/
B Zosl i fousBuuog| 8z0g1L-{ZH)-21-490
- - 0EP) saoeg B SIS0 'sead Iry| BogrL-(2¥)-21-40
- - 80vt sjuaLuRAodwi uswebeue| egorL-(ck)-2L-d4D
- - oobL mco_,e,wao B9 L-{ZP)-2l-40
B al s £ 5
Sy EENETLS : Hn , . BONAY
% HALYS) | #1920y
o O e T
MO Jo Mg 2y 1101 1500 pejelu Anueny -aeq sapoBajen yom Jolfejy Jo uondasaq jesousn .«n“__”ﬁuuﬁﬁu%n
e _ ‘Op JUBI J0308, Sulsnap wwosoridoy
zoe Mo diTB L L OSZU0aODAN N eI 1we0ig pind Pudis ALTIOHLAOY ONISNOH TVAIDINNIW OTVAINY
Jueln Jo X4 jerapaj ) : Jaquiny pue mn?k «:a.-m ‘aWeN YHd

saseg suloddng ] 3ieg
T102/0g/y saaidxy . [

92E0-4LSZ ON HIND AdOD IYNIH ZLDZ - wridold dugourny] pund jeade))|
[Bursnop weypur pis oNare 36 o010 i PuB 10198 Juisncy Juauaaeiday wesdor] pung [eipde) ‘ureidord puny [endeD
_Eﬁno_ebnﬂ ueqin) 2 Swsnoif jo yuswnedad ‘5N HodD) UORET[RAT PUE SOURLHOJIAUIILSIEIS [ENULY




(B0DZ/¥) | 'SLODS-CHNH U0}

Hoday UeNEn|eAT 20uLKIOpa a1} 10) paajiwos aq O,
TN PISIAY B 10 Woda)] UOTEN[EAF JOUSII0NA] 1] 403 pajeldwiod aq o, |

0£'gec'se
90%) O3 PPB|OE'gEE'SE |
2Jojaq JUnowe 0L 6v'ger’ L
[9A8] Z1LOZ MeU (00886 0LY'L
— Uojonpal %01|060 | _ —
19A9] L102{00°888'10Z'8 . _
19A8] ZLOZ MOUI00'BR6'DLY /. _
N 00°886'04F'L _
86#)
B ag'ebZ'ecl’e zogt'osvi'oipl  leopl
O¥ pi'LEE8'y | Oi¢L'agbl'oovE'0SkL
s[)0)
00°826'0.F L N 2E)
- Bt 0¥l
pitid S
- VA osrL ]
o as 0S¥l _
..._| 8&Aqpepip . oL - <05t
fPe 90v| |926'E g4 0spl -
SE'PE'EE 0 OivlL
£1Z'0ZTLIL0L g 7 80rL
waunsnipe govl [sEE'ee 0£'8EE'SES+ ] ) [pe jou [BEgyOlE 90}
- 5 T8 safiaoy
HIOAA §O SIS B SR fpuenp #1109y sauobaje) siops Jofel jo uonduodseq [elouan) SPIN-YHAWEN
eyot 1809 pajellsy jejol - A3 : ’ Jagluny Juswdojaasg |
) _ 10N WIRID) JOjoR] BUISNOE Juatnasujday
ZLoz _ TN DS 00d0DA ORI et P TEND ALRIOILLNY DONISNOH TVAIDINN O 1VA408
1JUELS) JO XA JeIapoy XA GliinN pue adi], JuEI) B :aweN yYHd

sage,] sunloddng 1

[10Z/pE soardxg

9LL0-LLET "ON ENO

[Bussnog ueipug pus aygrazosamio

>E

weaforg fwioawury puny jepde’)

PuE sojavg Bupsnopy yuewsoedsy wesBold pungd Teyde)) WeBsld puny relde)

|nrawderesaq wegin % Swsnof o ammdag g0

yoday uoNENeAg PUE SMIBUNONSJAUSWSIEN] [ENMY|




(8002/¥) 192009-0NH WO}

Bapuse S /g6 10 1oy Busnoy ‘g'n Ay Jo _mm:mv_.umm 0} Juensind |eac:dde (JNH Yjs PSSIASE 90 AJUC LD SBlep pue a:mipuadxe pue uonebigo |
B 910Z/21/90 . y102/Z1L/90 (BulllemMp-UOL) EUUEISING D/ P
91.02/21/90 ¥LOZ/Z1/30 (Bulljamp-uou) ALiad 00¢
910Z/C1L/90 , FLOC/ELIS0 || 9SBYd malaater] [-ZAN| ZF dINY
9L0Z/ZLI90 102/2L/90 | @sBld malrayeT] g-CAN| L dINY
g102/21L190 ¥LOZ/IZLIS0 Il BSElUd MalraNe] gF-cAN| 0F dINY
N ) 910¢/ZLio0 ¥LOC/ZLIS0 JUESAAANIS JZ-ZAN $¢ diNY
SL0Z/2L/90 FLOCIELIA0 EJIPag 91-¢AN
. 9102/2./90 e vIOZIZVOO e PETZZTAN] o
O102/21L/80 ¥102/2L/90 suapiesy A|[@y] €1-ZAN
81022180 ¥L0Z/2L/90 Jeesy UGS LE-ZAN
OL0Z/Z1/90 ¥L02/Z1/90 1EMOM 6|-ZAN| €2 dIIY
2L02/21/90 L0Z/ZLI00 BOBLIS] qemydg #1-ZAN
2L0¢/Z1i90 ¥LOZ/Z1I90 88LIOH JapuD AIsd Gh-ZAN| 28 dY
91L0Z/CL/20 PLOZIZLIB0 pieybueT g L-EAN] LE dINY
. o 9L0Z/21/90 o ¥102Z/21/90 100415 JomoL GE s
S1L02/21/90 +102/21/90 PiogusY 0L-ZAN
9102121190 ¥ 08/Z1L/80 uoisusxy aolid gy P0-ZAN| ¥Z NV
9LQe/TLION ¥iL0ciZLo0 SUnod adlld aY 20-ZAN| £¢ dINY
9102/Z1/80 __¥10Zrel/90 | (Auo ugjuid 6Lg) Lad 9v-ZAN
" ] ) 91L0¢/Z1190 LA A AN wOu 9IS PRISNEDIS D2E-CAN ZZ dNY
! 91L0¢/C 1190 PLOZIZLIG0 SUspJRcy UCSPOOAA H2E-TAN
S102/eLI90 #102/L/90 abiE|liA POOMPIY VZE-ZAN
9102/1/90 L Pprozziieo | (Apurey) X3 ALSd "D G012-ZAN -
9102/21L/20 FLOZ/ZLI00 SOWOH Alisd "D €0-ZAN
. 810g/Z1/90 ¥10¢/Z2L/20 JOUBIA uajiniy $E-ZAN
. 9i0z/elio0 | #1L02/21/90 SUNOD JAleIS LZ-ZAN| 02 NV
2102/2H90 ¥10Z/Z1/90 | (owss) ‘Ix3 Ausd "D §002-2AN
8L0g/Z1LI90 ¥LOZ/CLIB0 usuied Jadser go-gAN| 28 JINY
8102/2Li90 ¥10e/T1L/o0 uspue’ 9z-zAN
9102/21/90 ¥102/21/90 L Jsanuwg 0Z-2AN| Lk dNY
9L02/ZLIS0 ?LOZ/CLIO0 SSWDH w:___o_._ gL-ZAN
91.0Z/21190 ¥10Z/21/90 Sunop sjlege | L-gAN o1 dIAY
9102/21/90 vL0Z/Z1/90 BDE|IIA JBlBUS BO-CAN
, pas|AD jeuiBuo asINe euib
| 58127 3R], PasIaey o] UosETY ABNM Furpug Jspeng)) P @EM Suipug ._uu.__msg © SAPANY IPIM-VHI
popuadxq spun, ||y . payeBIqQ spuny Iy RUIBN] SA3QUINN JuautdopAdQ/dINY
{0N JURIn) Jojor,] Susnoy juawisor[day
Z10Z LLLOSZOO9OAN :ON U0 weiSorg puny endes ALTHOHLNY ONISNOH TVJIDINNW O TVAINA
Jueis) Jo Add |elapay roqump pue ad{], jueIn) 9WeN vYHd
anpayas uoneywonndwuy Iy 1aeg
© T102/08/p saxudxy AdOD TYNIA Z102

FTEO-LLST "ON WO . ureafoa g Sunusuly pung sde)
Fwisnol] uepuy pue s1yqng Jo OO pus 103001 BUISno}y gﬁgua_m.a_m weadog pung ende) ‘weadory puny jepde)
zwdofaaacs ueqny 7 Swisnoy Jo Juaumedag g) 31903 UORENJBAT] PUE DUBLLIONI JAIINIIBIS [ENUIY



ZL L1 20 AdOQ TWNIA d4O 21T

8z

pa|Npayos Yiom ON .
92z 007 $ (KiEa5) susoyN S1EAcUsY _ A1ea9 “4BSN LE-ZAN
£c
o] BAMO -
95961 3 “Boig AURIIOT) S1EAOUSY PRINPOLIS YoM z— [BAON BL-ZAN]  jouns
0og'sl 3 ol Jooy g speed; JES sveidey] oop'szz $ iom ays g bupus) aoeidey|
T£9'60% $ Syleq 'g susyaly ajBacusy ] S0BJIS L BMUDS L-ZAN
000°06 $ 1nod |legiesed sjeaouey pBINpaYSs YoM oP__ SOLIOH JBPLID A1s34 G-ZAN|ZE dINY|
' IE
pioubuEl ZL-ZAN| JWY
owo_mmm $ | (uoyy) sadid eysem g Alddns sjensu)
pRmpayos ylom oN| - ] pPaINPaLos oM ON Pais Jame| ge
" $
PrRyuUS) GL-ZAN
000'09E sobue) usyaip) aoejday
PaINpaLos Hiom ON POINPALOS HIOM ON UCISUBIXT 30Ud AV ¥O-ZAN
- 3 PRINPayds yom ON| - $ PRINPaUos MIoM O SLN0Y 90ld gV 20-ZAN
N ¢ ponpayos yiom oN| (AlUO LoD G1GY 1AL 9P-ZAN
¥26° L2 $ —sBujume 3 soullel oped [EIsul
PRINPAYIS YIOM ON _POINP3LDS YIOM ON we SIS pRUBNEOG DZE-CAN] 22
panpayos yom oN| - [ PBINPaLOS oM ON SUSPIED) UOSPOOA 82E-ZAN] diNY
- $ PaINPELOS YoM ONJ - $ PSINPaLOS HIOM ON abejli/\, POGMPaY] VZECAN
- $ pajnpayos yom on| - $ pajnpayos yom oNl  (Anwey) pa Aued 'O GOLZZAN| 1z
- & painpayos yiom oNy - ¢ PBINPALOS YOM ON SBWIOH AL9d "D €0-ZAN| JINv
- $
N 3 PeINPaYSS YIOM ON Jouejs USIINIAL PE-EAN
- $ paPayYss HIoM ON PeINpaYas YI0M ON : 0z
- ¢ PaINPaYISs Hiom ONJ - $ PENPayos YoM ON SUNOD 1BJB|S LZ-CAN] SNV
- ¢ painpayos siomonf  (Joues) "3 Auad "D S00Z-ZAN
£Z1'5vE Iy SLU00JBq CF SjURWIBACL
- $ PBINPBLOS HI0M ON 21 AV
| b28'0F $ sdajs g yoiod "ol0 Jwibw aoejday yswied Jadser 90-ZAN :
panpayos oM oN P8INpayds oM ON uspwed 9z-gAN
- 3 PaNpayos Y10M ON JSINUWIT 0Z-ZAN| |,
[ & S0l 850 aoe|day ditY
005'2e % {dydd) sio0Q "wry sulyoep SoB0aY
005'2e $ wedwogd vay Wy Aunwwod] 985'068"L $ SuoljeAouUSY WooJUjeg § usysiing sewoH m.._Eo_._ BL-ZAN
- $ pajnpayos yiom oN| $ PaiNpeLos 3ioM ON SUNOY S|[BSET |LL-ZAN n_o____h‘<
- g pa{npeyos oM ON PS|NPEUos }1om ON SBEiiiA TBIEUS 80-ZAN
unowy uondLISI( WY junowy uoydirasaqq wayy
PIOT JUvan A4A €107 SHavEsy X4 INTRJOTIAATA dIAV
€ A3 X 10§ JIAENEIS IO T AR} J0] JUIWIATE)S HAOAL :
. SIHIANOVY IO - 5oFeJ Supdoeddng Iy pre]
AdOO VNI Zi0Z WYY UOIY A8 X -AL] Wvado.d puny [epde)



¢4 LI 20 AdCO T¥NId d40 2loe

62

z :Rousbuuo

S.bl Juswidinbgi:

{1eq o1 [p2) zogL AousBuiuon
92¢i Juowdnbg

2.

II3ed

8671 AuAN0Y Juswdopasals 66¥L_Auanoy Juswidopaaeq A YHING
0EbL :SiS0D 'p SoBJpy 0tfl Sjs0D g 5884
0l¥l uonesiiup 0Ll UoNEelSibiupY
30FL SIUeWaA0IdW| JUSISDBUBYY 801 Sjuawioncdil] JudwRBEuRl
Bunesadn 9L ‘Bunesad
886 dvlo 666 dAY
- $ ¥ dWvjo ¥ dilv|
- 3 Ly divjo i diNlY
- 3 or dNV]0 or dNV
686'055'L $ 9t dWVJ000°086 8¢ JWY
5/G'8ES") 8 ¥t diavjros’oae ¥ dWIV
#1€°G0. $ £t Jdivfooo'sze £2 dAlY
000°06 $ (44 n_s_<“o ¢ diNY
- 3 1t dNVj0Z0'646 Lt dIAY,
- 3 B¢ JRV]O00'05E 0t JAY| SV.L01 dY
- $ +Z dNYI0 T dNY
- $ £2 v £Z diNY
¥Z8'lZ $ 2 dNV0 2% dNY
- $ 1Z dNYIO ¢ JAIV
£Z1'Gre 3 02 diNlY| 0Z dINY
pea'oy g Z1 dINY 21 diNY
[ $ Li diNYjoSD'S0r' | Ll diNY
- 3 oL JWY 0L dY _ B
- 4 pajnpatos yom on| - $ (BUIl[eMp-UoL) BUEISIO] 98] BBB |
- $ psjnpayas yom o] - $ | (Guijamp-uou) Alsd gog| dINY
ERNPALDS 310/ ON - PS{Npayos 310M ON li 98Bl MaIARYET Jir-ZANIZY JINY|
panpayos 310M oN| - % PaNP2UYDS YIOM ON | 8SBUd malhexe] Ep-CANILY dINY
pejnpsyds Yom ON PSNPayos oM ON LIl 8seUd melnsse 8i-ZAN|OF dNY
| sea'ez0'y $ SUBLOLIM S18A0US _
0ZZ'0S bugadres jley svejds wesaninig JZ-ZAN e
000°066 [ SWOOJYJEY BjeAcusy NV
oEr'asy $ (a3s) swoosypeg ajerousy PBINPOLOS %10M ON EUPSS 91-ZAN
006'9:5 $ {rd1) suatony ajeAcusH|
000018 $ (rg) swiooaeq Sjeacusy e
519'1.G1 $ {rg1) siojeas|s aveidsy P2NPAUDE MIOM ON 1 €2-2AN] dINV
¥99'08¢ [] SLucoiuieq sjeAousy SUSPIBD) AlISY £1-CAN
Junowy woTNLIIS(Y W)Y jnoury uonduosaq way
PI0T DUvID Add €107 LX) AL LNINIOTIATA dNY
€ 183 X 0] JEIMIAILIS YAC A T A83X 0] JUITAIEIS HIOA
SINANIIY HAOAN - sadeq Sunaoddng :
AdOD TWNIA ZTHOZ e[ U0y -ivd X -oAl meidosg punyg epde)




Zl L1 20 AJOD TYNID d40 2102

oe

886'041'L

oWy

£ 1B JOJ NIAWIEIS NAOM,

uondirsa wajy

junowy

£10T w61y X440 ] neasil b
7 48B3 X I0] PUMNUIIEL)S HAO M :

SINIANIVY JIOM - 5958 Supteddug ."mH u.zwnm
AAOO TYNId ZVOZ - WelJ WONIY A8 X -IAL] Weidolg punj ende)




21721720 AJOD Wi d4D 2i0Z

og

20BLUS ] (eMUOS 17L-ZAN
889'6vL ] Siwsg Ul buybl] [euonippy JEsul SAIDH 13pUS Ausd Gh-ZANIZE JNY
vre'asLl $ swiooiyieg lepdn! 0op'gLl $ seaseleld aoEpnsey piayBueT ZL-zAN|LE dNY
paNpayos om onN| - [ PBMPayDs oM ON 19843 JaMO0] 8¢ 0
oFL'sY $ zasafeld sdeunsat P elenoUDY pleljusy 0L-ZAN| dINV
pojnpayos y.om oNj - 3 POJNPIYDS YoM ON uoisuep] 20lid AV vO-ZANE dWVL:
PaINPaLOs Ylom ONJ - $ painpaLos }1om oN SHnoD eaud 4V Z0-ZANIEZ dINY|
. {Auo uolI[D GG} 1O 9F-ZANY
000'0SF 3 POOMNO00T 2-8| SleAcuayl - 3 paINpalos YIom O D SNG pelaljesg DZe-ZANl 22
paINpaYyos Yiom onNj - 3 PaINpayYos HI0M ON SuBpJES) UOSPOOA BZE-ZAN] dilVY
pe[npeayos Yiom oNj - { pa|npayos 3om ON afe|iA POOMPEY YZE-ZAN
pa|npalos sJom oN| - ¢ painpelos Som ol (Alwey) 3 Ased D GOLZ-ZAN] e
ponRauYs YoM onNj - 3 panpsayas NIom oN sawoH Allad ‘D ¢0-ZAN] diNY
00g'zel $ shemiey 1adien
00¥'208 $ {oF) Swooiyjeg ejesctay
000'SEl § SJOJeAR|Z wﬁun:_ 088'zoe $ T — TOUBY WS PE-2AN w
'009°2HL $ (sreig)swoouyeg ejerousy| 080°9¢1 $ sIoleay Jojem (¢) 3 819104 (g) soeidoy SHNOD JBRIS LZ-ZAN| NV
0B.'¢6L $ sjuadw] adesspueysyem naday
g26'G/ $ o011}5/[208;/510] bupyied eoepnsoy]  (Joies) ‘I3 Aled "D G00Z-ZAN
cl
suled Jedser 90~
ysued FOOZAN o
02L 06 $ | siejesy Jajem (2) % sis)ioq (z) soedayl USpUeD OZ-ZAN
|
000°08t $ {{-2) suiooieq gjeacusy )SINYWI3 0Z-ZAN
Ll
Y
sowoy BullloH §L-ZAN
000'6ZZ % (1ayjeyg) 1seq Jaddn z owsgjousd| ¥22'292 $ | peunbey se sbujjaD bupsix3 Jiedoy spNogD 1eSeT LL-ZAN| 01
000'025'2 [3 (iayeus) sueyminy sterousy] 008'0L1'T 3 SWOOJYBE Slenousy abe|IA JeHeyS 80-CAN| dwy
Junomy wondnsaq wajy JUROWY uoridiaasag W
ST0T DUeLD Add INTNJIOTIATA dIy i
G IBIX XOJ JUIMNMIS YIOA P 83 ) 10J JUAMIIIR)S HIOA e
SMPIANIY NIOA - soded Surpioddng 11 3aed
AdOD VNI Z40Z ueJ UondY JAed X -dAL] meadosry puny fepde)




ZLLET20TAJOI YN d30 200

e

- $ paInpauos yiom oN| 1] 9sBUd MEIANET 8P-ZAN]DY V|
painpayoss yom oN| $50'28 $ WIOOY [I9UNGY) jUEUS) SJEAOUSYH JUBSSAMS JZ-ZAN|  9C
000°SY $ (PIow) sy Jool 1S.1 g Sipacuay enpes 9i-gAN| JWV
painpayosyomon| T PBINPaLOS YoM ozt FE 222AN n_u.m_u<
POIRpaUDS HIOM ON |
Q00°08 $ SMOPUIM 80B|daY PaNPaYIs HI0M ON suapien) AieX E1L-ZAN
000'05# $ (A1) suwoniBg SjRAOUSY Aieag WOSW LE-ZAN
000°6EL [ {AeaD) BUME JueUa ) ebiejus
0/9°G 3 2)eb AUnaes o)l a0edoy ce
080t $ | () siajesy Jojem @ (£) S1alieq mnmﬁ[wml_.— [EMOM BL-ZAN| 4NV
neury nc_a.__..,unua wI)f
~ R Lalfy 4 n <
0107 JUBIS) Add S107 1D Adi LNAWJOTIATA dW
§ FBO X O] NIOMWANEBIE HIO M 183 X A0J JUIIIGIS HIO AL
SANAIIV oA - 593eg Supoddng :y 1aeg
AdOD TYNIJ Z10T R[] UonIV Aed X -oALg weadoirg punyg peide)




S 4
217217207 AdOD TYNIA d:D 210E

GO ULV L . & | ] {parewns3) SANNA d40 1Y.1OL
{1eq o) [pe) zog) :AousBunuoy {1eq o1 [pe) zog) Aouabujuos
§p) uawdinbg 9ivi_uswdinby
667) as_ueq uswdoersg £ 661 _AIAIOY JuslidoeAs(
08Pl S1S0D P 5894
(10947 :o_um._um_c_EE @@m OL¥l UCHESIUILDY
3 f0F) -SIUSLUBAOCJALL} EmEmmmcws_ ﬁhﬁm& D 80%1 'SiuswiaaoIdw) Jusuiabeueyy
i 90pL_.bujemsdQL g 80y} _-buieiedo
- $ 668 JNY - $ €66 dWV
- $ Zr dAY - 8 Z¥ V|
- $ W dY - $ L dNY
- . $ 0 dNV - $ or dNY
000'6¥ $ St dNV 160 °2€ $ st dAY
000°06 § vt dINY - $ ¥E diNY|
D00'GRS $ gt dily 0S'L¥L $ £€ dNY
$ ZE dINY 989'6PL $ ze dy|
wre'gil $ LE dWV 00F'ELL $ LE dINY
$ 08 JNV_O¥1 6F 3 UE dINY| $IVL0L dilv

- $ 2 WY - $ ¥Z dNV
- ] £ dV - $ £2 diNY|
000’05k ] zZ dWY - $ 22 div
N 3 12 dilY - $ 12 dNY]
005" 12 $ 0T WY 896°10Z'L $ 0Z diNY
- $ ZL diiY - $ Zl dY|
- $ Ll WY 082'0.2 $ kL dINY
000'SPLT $ 0L dWV ¥20'6.€%2 3 01 dNY,

PRINPALIS YoM ON [y panpalos WIOoM ON| Am:___mzﬁ-co:v BUle|SINGT 94F 666

PRINPIYDS HIOM ON $ P3INPaY0s 3i0M ON (Buamp-tou) Auad 00E] dINY

] 1| 9sBYd Malnexe] Jr-gAN[Er JINY|
panpayos iom oN| . p3INPayss JHom oN | 9sEUYd mMonayE] e-ZANILY dWYT: -
uopdrsag wayy JHBOWMY uondurasagq weapg
A 15
9107 DA X4 SI0Z Huerd Add INIWdOTRAND Ny
G U3 ) D] JUSMES)E)S NADAL F. A8 X J0J JUNMIIEIS HAGM
: SOIAIIY HA0M - s9ded Sunaoddng : aed
AdOD TVNId Lo We[ ] GOV aed X -0AL wiridorg puny [ende))




~//s [_ sy
aleq Jepang BuisnoH dijang jo sunjeubig \ ejeg ég_uzuﬁm joal
™ — - S5M1586Y) UOJBAIOSUOL ABISUZ O} PSE/@Y Og SUr] 1O JUNOLY
$1500 paEH - Alunoag o] pajeRY Oz eur jo Junowy| ¥z
$1500 HOS - AIUNOaS 0) pajB|ay OZ SUN] Jo lunouly| gz
SHUEIdUI0D) P0G UORTSS O) PEISION Oz OUF] 40 JUNOWY| 7z
SeNANOY JFT O] PEIE[BY (Z Sut] 40 wnoy| Le
- - - 612'€8E (61-1 ouy ;0 WinS) JUE4H ENUNY Jo JnoWY | (o7
{02 8l JO 9B peacks jou Aeli] AoUsbuRuoD g0SL] 6
10841p ;0 WejsAs e pled 201195 jGeQ 10 UOEZIBISYEoD 0006| ag)
VHING Aq pled edlAies jqep 10 uoneziesdieloD 1ogL| &gl
- - Bic cot S8IIARSY Jueuitioleneq 66vL| /)
8}500 SUCIED0BY |66V O
uoneRsioWag Yop) Of BUINOW 26F1| S)
uontiowsq Geril w1
Juowdiil GUifSMp-UON S/FL| &}
SainoNAS DUeMP-UON G/PL| zI
siqepuadx3-uoN - Jueiudinbag Buiema 1 'GorL] L1
SSInjonAS Pupema 00bL] 01
weiwsAosdwl eng o5kl 6
uonisinbay ais OpyLl 8
€180 pUE 5854 0EVL| /
—sebeweq pojepinbry §Lyi| 9
Wy Lk o
(1.2 2Ull jO 50| paacxa jou Aew) UCHeSipY OirL| +
s)uswonoldul| juewsBeue 90vL| ©
suonessd) eopl| ¢
SPUNg dJQ-uou [E01) 1
uadx; a)eh] SIAS; eu|B ON
Pep mﬁoo [enjoy @0} PIEIo pesme 1500 POIRUIRSS [Ej0L o Junooay Juauidojeraq Aq Aiewung oupy
HOUGY UGHENEAD) PUB BIUBULIONG [eU)-f —H_
{ "0 UOISIASHM) KIGWISIEIS (BNULY DesIAGy | gapuebiowssiolses|a o) sesey [ ] awee)s jenuuy jpuBup [}
ileaozddy Jueig jo Ad4 TI-TGSTOOWI0 AN “ON EID Jojae,] Bnsnop woursoeday ALIMOHLNY DNISNOH TVdIDINAW OV-dNg
oN JeIgy weaSo1g puny endes
ZL0T JUBID 3o X440 Jquinpy pue adAy yuein| - 'BWEN YHd
‘ Arewiung ;1 1aeg
(AHAIAD/dAD) 10308, Sursnofy yamsoeydey weidory punyg ende) pue weiSoxrg punyg pende))
Joday UOEN[EAT PUE JIUBULIOLISJ/JUITIE)S Jenuiy

9Te0-L252 ON GNQ
Buisnop} usIpw pue o)jgnd Jo 200

swidojanag) veqn pue BuisnoH Jo ueweder ‘s

weiBosd Bujoueryq pund eidesn
pue Jojoed Buisnoy juswaneidey weiBosg puny [exden “weibad pung endeg
uodey UCHENEAT PUR S0UELILGLESJAUSLUDEIS [ehuuy



jusiudojeaap-aid glLz'ene 86¥l S)un Buisno} 2Jjgng MeN JO Uoilonisuog 490U
) LNAaNJ013A3qTY
DM av

wom s Q3aNadX3 | aalvongo ETET WNIDINO fpusnp #7009 R adsoso o5 SORIVISY 3P
Jo sn uen . -] ofep Jo uo, ad leisu ~vH/aulep Jagwunp

1800 [EMAY B0, 380 pojeugsy |[@j0) ASQ #RuEg_gmn

Z1Loe TE-TOSTOOWIOAN:ON JuBLs) Iopoe g Suisnol] Jusmaoeidsy
WEID) JO AJ [EAOPOL TN TUEID WRIF01 pung fedeD ALMOHLNY ONISNOH TYdIDINNW Ov44na

JaquinN] puk adA [ JuelD | BweN vid]

sodeq Supaoddng :Jy 1eg

(IHIdAD/dAD) 103985 FWsnoy jmomoedoy meadexg punyg ende) pur wreidoaJ puny jende)

J0doy UOHEN|EAT PUB FIUBULIOIIDJ/JUII)E)S [BNUTy

9ZZ0-LL52 "ON SNO

wietbold Bupueuld pung jepden

Buisnoy ueipu; pug s1|gnd Jo 330

pue Jojoed Buisnol juawadejdey) welbold pund eydes Wweilolg pung [enden

Juawdojeasq ueqn pue Buisnod jo Juswledsg 'Sy

Hoday UONEBR[BAT PUR GDURULIONG/UEWEIB]S [enuly




910¢/¢f8 :%%.?L JeuidoisepeY Solid 0
lenoy pesiaeM | reuibuo | renjoy | pesiaey | feuibuo SOELIAT
sae(] 306 BT SUpu 1] i | IANDY OPLA-VH
PIPCHISTIR, pesDe o) sioseR ﬁwao_maaw—m_ Mva_waﬂ :mw (e Evﬂum sounD) SHEN sxaquiny jusmdolradd/ Y
FA 1174 ZT-T0SZO0MO0AN:ON UEID) Jojoe, Suisnol Jusilisseday] .
IJURAS) JO A [BAIPI] :oN JUBID weiSolg pundg [enden ALROHLNY ONISNOH TTYJIJINNN OTVd4Ng
Jaqump pue 2dA1, wern ‘BUeN YHd

LE8ZG ONH

a[m

poyag uoneymduijdury Iy 3red

(THEJAD/IAD) 10y Smsnoy] juswiddeday meidoig pung repde) pue meidoag puny jende)
3ioday] UONEN[EAT PUE RDUBULIOLIDJAUIUIII RS [EnuUY




ajeq Jo)2a41c] Buisnol oljangd §o eunjeubis an_ ﬂ
) B o N BaUNSEoyY UO[EAIGSUCD ABIOUT 0} PEIEISY OZ Ol 10 1Unowny

8j809 pleH - AlMoeg o} pejeiay g surT JO Wneliy| bz

81500 J08 - AUN3SS O} peje|sy Oz aul] JOIunowy| ¢z

aouB|duic) 0T UORSSS O} PAJE|aY Oz Sul ] JO UnoWY| 22

SOMAMIDY (871 01 PBjEDY (Z U jo nowy| |2

- - - IWINTY:] {61-1 auy Jo wns) Juerg) enunly jo Junowy| (g

{02 Uil Jo %8 Paoox= Jou Rew) AauebuRueD z0G 1 64

1921IP jO WEISAS BIA piad ad[aas 1ga(] 10 uoyezilessleon 0006| 8l

YHWE Aq pred 50jA188 109 J0 UONEZIBIZE(0D LOGL] gL

- - LEL' LPO sejiiAnoy Wwewidojeraq eevl| /)

$1800 SUCNEDORY | 'G6FL] 91

UGNesSuoLaq SI0AA 01 BUIAGH 26V L] Gl

uoRIows 58vL| ¥l

Jusuidinb3 Duyiemp-uoN S2vi| &L

sNonAg BUIBMP-UON 0/¥L] 21

eigepuodiy-UON - yuewidinbeq Dujiemg 1'59rL] E1

meaaeaﬂ_.__m;n_ [

EmEm>o._nE_ QS 0ok.] B8

uolisinboy sYg OtbL| 8

5800 PuE S99 OEwE| £

sebeweq patepmbi glyl] o

IPNY LIbLl g

(Lg au Jo 940 pasoxa ol Asw) uojessiuwpy oLyl ¢

SjubweACIdUi| JUSUISBEUBH 90 L] &

mco__w.._mn_o oLl 2

_ . SpUNg d4-UoU fe10L] |

papuadxa pajetiino pesiaey 1embug ‘ON
1500 IOV [e30) 1500 payewIpsS [E10,4 Wnasay Jualidojaneg Ag Arewiuing ouyg

Hotsy UO|IETHEAT PUB GIUBULONS [BU|] (]
( “ON Ugisinay) ewieyE]S [Bnuuy pesiney [ sapusfiowigmeesi] o onlosay [ uowae)g jenuuy euitpo ]
ieacsddy Juels Jo x4 TE-TOSTO0WIOAN 0N Weln 10308 ursno)] juswsoeyday ALIMCHLENY 2NISNOH TYJIQINNN OTv44ng
‘0N JUB1D) WeIFosd puad jende)
107 SUBLS 3O X0 Jaqranp pae 3dL ] juzan ‘eweN YHd

Areunung iy jaeg
(IHYdAD/dID) 40ae Sursnoy yuvesveidey weadoag pung peade) pue weiSeag pung eyde)
310doy] TWOHENJBAT PUR DUBWAOLIIJ/JUIUIDIE)S [EOUTY

8Z20~LI52 "ON BND
Buisnolt LEIPU( pUe DYaNd 0 EdI0

wawdojaneq) ueqin pue BuEno Jo Wewuedag s

wesBos Bupueul pund jelden

pue Jojor4 BuishoH jusweneiday weiBosd pung Elden ‘uesbosd pund [Enden

Hoday UOJEN|EAT pUE S3UELIONSJAUBLIRNRIS [BNuly



yuswdojaasp-aud [WIHE ;) BBPL s)uf BuISNoH 1gNd M JO LIORDNIISUOD AYHDOU
. LIN3IW4013A303Y
30(4d Qv
o a3aNad¥s | aalvernao a3asiAgy TWNISIHO #2100y 8 i SBNIALOY 3PIM
HICM JO SMIEEG 7605 [6MoY 1501 1500 POIEWINS 1901 fuentdy] ©, o seuofiejen YJop Jofel jo uonduaseq |eisuaD .supﬂﬂwﬂ wﬂ&:z
(45114 TI-TOSTOOHYDAN:ON IURID 10084 m..__msom TuaWaoBdaYy
UEAD) JO A (81903 TON IEID) WeIg01g Puiid [ENde) ALRMOHLNY DNISNOH TYdIDINNW OTY4dNa
IQUINN] puB adAL JUkID _ BueN vHd

so98q aunioddng :If a8g

(I dAD/dAD) 1030e ) Fmsnol] judmadeiday] meiFosg puny jende) pue mexdorg punyg ende)

30day uoneN[EAT PuE PUBULIONI J/UIWI)E)S [BNHAY

92202152 "ON WO

weiBo.l4 Buipueu) pund [eydes

BuiSNOf] LIBIpU] puE oNand Jo om0

pue toped Buisno wawsoeidey WJBold pung jejdeD ‘weiBosd pung jepde)

[

Hoday] VonBNeAsl pUE 20U BLLIOLSJAUSWISLEIS [BRULY

WaLWdoeAa(] uegln) pue Buisnoy jo EmE.._mnmm_ 'en




910e/2/8 pL0z/e/g|_ Poid Jusludopapsy so1d 0 v
fenjoy pesinay | [eulBuo femoy | pesmey | |euwBuo -
saje(] Jobie) pos|aoy 10) SUOSEIY {s1eqq Surpug 190end)) (o1 Buipug Jowend) ARy oE\W YH
papuadxy spun iy poyes|iqO spund iy BN SIGUIN JRWCORAARINY
cige Z1-Z0SZO0W90XN:ON JueID 101084 Suisnol] justusor|day
UL JO X7 |UAPOL -oN 1D weidoig puny fended ALR-OHLNY DONISNOH TVLIDINNIN OTYddNE
mquinp pue 2dA1, wern BUEN YHd

L6825 ONH

oMpayds uonERWRdW] <11 Med

(T IID/dAD) 1010, Suisnof] yuswaduidey weiSosg puny jende) pue weidoag puny ende)

110d9Y GO EN[BAT PUE IDUBULIOLID J/)UIWIAIE]S [ENUTY




2012 Capital Fund

Capital Fund Program U.S. Department of Housing
(CFP) Amendment ‘and Urban Development
To Tha Consolidated Annual Contributions Offlce of Public and Indian Housing
Contract (form HUD-53012
"PHA") i

Whereas, (Public Housing Authorily) Bulfaio Munlclpal Housing Authority(NY002) (herein called the
and the United States of America, Secratary of Housing and Urban Development (hereln called "HUD"

Contract(s) ACC(s) Numbers{s) NY-381 dated 3/11/1996

Whereas, HUD has agréed to provide CFP assistance, upon execution of this Amandment, to the PHA In the amount to be specified below for the
purposs of assisting the PHA In carrying out capital and management ectivities at existing public housing developments In order to ensure that such
davelopments continue to be avallable o serve low-Incoms familiss. HUD reserves the right to provide additional CFP assistance in this FY o the
PHA, HUD will provide a revised ACC Amendment authorizing such additional amounts.

$ 7,.470.988.00 for Fiscal Year 2042 to be referred to under Capital Fund Grant Number NYOB8P0250112
PHA Tax Identification dumber (TIN):On File DUNS Number:On Flie

) entered into Gonsolidated Annual Contributions

Whereas, HUD and the PHA are entering into the CFP Amendment Number,

Stales Housing Act of 1937, as amended, {the “Act’) and 48 month time period
In which the PHA must expend this CFP assisiance pursuant to section S()(5) of

Now Therefore, the ACG(s) Is (are} amended as foflows:

1.The ACC(s) is (are) amended to provide CFP agsistance In the amount

specifed abova for ¢apital and management activities of PHA developmenlis, the Act starls with the effactive dats of this CFP amandment {the date onwhich

This amendment Is a part of the ACC(s). CFP asslstance bacomes evailable to the PHA for obligation). Any addiional
CFP assistance this FY will start with the same &ffeclive date.

2, The capital and management activities shall be carried out in accordance
with all HUD regulations and ather requirements applicable to the Capital Fund 4. Subject o the provisions of the ACC{s) and paragraph 3. and to assist in the
capltal end management activities, HUD agrees to disburse to the PHA or the

Pragram.
designated truslee from tima to time a5 needed up to thie amount of the funding
3. (Check one) asslstance specified herein.
a. For Non-qualifled PHAS:
{i} In aceordance with the HUD regulations, the Annual 6. The PHA shall continue o operate each development &s low-Income housing
PHA Pian has been adopted by the PHA and approvad by HUD, and may In compliance with the ACC(s), as amended, the Act end all HUD regulations for
a period of twanty years after the last disbursemant of CFP assistance for

he amandad from time to tima. The capital and management activities
shall be carrled out as described In the CFP Annual Statement/Parformance moderntzation activiies for eny public housing or porilan thereof and for a pertad
of forly years after the last distribution of CFP assislance for development

and Evaluation Report (HUD-50075.1).
OR activities for any public housing and for a perlod of ten yaars following the last
{ll) If the Annua! PHA Plan has not been adopted by the PHA and payment of assistance from the Operating Fund lo the PHA. However, the
provisions of Sectlon 7 of the ACG shall remaln In offact for so long as HUD

approved by HUD, tha PHA may use its CFP asslstance under his conlract for

wark lteria contalnad In Its CFP-Fiva-Year Action Plan (HUD-50076.2), befora  daterminas there Is any oulstanding Indebledness of the PHA to HUD which

tha Annual PHA Plan is approved. arose In connaction with any development(s) under the ACC(s) and which s not
eliglble for forglveness, and provided further that, no digposiiion of any

b. For Quallfied PHAs: dsvelopment coverad by this amendment shall occur unless approved by HUD.
_{) The CFP Annuat Statement/Performance and Evaluaiion Report

{RUD-50076.1) has bean adopted by the PHA and varified by HUD. The 6. The PHA will accept elf CFP assistanoe provided for this FY. Ifthe PHA does

caplta! and management activities shall be carred out as describad thereln. not comply with any of il obligations under this Amendment and does not have

OR its Annual PHA Plan approvad within the perlod spacifiad by HUD, HUD shall
Imposs such penaltias or take such remedial action as provided by law, HUD

______{inifthe CFP Annual StatementPerformance and Evalualion Reporl may direct the PHA to terminate all wark described In the Capital Fund Annuat

has net baan adopted by the PHA andior verified by HUD, the PHA may uss Statement of the Annual PHA Pian. In such case, the PHA shall enly incur

its GFP assistance under this contract for work ems contained In its approved  additionat costs with HUD approval.

CFP 5-Year Action Plan (HUD-50075.2), befare tha CFP Annual
Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report Is adopted by the PHA and 7. Implementation or usa of funding asslstance providsd under this Amendment
varifiad by HUD. is subject to the attached corraotive action order(s).
For cases where HUD has approved a Capltal Fund Financing (mark ona) : l:l Yes No
Amendment to the ACC (CFF Amendmeni attashed), HUD will deduct the
8. The PHA acknawledgas Its responstbllity for adherence to this Amendment.

payment for amoriization scheduled payments from the grant immediately on

the sffectiva date of this GFP Amendment. The payment of CFP funds due

per Ihe amortization schadutad wil be made directly o a designated trustes g. At a public housing development leval and in the format and frequenay

{Trustes Agreement attached) within 3 days of the due date. astablished by HUD, tha PHA !s required to repart on all Capltal Fune grants
awarded that have not dlosed, Including Information on the installation of energy

Regardless of the selsction above, the 24 month time period in which the PHA  conservation measurgs.

must obiigete this CFP assistance pursuant to section 9()(1) of the United
The partles have exscuted this Agresment, and it will be effective on March 12, 2012. Thi s the date on which,CFP assistance hecomes

avallable to the PHA for obligation. A 7
.S, Department of Housing and Urban Developmeant I;HA CIv)) T 0
By Date: y ) ate:
ST
Title Title ~ |/ L !
Executive Director

Form HUD-52840-A 03/04/2005
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2012 Capital Fund

Capital Fund Program

(CFP) Amendment
To The Consolidated Annual Contributions

Contract (form HUD-53012

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urhan Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Whereas, (Public Housing Authority} Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority(NY002} (hereln called the "PHA)

and the United States of Amerlca, Secretary of Housing and Urban Development thereln callsd

Contract(s} ACC{s) Numbers(s) NY-381 dated 3/11/1996

Whereas, HUD has agreed to provide CFP assiat
purpose of assisting the PHA In carrying out capite
davelopmants conlinue to be avallable to serve low-

"HUD"} entered into Consolidated Annual Contributlons

anca, upon execution of this Amandment, to the PHAIn the amaunt to be specified balow for the
| and managemant aclivities at existing public housing developments in order to ansure thal such
income familiss. HUD reserves the right to provide additional CFP assistance in this FY to the

PHA, HUD will provide a revised ACC Amendmant authorizing such additional amounts.

$ 383,219.00 for Fiscal Year 2012 to be referred to under Capifal Fund Grant Number NY06R00250112

PHA Tax ldentification Number (TIN}:On Fils

Whereas, HUD and the PHA are entering into the CFP Amendment Nurmber,

DUNS Number:On File

Now Therefare, the ACC{s) is {are) amended as follows:

1.The ACC(s} Is {are) amended to provide CFP assistance in the amount
specifled above for capltal and management ectivilles of PHA developments.
This amendment Is a part of the AGG(s).

2. The capital and management activities shall e carriad out in accordance
with all HUD regutations and other requirements applicable fo the Cepllal Fund

Program.

3. (Check one)
&. Far Nen-qualifled PHAs:
X _ () In aceordance wilh the HUD regulations, the Annual
PHA Plan has been adopted by the PHA and approved by HUD, and may
be amended from time to time. The capital and management activitles
shall be carded out as described In the CFP Annuat Statement/Performance

and Evaluation Report (HUD-50075.1).
OR

{lly If the Annual PHA Pian has not been adopled by the PHA and
approved by HUD, the PHA may use its CFP assistanea under this contract for
work Items contained in fts CFP-Five-Year Action Plan (HUD-50075.2}, before

the Annual PHA Plan is approved.

b. For Qualiflad PHAS:
(D The CFP Annuat Statement/Performance and Evalualion Report
(HUD-60075.1) has been adopled by the PHA and verified by HUD. The
capital and management activilles shai be carried oul ag deseribed therein,
R

{if) If the CFP Annuzl Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
has not been adopted by the PHA and/or verifled by HUD, the PHA may use
Its CFP assistance under this contract for work items contalned in lts approved
CFP 5-Yaear Action Plan (HUD-50075.2), before the CFP Annual
Statement/Performanca and Evaluation Reporl is adopted by the PHA and

verified by HUD.

For casas where HUD has approved a Capital Fund Fnancing
Amendment to the ACC (CFF Amendment attached), HUD will deduct the
payment for amortlzation scheduled payments from the grant immediately on
the effective date of this CFP Amentdment. Tha payment of CFP funds due
per the amortization scheduled wilt be made directly to a deslignated trustes
(Trustes Agreement attached) within 3 days of the due date.

Regardiess of the selection abovs, the 24 month time perlod in which the PHA
st obligale this CFP assistance purstiant to section 8()(1) of the United

States Housing Act of 1837, as amended, (the "Act’} and 48 manth time pertod
in which the PHA must expend this CFP assistance pursuant to section 9()(6) of
the Act starls with the sffective date of this CFP emendment (the date on which
CEP asslstance becomes available to the PHA for abligation). Any additional
CFP assistance this FY will start with the same effeclive date.

4, Subject to the provisions of the ACG(s) and paragraph 3. and to asagist in the
caphal and management activities, HUD agrees to disburse to the PHA orthe
designated trustae from time to fime a8 needed up to the amount of the funding
assistance specified herein,

5. The PHA shall continue to operate each development as low-Income housing
In compllance with the AGC(s), as amended, the Aot and all HUD regulations for
a perind of twenty years after the lest disbursement of CFP assistanca for
modetnization activitias for any public housing or portion thereof and for a period
of forty years after the last distribution of CFP assistance for developmen
activities for any publlc housing and far a period of ten years following the last
payment of assistance from the Opesating Fund to the PHA. However, the
provigions of Secllon 7 of the ACC shall remaln in sffect for so long as HUD
determines there Is any cutstanding Indabtedness of the PHA to HUD which
arase In connection with any developmeni(s) under the ACC(s) and which Is nal
eligible for forgiveness, and provided further that, na disposition of any
dovelopment covered by this amendment shall occur untess approved by HUD.

8. The PHA will accept all CEP assistance provided for this FY. ifthe PHA does
not comply with any of iis abligations under this Amendment and does nol have
its Annual PHA Plan approved within the pariod specified by HUD, HUD shall
impose such penalfies or teke such remedial action as provided by law. HUD
may direct ihe PHA lo terminate all work described In the Caplital Fund Annusl
Staterment of the Annuat PHA Plan, i suchcase, the PHA shall only fcur

gdditional costs with HUD approval,

7. Imptementation or use of funding assiztance provided under this Amsndment
is subject to the attached corrective action order(s).

(mark one) : Yes o

8. The PHA acknowladges Its responsibility for adherence to this Amendmant.

g. At a public housing development level and In the format and frequency
established by HUD, the PHA is required to report on all Capltel Fund grants
awarded that have not ¢losed, Ineluding information on the Installation of energy

conservatlon measures.

The partles have executed this Agresmant, and it will ba effective on March 12, 2012, This Is the date on which GFP assistancs bacomes

avallable to the PHA for obligation.

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmant
By Date:

Title

Fxecutive Director

Previous versions obsolete

form HUD-52840-A 03/04/2003



2012 Capital Fuad

Capital Fund Program
(CFP) Amendment

‘To The Consolidated Annual Contributions
Contract (form HUD-53012)

U.S. Dapartment of Housing
and Urhan Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Whereas, (Public Housing Authority) Bufalo Municipal Housing Authority(NY002) (hereln callad the "PHA"}
and the United States of America, Secretary of Housing and Urban Development (herein cafled “HUD')

Contract(s) ACC(s) Numbers(s) NY-381 dated 3/11/1908

Whereas, HUD has agreed to provide CFP assistance,
purpose of assisting the PHA in carrying out capltal and managemen
developments conlinue to be available to serve low-

entarad Into Consolidated Annual Contribullons

upon execution of this Amendment, to the PHA In the amount to be specified below for the
t activities at existing public housing devalopments in order fo ensure that such
income families. HUD reservas the right to provide additional CFP aseistance in this FY to the

PHA. HUD wili provide a revised ACC Amendment authorizing such additional amounts.

$ 641,771.00 for Fiscal Year 2012 fo bs referred to under Capital Fund Grant Number NY06R002560212

PHA Tax Identification Number (TIN):Cn File

Whereas, HUD and the PHA are entering into the GFP Amendment Number,

DUNS Number:On File

T ———— ke
Now Tharefora, the ACC(s} Is (are} amended as follows:

1.The ACC(s) Is (are) amendad to provide CFP assistance In the amount
specified above for capital and management activities of PHA developmants.
This amendment Is & part of the ACC(s).

2. The capital and management ectivities shall ba carrled out in accordance
wilh all HUD regufations and other requiraments applicable to the Gapltal Fund

Program.

3. (Check one}
a. For Non-qualified PHAS:
X () In accordance with the HUD regulations, the Annual
PHA Pian has been adopted by the PHA and approved by HUD, and may -
be amended from time 10 time. The capital and management activities
shall be carrlad out as described in the CFP Annual Statement/Performance

and Fvaluation Report (HUD-50075.1).

OR :

(ii} If the Anntrai PHA Plan has not been adopled by the PHA and
approved by HUD, the PHA may uae its CFP assistancs under this contract far
work ilems containad In its CFP-Five-Year Actlon Plan (HUD-50076.2), befare
the Ansual PHA Plan is approvad.

b. For Qualified PHAs:

{i) The CFP Annual StatementfParformance and Evalualion Report
{HUD80076.1) has been adopted by the PHA and varifled by HUD. The
capital and management activilles shall be carried out as described therein.

R

{ii) If the CFP Annual StatementiPerformance and Evaluation Report
has not been adopled by the PHA andfor verifiad by HUD, the PHA may use
lts CFP assistance under this contract for work items conlained in is approved
CFP 5-Year Action Plan (HUD-50075.2), before the CFP Annual

_Statemeant/Performance and Evaluation Report Is adopted by the PHA and

verified by HUD.

- For cases where HUD has approved a Capital Furd Financlng
Amendment to the ACC (CFF Amendment attached), HUD will deduct the
payment for amoriization scheduled payments from the grant immediately on
the effective date of this CFP Amendment. The payment of CFP funds due
per the amortlzalion scheduled will be made directly to a deslgnated trustee
(Trustee Agreement attached) within 3 days of the due date.

Regardless of the salaction above, the 24 month ima perlod In which the PHA
must obligate this CFP assistance pursuant to section 9(1)(1) of the United

States Housing Act of 1937, as amendad, (the “Act’) and 48 month time period
in which the PHA must expand this GFP asslsiance pursuant to sectlon 8()(5) of
the Act starts with the effectiva date of this CFP amendment (the date on which
CFP agslstance becomas avallable to the PHA for obligation). Any additional
CFP assistance this EY will start with the same effective date.

4, Subject to the provislons of the ACC(s) and paragraph 3. and to asslst in the
capilal and management activities, HUD agrees to disburse to the PHA or the
designated trustee from time to time as neaded up to the amount of the funding
assistance specified herein.

8. The PHA shall conlinue to operate each development as low-Income housing
in compliance with the AGC(8), as amended, the Aci and all HUD ragulations far
a periad of twenly years after the last disburaement of CFP assistance for
madernization activities for any public housing or portion thereof and for a peried
of forly years after the last distibutton of CFP assistance for development
activities for any public housing and for a period of ten yaars following the last
payment of assistance from the Operating Fund to the PHA. Howaver, the
provisions of Seclion 7 of the AGC shall remain In effect for so long as HUD
determines there is any outstanding indebledness of the PHA to HUD which
arose In connection with any development(s) under the ACC(s) and which is not
etigible for forgiveness, ard provided further that, no disposition of any
development coverad by this amendmant shall acour uniess approved by HUD.

6. The PHA wilt accepl all OFP assistance provided for this FY, If tha PHA does
not comply with any ofits abligations under this Amendment and doas niot have
its Annual PHA Plan approved within the periad spacified by HUD, HUD shall
impose such penalties or take such ramedial action as provided by faw. HUD
may direct the PHA to terminate all work described In the Capital Fund Annual
Statement of the Annual PHA Plan. In such cass, tha PHA shall only Incur

additional costs with HUD approval.

7. implementation or uze of funding assistance provided under this Amendment
s subject to the atiached corrective action order(s).

{mask one) : Yes No

8. The PHA acknowledges its responsibility for adharence to this Amendment.

9. At a public housing devatopment level and In the format and fraquancy
establishad by HUD, tha PHA Is required to report on all Gapital Fund grants
awarded that have not closed, including Information on the Instaltation of energy

conservation measuras.

The parties have executed this Agrasment, and it will be effective on March 12, 2012. THls Is the tiate on which CFP assistance bacomes

available fo the PHA for abfigation.

U.S. Dapariment of Housing and Urban Development
By Date:

Title

, L
By utive fl/)/i::(%éy W Date‘:s"’/J:// '

Tille
Executlve Director

Previous versions obsolete

form HUD-52840-A 03/04/2003
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2.1. Specific Housing Objectives

The City of Buffalo has identified the proviston of decent and affordable housing within stable
neighborhoods for both owner and renter households as the overarching pricrity need. In addressing this
need, HOME and CDBG funds will be used to support programs for emergency assistance and owner
occupied housing rehab; acquisition/rehab/resale of existing properties to Jow income households; and
the creation of affordable rental units.

Description of Priositi
The Consolidated Plan: includes the following specific priority needs to be met over the next five years:

»  Create new residential homeownership opportunities for low and moderate-income individuals,

» Rehabilitate abandoned and deteriorated housing,

»  Assist homeowners in rehabilitating and weatherizing homes and preventing further deterioration

‘'« Fliminate lead-based paint hazards in older homes, particularly those in which a child under the
age of six resides or spends substantial time.

»  Market new housing and rehabilitation programs to low-and moderate-income 1esidents.

Obijects T
Residents who contributed o the Consolidated Plan identified the following housing related goals:
»  Maintain existing housing through code enforcement
»  Demolish vacant properties that are too deteriorated to salvage
»  Assist homeowners with emergency repairs to their properties
*  Build and rehabilitate housing for both owners and renters

In keeping with these identified needs and priorities, the following Goeals and Objectives have been
established for the AAP.

Code Enforcement / Cleatance

The AAP provides funding for code enforcement on 409 properties; Clean & Seal emergency board-ups on
130 vacant structures; and demolition of 132 vacant and abandoned properties. All activities are targeted
to Livable Community neighborhoods, in coordination with CHDO and CBO rchab activities.

Code Enforcement (CDBG) _ | $_2,885‘10Q.".'
Code Enforcement 173,500

Clearance/Cloan&Sel . 60800
Dérﬁolition | | 2.,525,80.0

_ Pfdgram Delivery o R 125,000
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Code enforcement is the critical first step, to ensure that ownets remedy early signs of neglect. By
identifying properties that need attention, and working cooperatively with owners, the city can arrest
decline before it gets out of hand. In cases where properties have already been abandoned, the city moves
quickly to board and seal the ymits so that vandalism is prevented and the housing remains viable for
future renovation and reuse.

When properties are beyond salvaging, the city is forced to demotish the housing so it doesn’t become a
blight on the surrounding neighborhood. Between October 2010 and January 2012, the city demolished
538 properties at a cost of $8.8 million; including 354 with CDBG funding (Map 2). The city currently has
another 538 properties on its demotlition lis¢, including 194 in Livable Comumunity neighborhoods (Map
3).

Housing

The AAP invests CDBG funds in various housing programs; emergency repaits to allow 66 homeowners
to address major systems such as roofs, water or sewer lines, fumaces, hot water tanks, and electrical
panels; rehabilitation of owner-occupied housing; acquisition, renovation and resale of existing properties;
and the renovation or new construction of rental housing; and staffing funds for delivery of these
programs,

" Housing (CDBG) . 1,501,087
Emergency Rehabilitation Loans 600,000

' Rehabilston Loan Contractor 303,500
CHDO/NHS Program Delivery o . .350,t.)00
Rehébitaion Program Defivery . - 157,587

2,2 Public Housing Needs

The Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority has recently embarked on the Perry Choice Neighborhood
planning initiative, 2 collaborative led by the BMHA and the University at Buffalo’s Center for Urban
Studies. Its goal is to develop a plan for transforming the Perry Choice Neighborhood into a vibrant
community of opportunity, which functions as springboard to enable residents to eam a living wage and
for children do well in school, graduate on time, and g0 on to college or obtain a job with a meaningful
career ladder. This goal will be achieved by developing a transformative plan that centers on housing,
people, and neighborhood.

The Perry Choice Neighborhood initiative was one of 17 recipients to be awarded the first Planning Grant
funding through HUD's Choice Neighborhood Initiative. After the planmning period is over, BMHA will be
able to apply for a $30 million implementation grant. The BMHA’s Commodore Perry Community will
be recreated and redeveloped as the heart of the Perry Choice Neighborhood - the prime destination that
contains a cluster of goods, services, shops and stores not found elsewhere in the neighborhood.

The revitalization of the Commodore Perry Community will also support redevelopment activities in two
adjacent neighborhoods. The first is located in the Fruit Belt neighborhood, home of the Buffalo Niagara
Medical Campus and Woodson Homes, a BMHA development. Woodson consists of 26 vacant housing
units which will be demolished. The intent is to replace the demolished housing units in the northern
section of the Fruit Belt.

The second is anchored by Kowal Apartments, a BMHA housing development. Although the apariments
are in good condition, the area is nonetheless dominated by vacant land, thereby making it an ideal site for

14



BMHA replacement housing. If the Choice planning team decides to build replacement housing outside
the Perry Choice Neighborhood, either of these two development zones would be selected,

2.3 Removing Barriers to Affordable Housing

The City of Buffalo has embraced smart growth as an approach for focusing revitalization and
1edevelopment in its existing neighborhoods. This ongoing effort to reverse decades of wrban
abandonment and suburban sprawl depends upon key investments of CDBG, HOME, state, and locat
funds 1o restore livability, economic potential, and social cohesion in targeted neighborhoods.

Central to this strategy is the Green Code — an npdated land use plan and zoning ordinance for the entire
city that is curtently underway. As the process evolves, it is clear that land use planning can support
affordable housing by encouraging the redevelopment of dense, walkable neighborhoods with access to
goods, services, and public transportation. Zoning is also a critical element in the provision of affordable
housing, by removing barriers such as minimum lot sizes and prohibitions against mixed-use development
that unnecessarily add to costs.

2.4 HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME)

HOME is designed to provide affordable housing to low-and moderate-income households, particularly
those with incomes less than 80 percent of the area median. There are eight organizations certified by the
city as Community Housing Development Organizations: Black Rock-Riverside NHS, FLARE, Matt
Urban Center, New Opportunities, Old First Ward, PUSH, St. John Fruit Belt CDC, and West Side NHS.
These groups have tirned some of the most distressed properties in their service areas into housing for
low- and moderate-income familics,

No forms of investment other than those described under 24 CFR 92.205 will be utilized under the HOME
Program, The HOME Investment Partmership Program funds will support the Livable Communities
Initiative through the following housing-related projects and programs.

HOME funds will be used to offer housing rehab assistance to 22 single and mult-family owner occupied
structores to assist homeowners in keeping their properties in compliance with code and fiee from lead
based paint hazards; to assist ptivate developers to create seven new affordable rental units; and to provide
financial assistance to approved Community Housing Development Organizations (CHDOs) to create to
three fully renovated, lead safe homes for sale to new low and moderate income homebuyers.

HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) .$3,0.18,883'
Mulii-family Rehabifitafion / New Construction 1,188,080

 Owher.ocoupied Rehabiltation o | 1,000,000
CHbO~sponsbred Rehabifitaﬁon : | 415,301
CHDOoperatingcosts . 138434
Administfatiﬁn | | o 276,868

The AAP invests §1,188,080 in HOME funding for the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of
affordable rental housing. Rehabilitation must be the primary activity, with a minimum cost of $10,000
per unit. Financial assistance includes conditional grants, construction loans, bridge loans, and permanent
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mortgages. BURA will not use HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured by multi-family housing
being rehabilitated under the HOME program without consulting HUD.,

Developers are required to submit an application indicating the natute of the project, proposed funding
sources, and use of HOME funds. BURA then conducts a review to ensure that disinvestment in the
property has not occurred, the long-term needs of the project can be met, and the units will serve the
targeted population over the affordability period.

Homeowner Rehabilitation

The AAP provides $1,000,000 in HOME funding to help homeowners in targeted neighborhoods. Each
property is brought into compliance with local building codes and lead-based paint hazard reduction
requirements. Assistance for owner-occupied projects is provided in the form of conditional grants,
deferred-payment loans, non-interest-bearing loans, or low-interest-bearing loans. Eligible activities
include correcting code violations, essential improvements, lead-based paint hazard reduction, providing
accessibility for disabled pexrsons, and the repair or replacement of major systems.

CHDO Activii

The AAP sets aside $415,301 in HOME funding for projects being sponsored by qualified CHDOs.
Projects are selected through an RFP process, and eligible activities include the acquisition, rehabilitation,
or construction of housing for low- and moderate-income homeowners and tenters; and direct financial
assistance for purchasers of HOME-assisted housing. BURA will also provide $138,434 to CHDOs for
eligible operating costs. Assistance for each CHDO will not exceed the greater of either $50,000 or 50
percent of the organization’s total annuoal operating expenses.

Matching Funds

Although BURA has received a waiver of the HOME matching requitement due to the extent of poverty
in the city, HOME funds continue to leverage state, local, and private investment through the New York
State Affordable Housing Corporation and Housing Trust Fund programs, tax credits, and lender
financing.

R i Resale Provisi
BURA has two options for controlling the resale of the homebuyer property during the affordabilicy
period: the recapture option and the resale option,

The Recapture Option is used to collect all or a poriion of the HOME subsidy in the event the HOME
tecipient decides to sell the HOME-assisted property within the affordability period, or to otherwise
violate the affordability provisions of the owner’s agreement. The homebuyer may sell the property to any
willing buyer, The sale of the property during the affordability period triggers the repayment of the direct
HOME subsidy, or the development subsidy that the buyer received. BURA 1equires full repayment of
the HOME subsidy. In the event that the proceeds from the sale are less than the repayment amount, the
homebuyer must petiion BURA. to accept partial repayment. In some limited cases, the amount to be
repaid can be reduced by BURA if net proceeds are determined to be insufficient to repay the HOME
investment and a fair retzm to the buyer (specifically, the return of the homebuyer’s initial investment
including any equity earned on the original mortgage). A copy of the Recapture Provision is provided
below.

Sample Subsidy Recapture Provisions for CHDO Rehab and Home Buyer Properties with a proposed ten
year affordability period. If a purchaser receives funding vnder the HOME program for a direct subsidy to
support the purchase a HOME-assisted property, the full amount of the direct subsidy assistance provided
is due and payable if the property is sold during the period of affordability.
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Sample Subsidy Recapture Provisions — Direct Subsidy

The full amount of the Recapture Obligation is $00,000.00. The Mortgagor acknowledges and agrees that

the amount of the Recapture Obligation represents a portion of the cost of the development and purchase

price of the Property and is intended for the purpose of reducing the principal of the first mortgage lien to
the Lender.

1. If the property is sold during the term of this mortgage, the amount to be repaid under this Note and
Mortgage will be the full amount of the Recapture Obligation.,

a. Following the XXth anniversary of the date which appears at the top of the first page, and
confingent upon verification that the Mortgagee has occupied the property as his or her principal
residence for the fuil XX year term, the Recapture Obligation will be forgiven and no repayment
will be required.

b. Notwithstanding the terms noted above, the total amount to be repaid shall not exceed the net
proceeds of sale up 1o the original total amount of the Recapture Obligation. The net proceeds are
the sales price of the home minus repayment of the superior loan (if any) and any closing costs.

2. Ifthe Recapture Obligation becomes due and payable, the amount of the Recapture Obligation to be
repaid by the Mortgagor will be determined by the Morigagee as the occurrence of the earliest date
that (T} the Mortgagor defaulted under this Note and Mortgage or the Lendex(s) loans (if there are
other Lenders); and (ii) the Mortgagor sold, 1ented, conveyed any intetest in, or otherwise failed to

occupy the Property.
3. The term of this Note and Mortgage is XX years. This Note and Mortgage will be deemed of no
further force and effect upon ,20XX (the date of the XXth anniversary of the date

set forth at the top of the first page), and neither pasty of this Note and Mortgage will have any further
rights or obligations under this Note and Mortgage against each other, except that, if the Mortgagor
has failed to fulfill the Recapture Obligation due or otherwise defaulted under the terms of this Note
and Mortgage, then the security interest created by this Note and Mortgage {in other words, the lien
on the Property) will continue until the Recapture Obligation plus all costs of collection payable under
the terms of this Note and Mortgage have been discharged by the Mortgagor. The Mortgagee will, on
or after such date, if the Mortgagor has complied with all of the requirements of this Note and
Mortgage, upon wriiten request by Mortgagor, execute a satisfaction or discharge of this Note and

Mortgage.

In cases where no Direct Subsidy is needed, BURA ensures that the HOME-assisted property remains

affordable over the entire affordability term by designating the property as “affordable housing” and

through the use of a filed mortgage, covenant of affordability, and/or deed restiction. If the HOME-

assisted property is sold during the affordability period, the sale must meet the following criteria:

a) The new purchaser must be low-income by the HOME Program definition, and occupy the property
as the family’s principal residence,

b) The sales price must be “affordable” to the new purchaser. Affordable is defined as the maximum
percentage of a purchaser’s income that can be used to pay the fixed costs of owning a home, or
about 35 percent of gross household income for a low income family of four.

Under the Resale Provision, the HOME mortgage is fully assumable by an ¢ligible homebuyer. ‘The new
buyer must also execute a HOME Agreement.

The language for the Deed Restriction that is included within the body of the Deed for property sold with
a Resale Provision is as follows:

= This conveyance is subject to the following restrictive covenant that rans with the Iand.

»  This property may only be transferred or sold during the XXX year Affordability Period to an
eligible Purchaser who qualifies under the Income Guidelines and regulations of the federal
HOME Investment Parmerships Program and in accordance with the terms, policies and
procedures of BURA/Office of Strategic Planning, as the same may be amended, and subject to
prior written consent of BURA/Office of Strategic Planning. These terms are further identified in
the HOME Program Homebuyer Agreement executed by the Grantor as of the date of this deed.
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»  This restrictive covenant regarding the iransfer or sale shall expire and shall be of no further force
or effect on Month XX, 20__ or XX years following the date of this deed. Notwithstanding the
terms noted above, if title to the Property is transferred by foreclosure or by deed in lieu of
foreclosure, these affordability restrictions shall be terminated.

Tenant-Based Rental Assistance

BURA has not set aside HOME funds to provide Tenant-Based Rental Assistance at this time but reserves
the right to do so if priority needs arise.
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Strategy for Addressing Needs (Section 8)

Lower the payment standards which will result in issuing additional vouchers. The projection is to
increase the interviews to maximize utilization. Section 8 will continue to research and apply for
additional vouchers as they become available. Section 8 wait list will be opened in 2012.

Strategy for Addressing Needs (Public Housing)

The Authority is engaged in major initiatives to improve its housing stock and the overall living
environment of its clients, and in doing so, hopes to remove any remaining stigma associated with public
housing. A key focus of the Authority’s new work is to create mixed-income communities and

alleviate concentrations of poverty.

BMHA is also developing master plans for two of its other major developments: Commodore Perry
Homes and Extension. These complexes contain several hundred units each in physicai

configurations ranging from two and three story walk-ups to high-rise, serving client groups

ranging from the elderly to famifies. Each project involves density reduction, site rationalization and
redevelopment, including open space and other improvements. Moving forward with the Choice
Neighborhoods Planning Program, the BMHA will have a transformation plan for these 2 developments
and will apply for a Choice Neighborhoods Implementation Grant.

The Authority has worked hard to build public-private partnerships that increase the leverage factor for
public funds.



B. Housing Needs of Families on the Public Housing and Section 8
Based Assistance Waiting Lists

Housing Needs of Families on the Waiting List

Waiting list type: (select one)
Section 8 tenant-based assistance

<|  Public Housing Community Wide (as of 9-22-11)

[] Combined Section 8 and Public Housing

[ ]  Public Housing Site-Based or sub-jurisdictional waiting list (optional)
If used, identify which development/subjurisdiction:

# of families % of total families Annual Turnover
Waiting list total 602
Extremely low income | 602 100
<=30% AMI
Very low income 0 0
(>30% but <=50%
AMI)
Low income 0 0
(>50% but <80%
AMI)
Families with children | 336 55.8
Elderly families 15 2.5
Families with 72 12.0
Disabilities
Race/ethnicity-white 134 22.3
Race/ethnicity-black 462 76.7
Race/ethnicity- 86 14.3
hispanic
Race/ethnicity-Indian
Race/ethnicity-Asian

Characteristics by

Bedroom Size

{Public Housing

Only)

1BR 263 437
2 BR 299 49.7
3BR 33 5.4
4 BR 2 3

5 BR 4 Ni
5+BR 1 2

Is the waiting list closed (select one)? DXJ No [ | Yes
If yes;

How long has it been closed (# of months)?

Docs the PHA expect to reopen the list in the PHA Plan year? [ | No [ | Yes
Does the PHA permit specific categories of families onto the waiting list, even if
generally closed?[ ] No [ ] Yes




Housing Needs of Families on the Waiting List

Waiting list type: (select one)

[] Section 8 tenant-based assistance

[] Public Housing

[] Combined Section 8 and Public Housing

X Public Housing Site-Based or sub-jurisdictional waiting list(optional)(as of 9-22-
11)
If used, identify which development/subjurisdiction: All Developments

# of families % of total families Annual Turnover

Waiting list total 2683 | 1500

Extremely low income | 2682

<=30% AMI

Very low income 1 03

(>30% but <=50%

AMI)

Low income 0 0

(>50% but <80%

AMI)

Families with children | 1414 52.7

Elderly families 310 11.6

Families with 37 13.8

Disabilities

Race/ethnicity-white 674 25.1

Race/cthnicity-black 1971 73.5

Race/ethnicity- 474 17.7

hispanic

Race/ethnicity-Indian | 19 i

Race/ethnicity-Asian | 9 3

Characteristics by

Bedroom Size

(Public Housing

Only)

1BR 1225 45.7

2BR 920 34.3

3 BR 325 12.1

4 BR 165 6.1

5BR 48 1.8

5+ BR 0 0

Is the waiting list closed (select one)? No | | Yes

If yes:

How long has it been closed (# of momnths)?

Does the PHA expect to reopen the list in the PHA Plan year? [ ] No [] Yes
Does the PHA permit specific categories of families onto the waiting list, even if
generally closed? [ ] No [ ] Yes




B. Housing Needs of Families on the Public Housing and Section 8
Tenant- Based Assistance Waiting Lists

Housing Needs of Families on the Waiting List

Waiting list type: (select one)

X  Section 8 tenant-based assistance

[] Public Housing

[[] Combined Section 8 and Public Housing

[] Public Housing Site-Based or sub-jurisdictional waiting list (optional)
If used, identify which development/subjurisdiction:

# of families % of total families Annual Turnover

Waiting list total 60 § 360
Extremely low income | 60 100%
<=30% AMI

Very low income 0 0
(>30% but <=50%

AMI)

Low income 0 0
(>50% but <80%

AMI)

Families with children | 12 20.0%
Elderly families 1 1.7%
Families with 12 20.0%
Disabilities

Race/ethnicity-white 3 5.0%
Race/ethnicity-black 42 70.0%
Race/ethnicity- 14 23.3%
hispanic

Racefethnicity-Indian | O 0
Race/cthnicity-Asian | 1 1.7%
Characteristics by

Bedroom Size

(Public Housing

Only)

1BR 27 45.0%
2 BR 23 38.3%
3 BR 7 11.7%
4 BR 3 5.0%
5BR 0 0

5+ BR

[s the waiting list closed (select one)? [_] No X Yes
if yes:

How long has it been closed (# of months)7 533 months

Does the PHA expect to reopen the list in the PHA Plan year? [ | No X Yes
Does the PHA permit specific categories of families ento the waiting list, even if
generally closed? X No [] Yes




BMHA 2012 Agency Plan atiachment Data as of September 22, 2011 pml
Average Income analyis Median Income analysis
Does average Does median
Development o 1 opment name current  Aggregate Average  income fall § pogian Income income fall within
number residents income income within the the median income
0 46456 adiusted EIR? EIR?
NY00Z0903 C.Perry Homes 12 1 2 12005 Yes 9372 Yes Ncte: BMHA choses o
NYOO2005 C.Perry Extension 375 4366108 11643 Yes 9372 Yes d man....:m:.mﬂ e it's compliance with
NY002006 Jasper Parrish 183 2194661 11993 Yes 9327 Yes _u i wi
NYOO2008  Shaffer Village 217 2241251 10328 No 9132 Yes 24CFRS03 subpart A by using the
NYD02010 Kenfield Homes 583 7444128 127689 Yes 9372 Yes Median income of its
NY0D2011 LaSalle Couris 197 2399901 12182 Yes 9426 Yes developments instead of the
NY002012  Langfield Homes 302 4485810 14854 Yes 11928 Yes average income. Our recent
= N n o i M .
NY002045 Ferry Grider Iosu_mm 200 2576508 12683 Yes 9372 : Yes experience is that a
Total aggregate income: 27172927 disproportionate number of new
Aggregate bedroom adjustment factor move-ins qualify as hardship
Jotatl current residents: 2179 cases that document a no income
Aggregate average income: 12470 fMedian Income 9372 or very low income situation. This
effect tends to lower the average
incomes for the developments
Lower __Aq%m_m,\% “mm.mc__mzmn __...%3@ with the shortest wait list times
range ©b of average or median H _i
income) : 10600 7066 and the s.m hest move-in rates
115% of averags income (left side) (Shaffer <.___m.um for .mxmq:u_m.u.
115% of Median income {right side) 14341 10778 After stabilizing their tenancies
309% of area mediar income (85300) 19590 many of these newer tenants
Upper limit of Established income improve their incomes by taking
e [} . e .
range (greater of 115% of average or advantage o:ou. .z‘m_:_:m and job
median income or 30% of area : search opportunities, orby
median income) 19050 19580 seeking and qualifying for public
assistance.




Progress in Meeting Goals & Objectives
Increase the availability of decent, safe, and affordable housing.
Expand the supply of assisted housing

Phase | of A.D. Price is completed with the construction of a 94 unit elderly building,

BMHA completed the purchase of Walden Park Senior Complex, a 126 mixed income unit
complex. Thirty-four (34) of the units are designated public housing. Negotiations for further purchase
of additional senior housing are in their beginning stages.

Improve the quality of assisted housing

Major work projects are or soon will be started at the following development
sites; Stuyvesant, Sedita, Msgr. Geary, Schwab, LaSalle, Shafier, Holling, jasper, Camden , Ferry-Grider,
Keily, Kowal, Langfield, Kenfield, 515 Clinton, Redwood, AD Price Senior bldg. CPX Hi-rise, Slater & CP
Row houses.

The work ranges from compiete site re-development to roof replacements, new kitchens, new baths,
security lighting, parking lot improvements, high efficiency HVAC equipment, handicap unit conversions
and so forth. The list is lengthy and impressive; a total of approximately $30,000,000.00 is being re-
invested into our public housing units through our CFP Grant & ARRA Stimulus Grant funding.

Phase Ill of A.D. Price Courts is under historical preservation review.

Increase assisted housing choices

The BMHA:
o is assisting 13 homeowners through its Section 8 voucher program (an increase of 2

from the previous year)

o utilizes a site based waiting list in public housing
provides listing of other housing authorities and agencies for portability and gives
information in the form of a brochure regarding areas of opportunity in the county.

Improve community quality of life and economic vitality
Provide an improved living environment

The BMHA:
o complies with 24CFR903 in regard to deconcentration of poverty.

o has an HUD approved allocation plan in place.
o inspects all Section 8 units to city of Buffalo standards.



o has an executed contract with the Buffalo Police Department to provide additional
patrols in public housing

o was awarded a 2011 Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant which is in process and will
culminate in the development of a Transformation Plan for the Commodore Perry
Homes and Extension.

Promote self-sufficiency and asset development of assisted households

Increase the number and percentage of employed persons in assisted families:
Resident Services accomplishes this through several in-house training programs
and supportive services as well as partnerships that have been established with
community agencies to expand programs and services that will lead to public
housing residents securing unsubsidized employment:

¢ BMHA Section 3 Program which provides low-income and very-low income

persons employment opportunities in the construction industry working for
contractors on section 3 covered projects.

e Neighborhood Network Centers assist with resume development and securing
employment through a self-directed job search using Internet accessible
computers.

* On-Site Tralning Providers provide instruction in GED, Computer Literacy and
After-School Homework Assistance. Partnerships consist of Educational
Opportunity Center / University Center for Academic and Workforce
Development {UCAWD), Buffalo Public Schools Adult Education and Literacy
Volunteers,

¢ The Family Self-Sufficiency {FSS) program continues to recruit new participants
as well as support active participants. FSS participants are BMHA residents who
set goals that promote self-sufficiency and asset development. BMHA’s three
Community Resource Centers are conveniently located and designed to assist
families achieve economic independence. Partnering with the Buffalo
Employment & Training Center and others, FSS participants are offered access
to job finding and interview tips as well as technological workshops and other
benefits (job coaching, resume labs, etc.). The FSS program offers financial
incentives to all participants, including assistance with trave} {NFTA
tokens/passes), and establishment of escrow savings accounts {in process).

o The Service Coordinator program has been successfully refunded for another 3
years in which service coordinators will link public housing residents to other
governmental and private service providers in numerous areas of supportive
services.

Provide or attract supportive services to improve assistance recipients’
employability:



» Supportive Services include childcare and transportation assistance while
participating in short-term training programs that lead to employment. Daycare
will allow parent(s) to participate in training with the confidence that their
children are being cared for in a safe and nurturing environment. In addition,
Bus tokens are provided for activities related to securing employment such as
interviews and attending job fairs as well as the first two weeks of employment.
Monthly bus passes are also issued to public housing residents participating in
short-term training programs that lead to employment,

Provide or atiract supportive services to increase independence for the elderly or
families with disabilities.

o Refer public housing residents to the One-Stop Partners for linkages to
agencies equipped to deal with specialized needs, The eiderly (55 years and
older) would be referred to Supportive Services Corporation if interested in
employment. Public housing residents with disabilities would be referred to
Vocational Educational Services for Individuals with Disabilities (VESID) if
pursuing training and/or employment,

Ensure Equal Opportunity in Housing for all Americans

Ensure edual opportunity and affirmatively further fair housing

The Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority is a voting member of the Erie County Fair Housing
Partnership.



Substantial Deviation
The BMHA defines that a ‘'substantial deviation and significant amendment or modification” to
our annual plan will occur if any policy change or budget amendment:
-Changes the rent or admissions policies or organization of the waiting lists

-Causes significant changes with regard to demolition or disposition, designation,
homeownership programs, or conversion activities

-Is an addition of non-emergency work items or change in the use of replacement

reserve funds under the Capital Fund

Any change fitting the above descriptions which is adopted as required by HUD regulatory
authority is not considered to fall within this definition.



Resident Advisory Board of Buffalo

March 12, 2012

Michal Seamen

Buffalo Municipal Housing Authority
300 Perry

Buffalo, New York

Chairman Seamen,

Pursuance to HUD regulation as found in 24 CFR 903 the Resident Advisory
Board of Buffalo would like to offer the following comments to the PHA Annual
and the Administrative Plans presented to us by the staff of the Buffalo Municipal
Housing Authority. These comments and recondition were developed and
unanimously approve by members of the RAB and member of the Jurisdiction

Wide Resident Council.

1. In a meeting with BMHA staff in which they explained changes in the
Annual Plan and the Administrative Plan, BMHA has presented a proposal
to change the way it allocates Voucher, outline in its Administrative Plan, to
some type of yet to be explained lottery system. However, no one could
explain just how the lottery would work. With no specifics, RAB advices
that at this time we could not comment on something that was yet to be
define. We recommended that no changes be made to the Administrative
Plan this year until the lottery system was defined and RAB review it. We
vigorously reinstate our objection here.

2. HUD regulations allow PHAs to exempt some types of evictions from its
966 grievance procedures. However, RAB have seen instance where
residents would have unfairly lost their homes had it not been for an
advocate intervention. In one case RAB is aware of a young man was charge



with “exciting a riot”. The underline crime; running through a project. Police
officers misunderstand his running. The police officer arrested him.
Neighbors reaction lead to the exciting a riot charge. As exciting a riot is
one of event that is exempt in 966 this family almost lost their home with no
way of explaining the circumstances.

RARB thinks this is wrong. RAB’s interest here is not to prevent all evictions;
rather it is to see that all families, facing a catastrophic event like eviction,
has an unbiased review before such a drastic action is taken. RAB therefore
request BMHA’s grievance procedures be rewritten o allow all tenants
facing eviction for anything other than nonpayment of rent be afforded a
grievance hearing under BMHA’s stander grievance hearing processes,
however, in cases where the health, welfare or safety of staff or other
residents are at issue, RAB envisions an expedited hearing, convened in no
more than 36 hours.

. HUD regulation commonly call 964 require that residents of a development
with a resident council be able to recall its officers should the officers not be
governing in a manner that is consistent with the wishes and needs of the
council. Yet should there be a Commissioner, especially a resident elected
Commissioner, which is likewise acting in a manner that is consistent with
the wishes and needs of the residents that elect them, there should be the
ability to initiate recall that would result in the removal of the commissioner
from office. Therefore the RAB is asking BMHA to revise it bylaws to
include a procedure that would allow residents, upon filing of petitions
alleging misfeasance, malfeasance ,or nonfeasance of office, that contain
signatures equal to one fourth of the of resident that voted in the last
commissioner election, a recall election be called. And should the recall vote
agreed procedures, to remove said commissioner from office, shall
commence.

. About two, two and a haft years ago BMHA enter into an agreement with
Buffalo police department to provide above baseline policing services in
BMHA development that were referred to as our “problem children” While
RAB appreciate s all of the good work BPD has done under this contract, the



crime rate in these five plus development is raising rather than going down.
Put another way the problem has not been solved. RAB is concerns that
there is no BMHA department dedicated to resident safety, The camera
tatted to be the breakthrough in resident safety two years ago are unmanned
pan and zoom that has some investigative, but little detergent value. RAB
recommend a Department of Resident Safety be develop, residents be allow
to become involved in such a department, the camera be manned, perhaps be
trained residents, and the BPD, BMHA police contact be review in the last
years by a panel made up of resident, staff and Board, to see what changes
need be made before time to think about renewal.

. Late in the process, after the meeting at which BMHA staff review and
explained changes to the Annual and the Administrative Plans RAB was
presented with changes to the FSS section of the plan. RAB was given very
little time to read and no time to discuss the changes. RAB did agree in that
we were have a special meeting to review the final draft of this document we
would make available some time for staff to explain change to FFS. We
agreed that if the after briefing members of RAB understood and agreed we
would quickly revise our comments to include FSS. However, BMHA did
not see fit to provide RAB with a staff member to brief us and answerer out
question, even after member of RAB agreed to put themselves out to
accommodate BMHA schedule.

Very few residents know anything about FSS. The changes on page two are
probably something RAB would support. But RAB and residents generally
want more information about the program. Accordingly, RAB cannot at this
time support nor make intelligent comments on BMHA’s changes to their

FSS section.

Sincerely

John Schank
President



Mr. John Schank, Chairman

Resident Advisory Board
72F Jasper Parrish Drive
Buffalo, NY

February 20, 2012

Ms. Dawn Sanders

Executive Director

BMHA Board of Commissioners

300 Perry Sireet

Buffalo, NY 14204

Resident Advisory Board Comments

Security Plan ~ the Resident Advisory Board was overwhelmingly disappointed that the
5 year plan or the annual plan did not include any mention of Anti~Crime and Security
Activities. The Resident Advisory Board requests that the Housing Authority provide the
RAB with all information or detailed documentation as it relates to Anti-Crime and
Security Activities. According to 903.7, does the Housing Authority receive funding for
Drug Elimination Program from HUD? If not, what security and safety plan does the
BMHA héve in place? Residents are extremely dissatisfied with the current security and
safety measures in effect within the BMHA. Crime has increased in all developments
since the implementation of its current contract with the Buffalo Police Department.
The RAB requests that the Housing Authority provide a safety/security plan or strategy
that the Housing Authority plans to initiate in response to the current increase in crime,
drug activities and violence within the housing authority developments. Suggestion:
Camera images should be made available through cable and internet access for residents

to view in their homes/apartments. This should also be included in the annual plan.



ROSS Grant ~ The Resident Advisory Board requests the Housing Authority provide us
with the budget as it pertains to the ROSS Grant for the Family Self-Sufficiency
Program,; in reference to the resources, staffing and programs for public housing
residents. RAB requests to see the full detailed budget items regarding any additional
funding that is made available to the Housing Authority as it pertains to Resident
Management, Section 3 Programs, and Resident Services and Operations of the Housing

Authority.

Allocation of Reasonable Resources ~According 1o HUD Interim Rule 903.13 the
Housing Authority “must allocate reasonable resources” to assure the effective
functioning of the Resident Advisory Board. It is necessary for the Resident Advisory
Board to be independent from the Housing Authority. This funding will allow for a
bonafide parinership between the Resident Advisory Board, BMHA and HUD. Congress

has allocated funds to HUD for that purpose.

Budget Request ~According to HUD Rule 990.111 the Authority is to provide an

operating budget. The Resident Advisory Board felt that the previous Annual Plan and 5

Year Budget was incomplete; for example,

o There was no Security and Safety Plan;

¢ There was no itemized budget that the Housing Authority received from all
funding sources;

e There was no information on ROSS Funded program for Service Coordinators,
Senior Coordinators and Family Service Coordinators which there are 3

Coordinators.



The Resident Advisory Board received no funding year for 2011 as required by Federal
Regulations 903, we, the Resident Advisory Board, therefore, requests to have a
complete itemized copy of this Agency Plan and the 5 Year budget that will be submitted

to HUD; and in particular all funds designated for Resident Participation.

Perry Choice Neighborhoods ~ The Resident Advisory Board request that the Housing
Authority provide a projection of Perry Choice Neighborhood progress that will be

completed by the end of the 5 year plan.
Respectfully submitted,
John Schank/fhs

Resident Advisory Board Officers
JS/ths

John Schank, Chairman
Searcy Hawkins, Vice-Chair
Fatima HaSidi, Secretary
Loretha Plummer, Treasurer



